Public Document Pack

Y

Northumberland

County Council

Your ref:

Our ref:

Enquiries to: Nichola Turnbull

Email: nichola.turnbull@northumberland.gov.uk
Tel direct: 01670 622617

Date: Monday, 6 June 2022

Dear Sir or Madam,

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL to be
held in CEREMONY ROOM - HEXHAM HOUSE, Gilesgate, Hexham, Northumberland,
NE46 3NH on TUESDAY, 14 JUNE 2022 at 4.00 PM.

Yours faithfully

U

Daljit Lally
Chief Executive

To Tynedale Local Area Council members as follows:-

T Cessford (Chair), D Kennedy (Vice-Chair), A Scott (Vice-Chair (Planning)), A Dale,
Fairless-Aitken, C Horncastle, JI Hutchinson, N Morphet, N Oliver, J Riddle, A Sharp,
G Stewart and H Waddell

Members are referred to the risk assessment, previously circulated, for meetings held in
County Hall. Masks should be worn when moving round but can be removed when
seated, social distancing should be maintained, hand sanitiser regularly used and
members requested to self-test twice a week at home, in line with government
guidelines.

Daljit Lally, Chief Executive COVENANT

AT County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF ® L
£)(a disability T: 0345 600 6400 Where
B confident You

EMPLOYER www.northumberland.gov.uk \.’ Live



AGENDA

PART I

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda
will be dealt with in public.

1. MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE

The committee are asked to note the following membership and terms of
reference for the Tynedale Local Area Council which were agreed by

Council on 4 May 2022.

The membership is made up of the county councillors who represent the 13
electoral divisions in the Tynedale area:

Chair: T Cessford
Vice-Chair: D Kennedy

Vice-Chair (Planning): A Scott

Quorum -4
_ Independent | Liberal Green | Ind Non-
Group Democrat | Party Grouped
T Cessford A Scott | D Kennedy SH N HR
Fairless- | Morphet | Waddell
Aitken
CwW A Dale A Sharp
Horncastle
| Hutchinson
N Oliver
JR Riddle
G Stewart

Terms of reference

(1) To enhance good governance in the area and ensure that the Council’s
policies take account of the needs and aspirations of local communities

and do not discriminate unfairly between the different Areas.
To advise the Cabinet on budget priorities and expenditure within the

(2)
3)

Area.

To consider, develop and influence policy and strategy development of

the Council, its arms-length organisations, and other relevant bodies,
to ensure that they meet local requirements and facilitate efficient and
transparent decision making.

(4)

To receive information, consider and comment on matters associated

with service delivery including those undertaken in partnership
agencies, affecting the local area to ensure that they meet local
requirements, including matters relating to community safety, anti-

Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022




social behaviour and environmental crime.

(5) To consider and refer to Cabinet any issues from a local community
perspective with emerging Neighbourhood Plans within their area, and
consider local planning applications as per the planning delegation
scheme

(6) To consider and recommend adjustments to budget priorities in relation
to Local Transport Plan issues within their area, and to make decisions
in relation to devolved capital highway maintenance allocations.

(7) To engage, through the appropriate networks, with all key stakeholders
from the public, private, voluntary and community sectors to facilitate
the delivery of area priorities. This will include undertaking regular
liaison with parish and town councils.

(8) To inform, consult and engage local communities in accordance with
Council policy and guidance, through the appropriate networks.

(9) To, as appropriate, respond or refer with recommendations to local
petitions and councillor calls for action.

(10) To make certain appointments to outside bodies as agreed by Council.

(11) To determine applications for grant aid from the Community Chest,
either through Panels for individual Local Area Councils, or through the
Panel of Local Area Council Chairs for countywide applications.

(12) To refer and receive appropriate issues for consideration to or from
other Council Committees, and as appropriate invite Portfolio Holders
to attend a meeting if an item in their area of responsibility is to be
discussed.

(13) To exercise the following functions within their area:-

(a) the Council’s functions in relation to the survey, definition,

maintenance, diversion, stopping up and creation of public rights of
way.

(b) the Council’s functions as the Commons Registration Authority for
common land and town/village greens in Northumberland.

(c) the Council’s functions in relation to the preparation and
maintenance of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan.

(d) the Council’s functions in relation to the Northumberland National
Park and County Joint Local Access Forum (Local Access Forums
(England) Regulations 2007.

(e) the Council’s role in encouraging wider access for all to the
County’s network of public rights of way and other recreational

routes.
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
3. MINUTES (Pages 1

- 18)
Minutes of the meeting of the Tynedale Local Area Council, held on 10
May 2022, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true record, and signed by
the Chair.

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests,

members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;

Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022



a. Whichdirectly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set
out in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the
interest, not participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in
room. Where members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an
executive function and is being considered by a Cabinet Member with
a DPI they must notify the Monitoring Officer and arrange for
somebody else to deal with the matter.

b.  Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other
Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter
and must not remain the room.

c. Whichdirectly relates to their financial interest or well-being (and is
not DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to
declare the interest and members may only speak on the matter if
members of the public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the
member must not take part in discussion or vote on the matter and
must leave the room.

d. Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or
close associate or a body included under the Other Registrable
Interests column in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test
set out at paragraph 9 of Appendix B before deciding whether they
may remain in the meeting.

e. Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other
Registerable Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being
considered in exercise of their executive function, they must notify the
Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with it.

NB Any member needing clarification must contact
monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Members are referred to the
Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. Please refer to
the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter.

RIGHTS OF WAY

5. REVIEW OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT OF PUBLIC (Pages
RIGHTS OF WAY, ALLEGED RESTRICTED BYWAY NO. 62, PARISH 19 - 86)
OF BARDON MILL

The Local Area Council is asked to give consideration to all the relevant
evidence gathered in support and rebuttal of the existence of restricted
byway rights over a route (the majority of which is identified as the U7044
road on the Council’s List of Streets) from the B6318 road, south-west of
Housesteads, in a general northerly then north-easterly direction to a point
south-east of East Hotbank.

Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022


mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk

6. REVIEW OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT OF PUBLIC (Pages
RIGHTS OF WAY, ALLEGED RESTRICTED BYWAY NO. 26, PARISH 87 - 156)
OF WEST ALLEN

The Local Area Council is asked to give consideration to all the relevant
evidence gathered in support and rebuttal of the existence of restricted
byway rights over the route of existing Public Footpath No. 26, from the
Cumbria County boundary at Blacklaw Cross, in a general northerly
direction, to existing Byway Open to All Traffic No. 37, at Keirsleywell
Bank.

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be held on Tuesday, 12 July 2022.

8. URGENT BUSINESS

To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022



Tynedale Local Area Council, Tuesday, 14 June 2022



IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE:

e Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it
becomes apparent to you.
e Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.

Name: Date of meeting:

Meeting:

Item to which your interest relates:

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?
Yes - L] No - L]

Tynedale Local Area Council, Tuesday, 14 June 2022



Registering Interests

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests).

“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.

"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming
aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person
connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why
you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest
from the public register.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an
interest.

Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart
from arranging for someone else to deal with it.

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to
disclose the nature of the interest.

Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

Tynedale Local Area Council, Tuesday, 14 June 2022



7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects —

your own financial interest or well-being;
a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or

a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied

9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being:

a.

to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the
ward affected by the decision and,;

a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect
your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.

If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

10. Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it.

Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022



Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.

Subject Description
Employment, office, trade, profession or Any employment, office, trade, profession or
vocation vocation carried on for profit or gain.
[Any unpaid directorship.]
Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other

financial benefit (other than from the council)
made to the councillor during the previous
12-month period for expenses incurred by
him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a
councillor, or towards his/her election
expenses.

This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person
with whom the councillor is living as if they
were spouses/civil partners (or a firm in
which such person is a partner, or an
incorporated body of which such person is a
director* or a body that such person has a
beneficial interest in the securities of*) and
the council
(@) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed;
and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within
the area of the council.

‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude,
interest or right in or over land which does
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another) a
right to occupy or to receive income.

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to
occupy land in the area of the council for a
month or longer

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s

knowledge)—

(@) the landlord is the council; and

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or
his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living
as if they were spouses/ civil partners is
a partner of or a director* of or has a
beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a

body where—

(a) that body (to the councillor's knowledge)
has a place of business or land in the
area of the council; and

(b) either—

i. the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or
one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that body; or

ii.  if the share capital of that body is
of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of
any one class in which the
councillor, or his/ her spouse or
civil partner or the person with
whom the councillor is living as if
they were spouses/civil partners
has a beneficial interest exceeds
one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that class.

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident
society.
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building
society.

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely
to affect:

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are
nominated or appointed by your authority

b) any body

i.  exercising functions of a public nature
ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union)

Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL

TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Tynedale Local Area Council held at County Hall, Morpeth on
Tuesday, 10 May 2022 at 4.00 p.m.

Ch.’s Initials

PRESENT

Councillor T Cessford
(Chair, in the Chair)

MEMBERS

A Dale

SH Fairless-Aitken
C Horncastle

| Hutchinson

D Kennedy

N Morphet

OFFICERS

K Blyth

M Bulman
A Fisher
D Hunt

R McCartney
E Sinnamon
N Snowdon

N Turnbull

ALSO PRESENT

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

MINUTES

Minute No. 101

Page 1

N Oliver

JR Riddle
A Sharp

G Stewart
HR Waddell

Planning Area Manager (West)
Solicitor

Construction Manager
Neighbourhood Services Area
Manager

Infrastructure Manager
Development Service Manager
Principal Programme Officer
(Highways Improvement)
Democratic Services Officer

K. McGuiness, Police Crime Commissioner and colleague
F. Forsythe and Dr M Chainey, Tyne Valley Community Rail Partnership
12 members of the public and 1 representative from the press.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Scott.



Ch.’s Initials

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans

The 9% bullet point on page 14 of the minutes be amended to read:

‘Facilities were needed to enable residents to use cycles as part of a longer
journey as currently there was a limit of 2 cycles on some trains and very few
busses accepted cycles.’

Minute No. 99bii)
Petition - Allendale Road, Hexham

Councillor Dale queried the procedure regarding amendments to
recommendations. The Solicitor obtained clarification that the minute was
correct and agreed to provide advice regarding motions outside of the
meeting.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Tynedale Local Area
Council, as circulated, be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair,
subject to the above amendment.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT MEETINGS

The Chair advised members of the procedure which would be followed at the
meeting.

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The committee was requested to decide the planning applications attached to
the report using the powers delegated to it. Members were reminded of the
principles which should govern their consideration of the applications, the
procedure for handling representations, the requirement of conditions and the
need for justifiable reasons for the granting of permission or refusal of
planning applications.

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

21/03959/FUL
Resubmission: Erection of rural worker's dwelling
Land South of Woodside Cottage, Bardon Mill, Northumberland

The Planning Area Manager (West) introduced the application with the aid of a
powerpoint presentation and advised that there were no updates following
publication of the report.

Miss Ferguson, agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the application.
She highlighted the following:-

Page 2



Ch.’s Initials

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022

The owners had commenced discussions with her four years previously
due to there being a genuine and pressing need on the farm for two
workers to care adequately for their livestock. This had led to the son
living in a caravan on the farm for most of his adult life.

The process had been delayed due to Covid, staff shortages and the sadly

the death of the applicant’s wife before the appeal hearing.

The report concluded that there was a clear functional need on the farm

for a second worker to live there, otherwise there it would result in harm to

the livestock and the business. It was imperative that the livestock had
year-round care including nighttime calving and lambing.

The report also concluded that the business was financially viable and had

a reasonable prospect of remaining so. The family had farmed there for

four generations.

The only issue in dispute was the availability and suitability or otherwise of

an existing dwelling, ‘Keeper’s Cottage’, to meet the need. This was the

reason the Inspector dismissed an appeal for a larger house two years
ago and the recommended reason for refusal.

Keeper’s Cotttage was a private investment with the income being part of

the applicant’s pension planning. It was also succession planning and

was to be left to his daughter, whilst the son would inherit the farm in
which he was now a partner. The alternative was that the farm be split
upon the death of the applicant which would be to its detriment.

Paragraph 10 of planning practice guidance states that a decision maker

could take into account the fact that a new dwelling on site is essential for

the continued viability of a farming business through the farm succession
process. The Inspector overlooked this material consideration, and it is
also not mentioned in the committee report.

They were of the view that Keeper’'s Cottage was beyond the means of a

farm worker and was rented out with stables and land. The appeal

Inspector considered that the cost of building the new dwelling would not

be dissimilar to the rent for Keepers Cottage, assuming that the house

was separated from the land and stables and a reduced rent was
accepted.

They believed that there was an error within the Inspector’s decision at

paragraph 10 that the daughter owned the house, which was not true at

that time.

In a letter to the Council, the daughter states that she would not consent to

a reduction in the rental income of her investment. Nor does she consider

it reasonable to evict long-standing tenants from the property. She has no

financial interest in the farm.

Significant changes since the appeal hearing which should be taken into

account when arriving at a decision include:

- The size of the proposed dwelling has been reduced to make it
cheaper to build.

- The daughter had inherited a 50% share in Keeper’s Cottage and
confirmed that she would not accept a reduced rent for it or permit the
eviction of the current tenants.

- The son has been made partner in the farm, securing his future in the
business and the farm’s succession.

Page 3



Mr

- The rent at Keeper’'s Cottage had been reviewed and had increased
from £1000 to £1500 per month, making it even less viable for the son
to rent.

Ridley Farm was a successful farming business as a result of the

commitment and hard work of the applicant and his son. It was the sort of

rural businesses that planning and the Council should look to support and
protect. They hoped that Members would therefore grant permission.

Ferguson, the applicant, added they wanted to keep a young person on

the farm in a tied agricultural cottage. It was difficult to get young people
involved in farming and important not to lose valuable skills. They needed to
do everything necessary to keep young people involved.

In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following
information was provided:-

Ch.’s Initials.........

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022

The availability of properties on site which would meet the needs of the
farming enterprise needed to be explored. Those properties did not need
to be owned by the farm or the family.

The Inspectors decision on a similar proposal was that it had not been
demonstrated that there was no other suitable accommodation in the area
which would meet the needs of the farming enterprise and available to a
farm worker.

The intention of the family did not mean that Keeper’'s Cottage was
unavailable.

Information received with this application stated that the secure tenancy
benefitted from succession which differed to the information submitted with
the previous application. An independent assessment carried out on
behalf of the Council by Alan Jackson stated that as the tenancy of the
farm was granted after 1984, it was only secure for the lifetime of the
applicant with no succession rights. However, it was expected that the
agricultural tenancy would pass from father to son on the father’'s
retirement.

NLP Policy HOU 8 states that the development of isolated homes in the
open countryside will only be supported where:

a. There is an essential and clearly established need for a full-time rural
worker necessary to meet the operational needs of a rural business to live
permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside, and where it
can be demonstrated that:

I. The business is financially sound and viable with a clear prospect of
remaining so, the activity and landholding units concerned having been
established for at least three years and been profitable for at least one of
those last three years; and

ii. The functional need could not be fulfilled by any existing dwelling on the
landholding unit or any other existing accommodation in the immediate
area, which is suitable (including by means of refurbishment or appropriate
extension) and potentially available for occupation by the workers
concerned.

The aforementioned policy required consideration of suitable properties in
the area. They did not need to be owned by the farm or the family.
Officers had concluded that Keeper’s Cottage could be made available. If

Page 4



Ch.’s Initials

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022

Members concluded differently, this could be justification for a decision
that the application be granted.

e The application under consideration was smaller than the property
considered by the Inspector.

¢ Eviction of a short-term tenant of Keeper's Cottage was not a material
planning consideration.

e The costs of building the smaller property had been reviewed by Alan
Jackson and had not found a significant difference between the rent on
Keeper’s Cottage and the annual costs of constructing and fitting out a
new dwelling.

e The Inspector had concluded that Keeper's Cottage was not economically
unviable for use as a rural worker’'s dwelling.

e The rent of Keeper's Cottage had been set by the family and had not been
tested.

Councillor Hutchinson proposed that the application be granted planning
permission, contrary to the officer recommendation, and that the wording of
conditions to be delegated to the Director of Planning with the agreement of
the Chair, including an agricultural occupancy condition. It was accepted that
the business satisfied the tests in Northumberland Local Plan Policy HOU 8
and required 2 workers to reside at or near the farm. Keeper’s Cottage was
privately owned and was not available as a rural worker cottage and at an
affordable rent for a rural worker and there was not suitable alternative
accommodation elsewhere in the vicinity of the farm.

This was seconded by Councillor Sharp.

There was some concern regarding the view taken on other applications of a
similar nature and setting a precedent for applications in the future. Other
members were familiar with the business and believed there was a genuine
need for a rural workers cottage and did not agree with the Inspector that
there was an available property on site. They also commented that each
application was judged on its own merits.

Upon being put to the vote the results were as follows: -
FOR: 8; AGAINST: 3; ABSTENTION: 1.

RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED permission and that the
wording of conditions to be delegated to the Director of Planning with the
agreement of the Chair, including a condition ensuring that occupation is
limited to a rural worker only.

20/03425/FUL

Development of 9 no. residential dwellings (100% affordable) including
associated access, car parking, landscaping and all other ancillary works
(amended layout and housing mix)

Land North of Piper Road, Piper Road, Ovingham, Northumberland

The Planning Area Manager (West) introduced the application with the aid of a
powerpoint presentation and explained that the application had previously

Page 5



been considered by the committee on 15 February 2022 although the Section
106 agreement had not been completed prior to the adoption of the
Northumberland Local Plan (NLP) on 30 March 2022. The Section 106 would
now only look to secure affordable housing on the site and no longer include a
financial requirement to contribute to sport and play provision. Adoption of the
Northumberland Local Plan had not changed the previous suitability
assessment although the report and conditions had been updated to reflect
the adopted Northumberland Local Plan policies and include additional
conditions no. 30 for accessible housing and no. 31 climate change mitigation.
She added that condition no 31 should be amended to refer to Policy STP4
and an additional condition no. 32 be added regarding broadband, see below:

In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following
information was provided:-

e The conditions and informative would be checked to ensure that the
wording agreed last time regarding the size of plants for replacement
hedging was repeated in this application.

e A condition regarding EV chargers had been included.

¢ Tynedale had been in the minority with regard to former policies which
sought contributions under Section 106 agreements for sport and play
provision. Overall, the new plan would deliver better infrastructure across
the county.

¢ It was disappointing that the decision notice had not been issued prior to
adoption of the Northumberland Local Plan, the number of units proposed
at this site was under the new threshold of 10 units. Whilst a contribution
from this site could not be obtained for sport and play provision, funds for
Ovingham could be available from a cumulative fund.

e |t was confirmed that all of the units would be affordable housing for rent
and managed by a social housing landlord.

e An additional condition regarding broadband was to be added in
accordance with the new NLP policy ICTZ which required that fibre
broadband be provided in rural areas.

e Officers could not speculate on the familiarity of the applicant with the new
NLP and thresholds contained within its policies.

e |t was agreed that good design did not have to be expensive, and officers
would seek to increase design standards under the NLP.

e There was no specific policy which stated that EV chargers or solar panels
must be installed at a site. However, condition no. 31 required details of
proposals to minimise use of resources and mitigate and adapt to climate
change before construction; developers could not refuse to incorporate
measures such as the aforementioned.

The Development Service Manager agreed to obtain a briefing paper from
Strategic Service Manger to explain the changes and benefits of the new plan
in relation to Section 106 agreements.

Councillor Oliver proposed acceptance of the recommendation to approve the
application subject to:
e Completion of a Section 106 agreement for affordable housing.

Ch.s Initials.........
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 6

Page 6



Ch.’s Initials

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022

Amendment of condition no 31 to refer to Policy STP4.

Inclusion of an additional condition regarding provision of broadband.
Provision of EV chargers for every property.

The wording of conditions to be delegated to the Director of Planning with
the agreement of the Chair.

This was seconded by Councillor Kennedy.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED permission for the reasons and
with the conditions as outlined in the report and subject to:

Completion of a Section 106 agreement for affordable housing.
Amendment of condition no 31 to refer to Policy STP4.

Inclusion of an additional condition regarding provision of broadband.
Provision of EC chargers for every property.

The wording of conditions to be delegated to the Director of Planning with
the agreement of the Chair.

Councillor Riddle left the meeting whilst the following application was
discussed.

20/02417/FUL

Residential development of 9 detached and semi-detached dwellings,
single and two storey, plus associated infrastructure works (amended
description)

Land North of Lonkley Lodge, Lonkley Head, Allendale, Northumberland

The Planning Area Manager (West) introduced the application with the aid of a
powerpoint presentation and explained that the application had previously
been considered by the committee on 10 August 2021 although the Section
106 agreement had not been completed prior to the adoption of the
Northumberland Local Plan (NLP) on 30 March 2022. There was no longer a
requirement to include a Section 106 agreement to seek a financial
contribution for sport and play provision. Adoption of the Northumberland
Local Plan had not changed the previous suitability assessment although the
report and conditions had been updated to reflect the adopted
Northumberland Local Plan policies and include additional conditions for
accessible housing, climate change mitigation, reference to policy STP 4 and
broadband, see below:

Mr. P. Barber spoke in objection to the application and raised the following
concerns:

e Flood risk. Whilst the inclusion of condition no 21 was welcomed to deal
with foul and surface water from the development, as it was drafted it did
not specify changes to the existing drainage systems.

e 2 properties were to be built over an underground conduit and it was
suggested that condition no. 21 should include reference to rerouting of

Page 7



Ch.’s Initials

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022

any existing water carrying cundies or conduits, otherwise there was a
potential flood risk, and their objections would need to be maintained.
The deliverable 5-year housing supply equated to 10.9 years across the
county and therefore there appeared to be no need to approve the
proposal in terms of housing need.

The local perception of housing need was for smaller, more affordable
houses than larger and more expensive units which would be purchased
by wealthier families moving to Allendale.

There was a covenant which prohibited development of the land and the
current beneficiary of the covenant had confirmed that they had not been
contacted regarding its removal. The availability of the land was therefore
queried and that the covenant issues should be dealt with before building
commenced to ensure that it did not become an abandoned building site.

Parish Councillor Mike Kirk stated that the Parish Council were concerned
regarding the loss of the Section 106 contribution for sport and play. However,
he had listened to the discussion on the previous application and understood
the explanation. He requested that a copy of the briefing paper be shared with
all parish councils so they could better understand the replacement policies

and

funding arrangements.

Mr. A. Herdman, agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the

app

lication. He wished to address the following points raised by the

objectors:-

It had not been in the developer’s interest not to progress matters as they
had raised finance to purchase the land. If they did not sell the houses,
they did not make money.

The application had previously been approved in August 2021 which had
led to the purchase of the land and an application to change ownership
with the Land Registry in September 2021. Due to staff shortages at the
Land Registry, this had not been completed and received until March
2022. The Council’s legal section had been unable to progress the
Section 106 agreement until the title had been in the applicant’s name.
The delay had not been of benefit to the developer or the architect.

There had been no changes to the proposals from August 2021 and that
the principles of the development complied with the Northumberland Local
Plan.

Lengthy discussions had been held with Northumbria Water and the Lead
Local Flood Authority regarding drainage and the risk of flooding to ensure
that the design and calculations dealt with surface water. The proposed
conditions specified the quantity and rate that could be put in the network
and costly measures for underground storage.

The development consisted of 2-4 bedroom dwellings with a mix of single
and two storey, detached and semi-detached properties. The cost of
houses had increased rapidly in the UK due to there not being enough
houses.

The issue with the covenant was not a planning matter. If land had been
purchased which could not be developed, this was not relevant to the
planning decision.

Page 8



In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following
information was provided: -

e The covenant issue was not one which was considered by officers when
considering the planning application. Whether the site could be developed
was a separate issue.

¢ A new decision was required, although there had been no changes to the
plans and the principle of development had been accepted at the previous
meeting. The report had therefore been updated to reflect policies and
conditions in the newly adopted Northumberland Local Plan which no
longer included a requirement for sport and play provision.

e Condition no. 35 was similar to condition no. 31 on the previous
application (20/03425/FUL) discussed earlier in the meeting. It was also
agreed that it would be helpful to include informative no.14 from the
aforementioned application.

e The minutes of the meeting on 10 August 2021 and conditions agreed
would be checked and replicated to ensure that protective measures
around the pond did not exclude wildlife. It was suggested that this could
be included in the landscaping condition as SUDS water features acted as
a natural draw to children, they therefore needed to meet health and
safety requirements whilst ensuring that there were also ecological
benefits.

e Condition no. 16 would be amended to remove repeated wording.

Councillor Dale proposed acceptance of the recommendation to approve the
application subject to:

Amendment of condition no. 35 to refer to Policy STP4.

Inclusion of an additional condition regarding provision of broadband.
Amendment of condition no. 16 to remove repetitive wording.

The wording of condition no. 10 on landscaping to include details
regarding safety measures and fencing to be provided around the pond.
Informative no. 14 from 20/03425/FUL be included.

e Delegated authority be given to the Director of Planning, following
consultation with the Chair regarding the additional wording/conditions.

This was seconded by Councillor Stewart.

Members expressed their disappointment regarding the loss of funding from
the Section 106 agreement which would have been of benefit to facilities in
Allendale. It was also disappointing that the number of units was below the
threshold where there would have needed to be some provision for affordable
housing.

Upon being put to the vote the results were as follows: -
FOR: 10; AGAINST: 1; ABSTENTION: 0.

RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED permission for the reasons and
with the conditions as outlined in the report and subject to:

Ch.s Initials.........
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 9

Page 9



Amendment of condition no. 35 to refer to Policy STPA4.

Inclusion of an additional condition regarding provision of broadband.
Amendment of condition no. 16 to remove repetitive wording.

The wording of condition no. 10 on landscaping to include details and
regarding safety measures and fencing to be provided around the pond.
Informative no. 14 from 20/03425/FUL be included.

e Delegated authority be given to the Director of Planning, following
consultation with the Chair regarding the additional wording/conditions.

8. PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE
The report provided information on the progress of planning appeals.

Councillor Dale requested that her thanks be given to Melanie Francis for the
work to defend the Council on the appeal in respect of 20/01932/FUL Land
South of Church Lane, Riding Mill, which had been a particularly difficult
appeal.

RESOLVED that the information be noted.
Councillor Horncastle left the meeting.

The meeting adjourned at 5.55 p.m. until 6.05 p.m.

LOCAL AREA COUNCIL BUSINESS
9. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no questions from members of the public.

10. POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER

The Police and Crime Commissioner, Kim McGuinness was in attendance to
give an overview of policing and community safety matters in the Tynedale
area. She raised the following points:

e The role of the Police and Crime Commissioner was to determine strategic
policies and was not involved in operational decisions.

e The 'Fighting Poverty, Fighting Crime' campaign focused on the root
causes of offending by tackling deprivation and unemployment.

e A reduction in the number of police officers meant that they needed to
focus on prevention.

e Unfortunately, there was a positive link between poverty and crime.

e Operation Payback was a funding initiative sourced from the proceeds of
crime. Applications for grants could be made twice per year from
community groups that that supported vulnerable people or projects that
provided diversionary activities to help tackle anti-social behaviour.
Allendale Youth Ambition had been successful in a recent bid.
Applications would be open in June 2022 from organisations in

Ch.s Initials.........
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 10

Page 10



Northumberland for grants up to £5,000 to provide activities during the
summer holidays.

Rural crime, including theft of vehicles and machinery, was being
addressed by tackling organised criminal groups, FarmWatch schemes
and Operation Checkpoint.

Northumberland and the police force region were very safe areas.

She provided the following information in response to questions:

Ch.’s Initials........

They were working on plans for the former police houses in Fairfield,
Hexham which had previously been identified for sale. She agreed to
liaise with Councillor Kennedy.

There had been drug related deaths and crime in Haltwhistle which was
uncharacteristic of the area and needed a two-pronged approach with
preventative work. There had been drug related arrests and a recent
substantial sentence for the supply of drugs by one individual. They
needed to raise awareness with the community of the consequences.
Other methods of consultation and engagement were being used instead
of the local multi agency panels. They welcomed discussions to find
alternative ways of working with partners, but they could not be funded
from the proceeds of crime fund. Members expressed concern that their
involvement and local knowledge was lost when LMAPSs had ceased.

The recruitment of new police officers was going well with 423 new officers
in post out of the allocation of 615. However, they did not entirely replace
the 1,100 officers that had previously been lost when austerity measures
had been implemented.

Whilst unemployment was an issue, more people were living in poverty
which had a huge impact on crime and the victims of crime.

The role of the Police and Crime Commissioner did not involve operational
matters. They hoped to influence the environment and ask questions,
which could be seen as political.

She was attending each of the Northumberland Local Area Council’s to
address issues relevant to the different areas of the county. She agreed
that it was important to acknowledge the causes of problems and
commented that there had been a significant reduction in money spent on
youth services in the last 12 years which had led to an increase in youth
disorder.

Implementation of drug testing within schools was not within her authority.
However, a pilot drug test on arrest scheme in Newcastle was to be rolled
out across the force area.

She was very proud of the Violence Reduction Unit and their work to
prevent young people becoming vulnerable to drugs and targeting those
that made their living out of selling drugs.

The decision to close police stations had been an operational one
following an in-depth analysis regarding their use. The Police and Crime
Commissioner would not have been involved in that decision.
Unfortunately, they did not have the funds to reopen police stations and
her preference was to employ more officers than provide desks.
Comments regarding the consultation process in Prudhoe would be
passed to the relevant section.

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 11

Page 11



11.

Ch.’s Initials

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022

e The allocation of seats on the Northumbria Police and Crime Panel was
determined by the Council and its administration.

Several of the Members thanked the Police Crime Commissioner and police
officers for their work keeping residents safe in Northumberland.

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

PETITIONS

This item was to:

a) Receive any new petitions:

There were no new petitions.

b) Consider reports on petitions previously received:
i) Dangerous Road (Peth Head, Hexham)

Catherine Bell, Lead Petitioner, explained the background leading to the
current position on Peth Head. She commented as follows:

e The new bus station had opened on Dene Avenue in 2016 with measures
to control the traffic including traffic lights, speed bumps and roundabouts.
It was a busy 20 mph road with large volumes of vehicles which had been
successfully calmed, creating a safer road for drivers and pedestrians.

e Dene Street and Peth Head ran parallel to the main road. The latter being
a small side street designed for light traffic in an area populated by
families, pensioners and with a vet practice. It was also 20 mph but with
no signage or speed restrictions in place.

e The traffic calming measures on Dene Avenue had worked so well that
drivers diverted their vehicles on alternative routes to bypass the main
road which meant that there was a new main route without any of the
traffic calming methods instigated on the intended main road.

e Between 8am — 10pm vehicles of all sizes, including buses, lorries, car
carriers, logger wagons, school vehicles and buses, tractors, sheep
transporters etc. used the street as a ‘rat run’ to avoid the roundabouts,
traffic lights and speed bumps and disregarded the speed limit. It was
suggested that if this was now the main road, it should have the same
traffic calming measures as the other road.

e The lanes on Peth Head were 8 foot 9 inches wide whereas the lanes on
Corrbridge Road were 12 feet 6 inches wide. The average width of a
logging wagon, bus or car transporter was 8 foot 4 inches, without wing
mirrors. This meant there was under 5 inches spare on Peth Head
compared to 3 foot 9 inches spare on the main road. It could not be safer
for larger vehicles to use the alternate route so it must be quicker due to
there being no enforceable speed restrictions, despite both being 20mph.
The main road was purposely built to accommodate large vehicles turning
which Peth Head was not and observance of the speed limit was
questioned.

12

Page 12



¢ Quotes from residents referred to the structural damage from larger
vehicles, difficulties crossing roads, the speed of vehicles, limited visibility,
the dangers of using the road.

The Chair commented on his familiarity with the roads and the issues that the
lead petitioner had raised.

Neil Snowdon, Principal Programme Officer (Highways Improvement),
reported that the area office had been asked to arrange additional repeater
signs in the areas and that 20 mph road marking roundels be provided at both
entrances to Peth Head. A speed survey would also be carried out to
determine actual vehicle speeds.

Several of the members expressed their support for the petition as vehicle
speed and road safety was a concern and had been highlighted by one of the
Councillors several months previously.

Robin McCartney, Infrastructure Manager, referred to the usefulness of site
visit which had been held the previous week. He agreed with the comments
made regarding the perception of speed and the difficulties crossing the road.
He provided the following information in response to questions:

e The Highways mailbox received 300-400 emails per month and confirmed
that the unanswered email would be investigated.

e An explanation of the Local Transport Plan process which required speed /
traffic surveys; unfortunately, there was a backlog of requests. Those
identified as a priority were carried out within 1-2 months, however there
was an average waiting time of approximately 6/7 months whilst some had
taken up to 12 months to be carried out. Officers were trying to improve
communication and performance monitoring. Stage 2 required funding for
a feasibility study if the traffic survey results indicated that this was
required. Schemes had to be assessed and ranked against each other to
determine the priority for the next round of the LTP programme.
Depending on the conclusions, stage 3 required that if physical measures
were required to be installed, a scheme be assessed and prioritised
against others in the next financial year.

e If the survey identified that safety measures needed to be implemented
quickly, this would need to be discussed with Members and a business
case made to obtain support. Members Local Improvement Scheme
funds could also be used to support and hasten projects

e Construction of pedestrian crossings could cost in excess of £100,000.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted and the following
proposed actions be supported:

a) Introduction of additional repeater signs and 20mph roundels (road
markings) to be provided at either end of Peth Head.

b) A speed survey be arranged to assess actual vehicle speeds. Depending
on the outcomes of the survey, consideration be given to whether any
further measures would be appropriate.

Ch.s Initials.........
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 13

Page 13



12.

Ch.’s Initials

c) To consider updates on petitions previously considered:

There were none to consider.

LOCAL SERVICES UPDATE

Members received the following updates from the Area Managers from
Neighbourhood Services and Technical Services:

Technical Services:

e The winter services period had now finished and had been mostly
relatively mild. All staff involved were thanked for their participation.

e Preparation for surface dressing works had been taking place over the last
6 weeks for 11 schemes in the Tynedale area and over 450,000m2 across
the county.

e Work on LTP schemes would commence in June. A one-way system was
to be implemented for Hencotes in Hexham during the 6-week summer
holidays.

e The number of actionable defects had continued to reduce over the last
few months.

e The Tynedale area had received a new hot box which meant that more
repairs could be carried out each day. A new gulley wagon had also been
delivered and was working around the programmed route and also
responding to issues raised.

e A dedicated drainage gang continued to work in the area renewing gulley
pots, cross drains and ditching as well as visiting known problem areas
including several locations in Haltwhistle, Newbrough and Riding Mill.

e A number of Members schemes had been programmed.

e Visits to wards could be arranged with the Highways Delivery Area
Manager on request.

The following issues were discussed:

e Resurfacing work around Hexham High School was scheduled to take
place during the Autumn half term school holiday.

e Councillor requested gulleys be cleaned on the A695 at Riding Mill and
agreed to email a list of locations after the meeting.

e Timing of repair work from a vehicle collision with the Shambles was
queried and whether it could be completed before anniversary
celebrations due to take place in October. It was noted Property Services
were coordinating repairs from the motor vehicle accident as well as some
electrical work and whether listed building consent was required.

Scheme start dates and updates would be provided to Councillors Kennedy,
Fairless-Aitken, Stewart, Waddell, Hutchinson,

Councillor Riddle reported that discussions were ongoing regarding design
work on Allendale Road which were expected by the end of July. They were
taking account of work at the school, could possibly include 20 mph on the

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 14

Page 14



lower section and whether a physical chicane was necessary or if it would
create additional road safety concerns for HGV movement.

Neighbourhood Services:

Residual and recycling waste collection services continued to perform
well.

The service was under significant strain from the loss of HGV drivers.
Recruitment has proved difficult given the national shortage of HGV
drivers and options were being explored including a new job advert
strategy.

Changes had been required at times to meet demand for the bulky waste
service, which was constantly monitored, and extra booking slots created
to meet the target of collection within 8 days.

There were nearly 7,200 garden waste customers in the Tynedale area.
Grass cutting had commenced with 2 or 3 cuts having been carried out
which was what was expected with an approximate 3-week cycle. Some
delays had been experienced due to wet weather around the bank holiday
weekend.

Weed spraying had commenced and would be carried out over the next 4-
6 weeks period if weather conditions permitted. This was not during wet
or windy conditions. Any areas of particular concern should be reported to
the officers.

Verge cutting was expected to take place in June and July.

Responses to issues raised by Councillors included:

Issues regarding contamination of recycling bins were now being
investigated by newly appointed officers. Households were normally given
a warning letter with contaminated recycling bins emptied with the next
residual waste collection. Recycling would then recommence once the bin
was emptied.

Glass could not currently be disposed of in the recycling bins as the
processing plant for waste from Northumberland was unable to segregate
materials when glass broke. A glass recycling trial was taking place within
4 areas of the county to enable the Council to collect data when
Government funding became available. A food waste trial was also
proposed be held in the near future.

RESOLVED that the updates be noted.

13. TYNE VALLEY COMMUNITY RAIL PARTNERSHIP

Fiona Forsyth, Community Rail Partnership Officer and Dr Malcolm Chainey,
Chair, were in attendance to explain the role of the partnership in delivering
the Department for Transport's Community Rail Strategy. (A copy of the
power point presentation was enclosed with the signed minutes and would be
circulated electronically after the meeting):

The presentation highlighted:

Ch.’s Initials.......

Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 15

Page 15



e The background and composition of the partnership. They were founded in
2004 and provided a link between communities and the rail industry.

e Tyne Valley Rail User's Group was a separate organisation with some
overlapping aims.

e Community rail was originally developed to safeguard the future of local
lines. The latest strategy was published in 2018 by the Department of
Transport ‘Connecting Communities with the Railways.

e Delivery of four key pillars:

- providing a voice for the community

- promoting sustainable, healthy and accessible travel

- bringing communities together and supporting diversity and inclusion
- supporting social and economic development.

e They worked with the rail industry, shareholders and education
establishments across all age groups.

e There were 70 community rail partnerships across the UK. With the
assistance of volunteers, they worked to increase passenger numbers on
community rail lines.

e The Tyne Valley Community Rail Partnership were based at the Booking
Hall in Haltwhistle which was used for meetings and also for free
educational visits for schools which included train travel.

e They worked with the local Rail Academy at Newcastle College which to
develop the skills required for rail employees and promoted the area as a
visitor attraction at railway stations such as Glasgow and Teeside.

e With the support of CrossCountry they had previously provided a student
with a marketing internship. It was hoped that this could be repeated in
the future.

e Delivery of an anti-trespass competition, Backtrack, as well as inclusion
competitions such as Lyric and Line which explored reasons (and barriers)
to travel, through music and song.

e Current projects included revival of the waiting rooms and redundant
wooden buildings at Haltwhistle Railway Station.

e A review of the buildings, facilities and environment of the stations on the
Tyne Valley Line had been undertaken by the Infrastructure Director to
consider accessibility issues and develop projects should funding streams
become available.

e Assistance could be provided by:

- Working with them to improve stations.

- Promotion of their education work.

- Promotion of their inclusion work

- Improve the interface between County and Railway.

Information provided in response to questions, included:

e Post pandemic, the railway required large amounts of public funding to
keep it running. It was critical that the timetable met people’s needs and
that trains ran at the right time to enable connection with busses and the
metro to increase passenger numbers. It was vital that these did not
reduce further. Through ticketing would also be beneficial.

Ch.s Initials.........
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 16

Page 16



e Passenger numbers were increasing. Data was normally published
annually in December for the previous financial year. They were also
provided with some confidential Northern ticket sales data. The
information was used to determine where efforts should be directed to
target stations or journeys which were not being used.

e The difficulties of travelling with cycles was acknowledged given the
restrictions on local trains and inability to make a reservation. The type of
train used also determined how many cycles could be transported at a
time. Some of the rolling stock was not adaptable. They had spoken to
Northern who were looking at engineering solutions, but change was
difficult and slow. They requested that members used their contacts to
lobby the Government.

e Marketing opportunities were to be explored for off-peak leisure travel
which would ‘smooth’ the number of users at peak travel times.

e Use of public transport was increasing and had been seen by increasing
vehicle numbers at Prudhoe train station.

Members commented that some stations were well used but that poor lighting
was a deterrent to potential passengers at others. Other issues included the
availability of shelter on platforms and the timetable. A Councillor intended to
enquire whether the Members Local Improvement Scheme fund could be used
to help finance improvements at his local railway station(s).

RESOLVED that the presentation be received and that the comments be
noted.

14. OUTSIDE BODIES
Members considered a list of appointments to outside bodies for 2022/23.
RESOLVED that the following list of appointments be confirmed:
e Groundwork North East - Land of Oak and Iron Project Board — G
Stewart
e Haltwhistle Partnership Limited - A Sharp
e Haltwhistle Swimming & Leisure Centre Man. Cttee - A Sharp
e Hexham TORCH Centre Management Committee - T Cessford
e Prudhoe Community Partnership — A Scott
e Queens Hall Arts Trust — SH Fairless-Aitken
e Sport Tynedale — N Oliver
e Tyne Valley Community Rail Partnership Board — H Waddell
15. MEMBERS LOCAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEMES - PROGRESS REPORT
The Local Area Council received a progress update on Members’ Local
Improvement Schemes as at 1 March 2022. (A copy of the report is enclosed
with the minutes.)
RESOLVED that the report be noted.
Ch.s Initials.........
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022 17

Page 17



16. LOCAL AREA COUNCIL WORK PROGRAMME

A list of agreed items for future Local Area Council meetings was circulated.
(A copy is enclosed with the minutes.)

Members were invited to email any requests to the Chair and / or Democratic
Services Officer between meetings.

RESOLVED that the work programme be noted.

17. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting would be held on Tuesday 14 June 2022 at 4.00 p.m.

CHAIR

DATE

Ch.s Initials.........
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 May 2022

Page 18

18



Agenda Iltem 5

iy

Northumberland

County Council

TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL
14 June 2022

REVIEW OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT
OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY

ALLEGED RESTRICTED BYWAY No 62
PARISH OF BARDON MILL

Report of the Executive Director of Local Services
Cabinet Member: Councillor Jeff Watson, Healthy Lives

Purpose of report

In this report, the Tynedale Local Area Council is asked to consider all the relevant
evidence gathered in support and in rebuttal of the existence of restricted byway
rights over a route (the majority of which is identified as the U7044 road on the
Council’'s List of Streets) from the B6318 road, south-west of Housesteads, in a
general northerly then north-easterly direction to a point south-east of East Hotbank.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Local Area Council agrees that:

() there is sufficient evidence to indicate that public vehicular rights .
have been reasonably alleged to exist over the route S-X-R-P-Q;

(ii)  the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 would
appear to have extinguished the public’s motorized vehicular
rights over the S-X part of the route;

(iii) by virtue of common law (see Kotegaonkar V SoS for EFRA [2012])
the public’s motorized vehicular rights would also appear to have
been extinguished over the X-R-P-Q part of the route;

(iv)  the whole route be included in a future Definitive Map Modification
Order as a restricted byway.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 By virtue of section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981 the County
Council is required to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under
continuous review and make modification orders upon the discovery of
evidence, which shows that the map and statement need to be modified.

Page 19



1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

The relevant statutory provision which applies to adding a public right of way
to the Definitive Map and Statement, based on historical documentary
evidence, is Section 53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981. This
requires the County Council (as Surveying Authority) to modify the Definitive
Map and Statement following:

“the discovery by the authority of evidence which (when considered with all
other relevant evidence available to them) shows:

“that a right of way which is not shown in the map and statement
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area to
which the map relates, being a right of way such that the land over
which the right subsists is a public path, a restricted byway or, subject
o section 54A, a byway open to all traffic;” '

All the relevant statutory provisions and competing rights and interests have
been considered in making this report. The recommendations are in
accordance with the law and proportionate, having regard to individuals’ rights
and the public interest.

PUBLIC EVIDENCE

In the late 1980s the County Council carried out consultations regarding
proposals to add a number of unsealed tracks in the north of the County to the
Definitive Map as byways open to all traffic on the basis that the routes were
included in the County Council's “List of Streets” as unclassified County roads
(UCR). The rationale for doing so was that it would not be obvious to
members of the public (particularly horse riders, walkers. and cyclists) that they
were legally entitled to use routes such as these (which were considered to
have vehicular status), because their physical appearance might suggest
otherwise.

The view, held by those officers of the Council responsible for maintaining the
‘List of Streets’ for the County of Northumberland was (and still is) that only
public roads (not public bridleways or public footpaths) were shown on this
List. The only exceptions to this are the surfaced paths and alleyways
providing pedestrian links between roads, in urban areas. Thus, tracks in rural
settings, which have their own unique reference numbers (e.g. the ‘U7044’
road), were considered to be all-purpose public highways maintainable at
public expense.

Shortly afterwards, the processing of applications from third parties seeking to
record public footpath or public bridleway rights was afforded a higher priority.
Later on, the process of recording UCRs as byways open to all traffic was
effectively suspended because the Ordnance Survey indicated that they would
be showing such routes on their published maps as being an “Other route with
public access”. Although, on that basis, members of the public would still be

‘unclear as to precisely what rights they had over routes identified in this

fashion.

The most recent advice from DEFRA (paragraph 4.42, Rights of Way Circular
1/09) is that inclusion on the List of Streets may provide evidence of vehicular
rights but that this should be examined on a case by case basis. In view of
this advice, it is considered prudent to evaluate the status of the U7044

Page 20



3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

unclassified County road based upon more than simply its inclusion in the List
of Streets.

LANDOWNER EVIDENCE

To date, no landowner comments have been received.

CONSULTATION

in May 2021, the Council carried out a consultation with the Parish Council,
known owners and occupiers of the land, the local County Councillor and the
local representatives of the “prescribed and local organisations” listed in the
Council's “Code of Practice on Consultation for Public Path Orders”. Three
replies were received and are included below.

By email, on 8 August 2021, Cycling UK responded to the
consultation, stating:

“10. RB 62.

S to R: existing BOAT

R to P: existing access (Pennine Way)

P to Q existing access

Support = Academic '

Comment: Motors would ruin S to R (due to Hadrian's Wall) and wreck
RioP.”

By email, on 27 August 2021, the British Horse Society responded to the
consultation, stating:

“Alleged restricted byway 62. Plan 10.

“This route is well defined on the ground and much of it is well used by
the public. However it is shown as a dead end at Q on the parish
boundary, at a point called ‘King’s Crag Gate'. The name suggests that
it continues beyond this point.

“On the tithe award plan for Simonburn parish & township dated 1840, a
road is shown going east across the common, which is labelled ‘Drift
Road from Scotland to Stagshaw Bank'. It crosses the boundary
between the parishes of Haltwhistle and Simonburn in an area that is
labelled ‘Haughton Green Estate’. From a study of old maps, it can be
seen that Haughton Green was a local hub of routes that had crossed
open country, so of considerably greater importance than it has today.

“In ‘A History of Northumberland in Three Parts. Part 2, Volume 2’ by
John Hodgson, which was published in 1832, the history of the estate
that included Haughton Green can be followed from the 17th century
when it passed from the Widdrington family to that of Sir Thomas
Riddell on the marriage of his son.

“The area is now covered in mature forest and only a bothy is {o be
found there.

Page 21



4.4

5.1

“There seems little point in upgrading a route that results in a dead end
so it is suggested that its continuation eastwards is investigated in
addition to adding this ancient highway to the definitive map, which the
British Horse Society supports.”

By email, on 21 September 2021, Bardon Mill Parish Counczl responded to
the consultation, stating:

“Alleged Restricted Byway No 62 Military Road (north of East
Crindledykes) to East Hotbank

“First part of route from Military Road to the Vallum has no current legal
access status but is a permissive footpath. The remainder of the route
is a detached length of unclassified public highway (U7044) with no
right of access or egress at either end; nor along the route, except
where crossed by footpaths.

“As far as Bardon Mill Parish Council is aware, the route is used only by
walkers. One of our councillors has driven past the southern end of the

route twice a day for twenty years and has observed only walkers using
that part of the route.

“The Council is concerned that if a restricted byway were to be
designated, it would open up the route fo illegal use by motorised
vehicles which would be impossible to police.

“The understanding is that a public right of way must connect two points

where there is a right of public access. That requirement does not

appear to be met at the northern end of this proposed route (other than
" by access land).”

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE
A search has been made of archives relating to the area. Evidence of Quarter
Sessions Records, Council Highways records, County Maps and O.S. Maps

was inspected, and the following copies are enclosed for consideration.

1769 Armsirong’s County Map

“There is no evidence of track approximating to the route of alleged
Restricted Byway No 62.

1797 Thorngrafton Inclosure Award

On the Award plan, there is clear evidence of a route, labelled “Public
Bridle Road”, approximating to the S-X-R portion of the alleged
restricted byway route. In the Award itself, the following is set out:

“Public Bridle Road

Thirty feet in breadth as delineated on plan hereunto annexed.
Beginning at the Military Turnpike Road and leading from thence
northward through the Allotment awarded to Sir Edward Blackett
to a place in the Roman Wall called Rabbishaw Gap.”

Page 22



1820

1827

1828

1844

Fryer's County Map

There is clear evidence of an unenclosed road or track over the
southernmost 40% of the alleged restricted byway route (i.e. between
the B6318 road and existing Footpath No 1, north-west of
Housesteads).

Cary's Map

As with Fryer’s Map, there is clear evidence of an unenclosed road or
track over the southernmost 40% of the alleged restricted byway route
(i.e. between the B6318 road and existing Footpath No 1, north-west of
Housesteads).

Greenwood’s County Map (Northumberland)

There is clear evidence of a track (identified with a symbol not depicted
in the map key, but matching the one used for two nearby routes which
have been labelled as “Bridle Road") approximating to the route of
alleged restricted byway route.

Thorngrafton Tithe Award

Although the enclosed public road on the south side of the Military
Road is shown, there is no evidence of a track over the route of alleged
Restricted Byway No 62.

¢. 1860 Ordnance Survey Map: Scale 1:25.000 (in 3 paris)

The is clear evidence of an unenclosed road or track over the route of
alleged Restricted Byway No 62. Just east of Cragend this track is
labelled with the reference number “24a". -Just north of the Military
Road, this track is labelled with the reference number “10a”.

¢. 1860 Ordnance Survey Book of Reference

1867

1898

In the Book of Reference published to accompany the 25" 1% Edition
Ordnance Survey Map, parcel number 24a in the Township of Ridley
(Detached) is described as “Public road”. Similarly, parcel number 10a
in the Township of Thorngrafton is also described as “Public road”.

Ordnance Survey Map: Scale 1:10.560 (reduced)

There is clear evidence of an unenclosed path / track over the route of
alleged Restricted Byway No 62.

Ordnance Survey Map: Scale 1:10,560 (reduced)

. There is clear evidence of an unenclosed path / track over the route of
alleged Restricted Byway No 62. The section just north of Hadrian's
Wall is annotated “FP”. ‘

Page 23



1924-6 Ordnance Survey Map: Scale 1:10,560 (reduced)

1932

1938

1951

There is clear evidence of an unenclosed path / track over the route of
alleged Restricted Byway No 62. The section just north of Hadrian’s
Wall is annotated “FP”.

Finance Act 1910 plan

.There is clear evidence of an unenclosed path / track over the route of

alleged Restricted Byway No 62. Being unenclosed, it wouldn’t be
shown separated from the surrounding land with coloured boundaries in
the way that enclosed vehicular public highways typically were.
Sometimes unenclosed roads, bridleways and footpaths were
nevertheless annotated on the plans, though this isn’t the case in this
instance. _ '

Haltwhistle RDC Handover Map

The alleged Restricted Byway No 62 route appears to be a pencilled
addition to this map. The northern X-R-P-Q part of the route is
numbered “49", whereas the southern X-S part of the route is marked
with a cross / asterisk. The map key suggests that “Scheduled Roads”
are identified with a path number, whilst “Unscheduled Roads” are
identified with a cross.

Restriction of Ribbon Development Act 1935 Map & Schedule

There does not appear to be a surviving map, covering the former
Haltwhistle Rural District area. The route of the alleged byway is,
however, identified within the Schedule of unclassified roads identified-
under the provisions contained within the 1935 Act. The entry for route
number 56 states:

“66. Road from a point 430 yards south of East Hotbank via
Cragend and Rapishaw Gap to its crossing of the course of the
Roman Vallum.”

Highways Map

The X-R-P-Q part of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 is coloured in
purple (to show it is publicly maintainable) and identified as the U7044
road.

¢. 1952 Definitive Map — original Survey Schedules & Map (Haltwhistle RD) .

The route of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 exists on the base map,
and most of it is coloured brown. Known public roads were generally
coloured brown to indicate what the extent of the road network was
considered to be. The brown line through the field immediately north of
Hadrian’s Wall follows the perimeter rather than diagonally across the
centre. The S-X section is also coloured brown (though this section
isn't identified as publicly maintainable, on the List of Streets).

Page 24



c.1952 Definitive Map — original Survey Schedules & Map {Hexham RD)

The route of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 exists on the base map,
and is coloured brown (even though this is within the neighbouring
Haltwhistle RD area). Despite this being identified, no continuation
(neither brown road nor public right of way) is identified within the
Hexham RD area.

Draft Map

The route of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 exists on the base map.
Although the section crossing the field immediately north of Point R, is
identified for inclusion as a public footpath (*1"), the rest of the route is
not identified for inclusion on the Definitive Map as either a public
footpath, public bridleway or Road Used as a Public Path (RUPP}),
though two public footpaths (numbered “1” and “2") are identified
connecting with the alleged restricted byway. A further footpath (also
numbered “2") ends on the ‘wrong’ alignment of the road, north of Point
R. One red pencilled annotation to the plan appears to identify the
bottom part of the alleged restricted byway as "U7044" and a pencilled

 annotation further up appears to identify the route as "COUNTY ROAD".

1957

1958

Provisional Map

As with the Draft Map, the route of alleged Restricted Byway No 62
exists on the base map. Although the section crossing the field
immediately north of Point R, is identified for inclusion as a public
footpath (“1"}, the rest of the route is not identified for inclusion on the
Definitive Map as either a public footpath, public bridleway or Road
Used as a Public Path (RUPP), though two public footpaths (numbered

1" and "2") are identified connecting with the alleged restricted byway.

A second Footpath “2” ends on the ‘wrong’ alignment of the road.

Ordnance Survey Map: Scalé 1:10,560 (reduced)

There is clear evidence of an unenclosed path / track over the route of
alleged Restricted Byway No 62. The section just north of Hadrian's
Wall is labelled “FP".

County Road Schédule

The entry for the U7044 road, in the 1958 County Road Schedule,
states:

“U7044 East Hotbank — Rapishaw Gap

From the Bellingham Rural District Boundary at East Hotbank via
Cragend and Rapishaw Gap to the course of the Roman
Vallum.”

The length of the U7044 road is identified as 2.21 miles.

1962 OQOriginal Definitive Map (Haltwhistle RD)

The route of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 exists on the base map
but, apart from the diagonal field crossing north of point R {(which is

Page 25



identified as part of Footpath No 1), it is not identified as a public
footpath, public bridleway or Road Used as a Public Path (RUPP).

The original Definitive Statements for the public right of way intersecting
with the alleged byway open to all traffic state:

Public Footpath No 1 - missing

Public Footpath No 2

‘From FP 1 near Hotbank in a North-westerly and north easterly
direction to the Bradley Gate — East Hotbank road north-west of
Cuddy’s Crags.”

Public Footpath No 3

“From the Bradley Gate — East Hotbank road north of Jenkin's Burn in a
northerly direction to the Hexham Rural District boundary east of
Stonefolds joining FP 14 in the Parish of Simonburn.”

Public Footpath No 25

“From the Public road south of Cuddy's Crags in a north-easterly
direction along the Roman Wall by Housesteads Crags and the Roman
fort to the Hexham Rural District boundary joining FP 3 in the Parish of
Haydon.

1962 Original Definitive Map (Hexham RD)

The route of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 (in the Haltwhistle RD
area) exists on the base map. There are no public rights of way
continuations, within the Hexham RD area, identified from the eastern
end of the alleged Restricted Byway No 62 route.

1964 County Road Schedule

The entry for the U7044 road, in the 1964 County Road Schedule,
states:

‘U7044 East Hotbank — Rapishaw Gap

From the Bellingham Rural District Boundary at East Hotbank
south-westwards via Cragend and Rapishaw Gap to the course
of the Roman Vallum.”

The length of the U7044 road is identified as 2.21 miles.

First Review Definitive Map (Haltwhistle RD aréa)

The route of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 exists on the base map
but it is not identified as a public footpath, public bridleway or Road
Used as a Public Path (RUPP). Significantly, Footpath No 1 has been
realigned to follow the perimeter of the field (effectively swapping
places with the previously identified route of the road).

The revised Definitive Statement for the amended Public Footpath No
1, intersecting with the alleged restricted byway, states:

Page 26



6.1

1964

1974

2006

Public Footpath No 1

“From FP 4 in the Parish of Henshaw at the Parish Boundary near Crag
Lough in a north-easterly direction along Hadrian’s Walil to the West
side of Cuddy's Crags then in a north-westerly and easterly direction
crossing the County Road (U7044) to the Hexham Rural District
Boundary at King's Wicket joining FP 4 in the Parish of Haydon.”

Highways Map

The X-R-P-Q part of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 is coloured in
purple (to show it is publicly maintainable) and identified as the U7044
road. :

County Road Schedule

The entry for the U7044 road, in the 1974 County Road Schedule,
states:

“U7044 East Hotbank — Rapishaw Gap (Detached)
From the Simonburn Parish boundary at East Hotbank (NY
794709) South-westwards via Cragend and Rapishaw Gap to
the course of the Roman Vallum (NY 781681)."

The length of the U7044 road is identified as 2.21 miles.

The Council’s ‘List of Streets’ (2 May 2006)

The X-R-P-Q part of the route of the alleged restricted byway (the
U7044) is cleatly identified as publicly mainlainable highway. Neilher
the S-X part of the route, nor any continuation beyond point Q, nor any
other intersecting routes, are identified as publicly maintainable
highway.

SITE INVESTIGATION

From Point S on the B6318 Military Road, 100 metres east of that road’s
junction with the C312 road, a 2 to 3 metre wide, mainly grass surfaced track
proceeds in a northerly direction for a distance of 335 metres, having passed
through a field gate, set back slightly, from the road, to Point X at The Vallum,
south of Hadrian’s Wall. The track continues, northerly, for a further 60 metres
to a field gate, with adjacent ladder stile. Beyond this gate, a 2 metre wide
grass surfaced track proceeds in a westerly direction for a distance of 110
metres, then in a general northerly direction for 385 metres to a field gate with
adjacent ladder stile at Point R, at Rapishaw Gap / Hadrian’s Wall. Beyond
the wall, a 1 to 2 metre wide grass surfaced path proceeds in a northerly
direction for 505 metres across the field to another field gate / ladder stile
combination. Where it crosses the wet lowest point of the field, public
passage is aided by a flagstone causeway. A 2.5 metre wide stone / earth /
grass surfaced path continues, northerly, across the next field for a distance of
360 metres to yet another field gate and ladder stile combination. A 1.5 metre
wide grass / stone / earth surfaced track then proceeds in a westerly then
north-westerly then northerly direction for 540 metres to a junction with
Footpath No 3 (though FP3, itself, isn’t evident on the ground). The grass
surfaced path continues in a north-easterly direction for a further 120 metres.
At this point, the U7044 road / allggieResfricted Byway No 62 continues in a



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

north-easterly direction as a 0.3 metre, petering out to nothing, grass path for
a further 60 metres to a point where its junction with a ‘proper’ stone track is
obstructed by a wire fence and drainage ditch. Pedestrian traffic appears to
avoid this fence / ditch by turning north-west to join the stone track at a field
gate, further to the west. This ‘unofficial’ diversion is signposted as part of the
Pennine Way. Beyond the fence and ditch obstruction, the U7044 / alleged
Restricted Byway follows a substantial 2.5 metre wide stone / earth / grass
surfaced track in a north-easterly direction for 555 metres to another field gate
! ladder stile combination, then continuing for a further 880 metres fo Point Q,
400 metres south-east of East Hotbank. The track itself appears to continue,
northwards, to East Hotbank. Maps appear to show another track continuing,
easterly, to a gate at Kings Crag, though this track is much less evident on the
ground now.

DISCUSSION

Section 53 (3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, requires the
County Council to modify the Definitive Map when evidence is discovered
which, when considered with all other relevant evidence available to them
shows:

that a right of way, which is not shown in the Map and Statement,

~subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area fo
which the Map relates, being a right of way such that the land over
which the right subsists is a public path, a restricted byway or; subject
to section 54A, a byway open to all traffic.

When considering an application / proposal for a modlflcatlon order, Sectlon
32 of the Highways Act 1980 provides for “any map, plan or history of the
locality or other relevant document” to be tendered in evidence and such
weight to be given to it as considered justified by the circumstances, including
the antiquity of the tendered document, the status of the person by whom and
the purpose for which it was made or compiled, and the custedy in which it has
been kept and from which it is produced.

The representation of a path or track on an Ordnance Survey Map is not
evidence that it is a public right of way. It is only indicative of its physical
existence at the time of the survey.

The X-R-P-Q part of the route of alleged Restricted Byway No 62 is identified
on the County Council's current List of Streets as being the U7044 road. This
part of the route was identified on the Council's 1951 and 1964 Highways
Maps and on the 1958, 1964 and 1974 County Road Schedules. The route
was identified (albeit, apparently, as a pencilled addition, on the 1932
Handover Map and can be identified in the Schedule produced under the
Restriction of Ribbon Development Act 1935

The Definitive Statements for the four public footpaths intersecting with the
alleged restricted byway all describe it as a road. Clearly the route was
considered to be a public road at this time — if it had been believed to be a
highway of a lesser status, we would have expected this to be identified for
inclusion on the Definitive Map as a footpath or bridleway.

The route has been consistentlig identified as an unenclosed road / track

age 28



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

on Ordnance Survey maps since ¢.1860. In the Book of Reference
accompanying the 1st Edition map, the route is described as “public road”.
Although not shown on Armstrong’s County Map of 1769 the southernmost
‘half’ is clearly depicted on Fryer's County Map of 1820, Cary’'s Map of 1827,
and the whole route would appear to be shown on Greenwood's County Map
of 1828. The southern part of the route, between the Military Road and
Hadrian's Wall, is identified as a Public Bridie Road in the Thorngrafton
Inclosure Award. '

The County Council accepts that, given the way the regulations were written
with regard to the way highway authorities could include publicly maintainable
highways in the List of Streets, there was no impediment to public bridleways
and public footpaths also being included. That is not to say that any
bridleways or footpaths were so shown — just that they could be. It must,
therefore, be entirely proper to consider each UCR on a case by case basis,
but that does not mean that we should begin with the assumption that each
UCR is no more than a public footpath unless higher rights can be proven by
other means. In Northumberland there is no evidence to suggest that public
footpaths and public bridleways were deliberately shown on the 1958, 1964 or
1974 County Road Schedules (forerunners of the modern day List of Streets).
The fact that a route is shown on these schedules must, therefore, be
evidence of some weight that public vehicular rights exist.

Letters from DEFRA, dated 2003 and November 2006, and Rights of Way
Circular 1/09 set out the approach Inspectors and order making authorities
should take in determining the status of routes included on the List of Streets.
In summary, the guidance states that the inclusion of a route on the List of
Streets is not a record of what legal rights exist over that highway but may
provide evidence of vehicular rights. However, this must be considered with
all other relevant evidence in order to determine the nature and extent of those
rights. Highway Authorities are recommended o examine the history of such

- routes and the rights that may exist over them on a case by case basis in

order to determine their status.

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC Act 2006)
had a major impact upon the recording of vehicular public rights of way based
upon historical documentary evidence. Under section 67 of the Act, any
existing, but unrecorded, public rights of way for mechanically propelled
vehicles were extinguished uniess one of the ‘saving’ provisions applied. In
brief, these saving provisions were: (a} if the main lawful public use between
2001 and 2006 was with motor vehicles; (b) if the route was on the List of
Streets (on 2 May 2006) and not also on the Definitive Map as something less
than a byway open to all traffic; (c) the route was legally created expressly for
motor vehicular use; (d) the route was a road deliberately constructed for
public motor vehicular use; or (e) the vehicular highway came about as a
result of unchallenged motor vehicular use before December 1930.

Of the saving provisions above, the main one (b}, will apply to the U7044 part
(i.e. X-R-P-Q) of the route. Where a route is not shown on the Definitive Map
as a footpath, bridleway or restricted byway, then the fact that it is shown on
the List of Streets will be sufficient to prevent the public’s motor vehicular
rights from being extinguished.

None of the above saving provisions would appear to apply to the S-X section

Page 29



7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

of the alleged restricted byway route. Nor would they appear to apply to any
continuation of the vehicular highway, beyond Point Q, or to any other frack
connecting with the X-R-P-Q route.

It seems fairly clear that the X-R-P-Q section of publicly maintainable highway
was identified as an apparently marooned section of publicly maintainable
highway not because this section of public road existed in isolation, but
because its continuation(s) south of Point X {and north and / or east of Point
Q) were considered to be privately maintainable public highway.

Although the NERC Act 2006 did not directly extinguish the public’s motor
vehicular rights over the X-R-P-Q portion of the route, the practical effect of it
extinguishing public motor vehicular rights over the X-S section, and over any
northerly continuation or any other connecting route, is that the public’'s motor
vehicular rights over the X-R-P-Q} are now isolated. If they were not isolated, it
would be appropriate to recognise these public motor vehicular rights by
recording this section of the route as byway open to all traffic. However, case
law would seem to indicate that these public motor vehicular rights cannot
exist in isolation. The Kotegaonkar v Secretary of State for Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs case, was determined in the High Court, in 2012, It
considered a situation where an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
had confirmed a definitive map modification order adding a public footpath
across land in between a health centre carpark and the forecourt of some
shops. The public had unhindered access to the car park and the forecourt,
though neither of these were public highways. It was the owner of the land in
between these two locations that disputed that a public right of way could be
established between them. Mr Justice Hickinbottom found against the
Secretary of State, citing the earlier case of Bailey v Jamieson (1875-76) he
concluded:

“Therefore, as a matter of law, on principle and authority, | do not
.consider that a way to which the public has no right of entry at either
end or at any point along its length can be a public highway at common
law.” o

The Kotegaonkar and Jameison cases both concerned public footpaths.
These footpaths could not exist in isolation. Applying the same principle to the
X-R-P-Q route, it is considered that public motor vehicular rights cannot exist
in isolation — the public has no right of entry to the route (with a motor vehicle)
at either end or at any point along its length. This does not mean that all
public rights have been extinguished over the X-R-P-Q route. The public still
has a right of entry to the route on foot, on horseback, by bicycle and with non-
motor vehicles. These same non-motor vehicular rights will, therefore, still
remain over the X-R-P-Q route.

The Cycling UK and Bardon Mill Parish Council consultation responses voice
concerns regarding motor vehicular use of this route, and the harm that could
be caused by motor vehicles. The X-R-P-Q section is an unclassified County
road and, as such, most people might presume the public had motor vehicular
rights over it. The National Park Authority has recently indicated that it was
aware of, and concerned about, instances of public motor vehicular use of the
route. Concerns regarding damage that might be caused by public vehicular
use of the route aren't considered to be relevant, when determining what
public rights actually exist. That said, by clarifying that the S-X section is only
a restricted byway, and by establishing that, public motor vehicular rights
would appear to have been exXfayehg@ over the X-R-P-Q unclassified



7.16

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

County road section too, the Council believes that motor vehicular use of the
route will actually be discouraged, not facilitated.

Adyvice from the Planning Inspectorate in their ‘consistency guidelines’ states
that it is important to have the correct width, where known, recorded in the
definitive statement. Where no width can be determined by documentary
means (such as an Inclosure Award, Highway Order or dedication document),
there is usually a boundary to boundary presumption for public highways.

The S-X-R section was set out as a 30 foot (i.e. 9.14 metre) wide public
bridleway in the Thorngrafton Inclosure Award. The restricted byway, over this
section, should not be less than that. Since the remainder of the route is not
enclosed now, nor does it appear to have been enclosed previously, it is
proposed that, if it is to be recorded as a restricted byway, it should be
identified with the Council’'s standard default width of 5 metres (i.e. wide
enough for two carts, travelling in opposite directions, to pass each other.

CONCLUSION

In light of the documentary evidence available, it appears that public vehicular
rights have been reasonably alleged to exist over the route of alleged
Restricted Byway No 62.

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 would appear to
have extinguished the public’'s motor vehicular rights over the S-X part of the
route.

At common law, the public’s motor vehicular rights over the X-R-P-Q part of
the route would also appear to have been extinguished.

It would be appropriate to recognize the public’s remaining rights over the S-X-
R-P-Q route by recording this as a restricted byway on the Definitive Map.
BACKGROUND PAPERS
Local Services Group File: E/3/62z

Report Author Alex Bell — Definitive Map Officer

(01670) 624133
Alex.Bell@Northumberland.gov.uk

Page 31



Plan 10

12

e
P

BHD Eam
.f ¢ Stonefolds
\

thumber] 'Public Rights of Way

Local Services

County Hall Morpeth Northumberland
NE61 2EF EEEEEEEERN

Telephone 0845 600 6400

Reproduced from / based upon Ordnance Survey

ey Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
Northumberland

Alleged Restricted Byway

b e istri i . Scale
material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on Former District(s) Parish(es)
behalf of the Controllerof H.M.S.O. Crown Copyright ., Iynedale Bardon Mil 11 15,000
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright >
and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Def. Map No. Hqge SZ |o0.s.Map Date
Northumberland County Council O.5. Licence No 100043048 193/178 NY 76 NE/ NY 77 SE June 2020 .




=
il - \
= #
Tt v \
Y., Jingling # 3

Well =

Ridley Common

Whita Bank

Broomlee Lough

Contact: Alex Bell
Telephone: 01670 624133
Email: Alex.Bell@northumberland.gov.uk

— 1km Gridlines

()]
£y
|3
1=
1o
Siom 1
i
I\,»}l Cuwwks
12 e
]
egend /
+ I m
= Footbath S eedie  |Riaw
H == Bridleway This is a computer generated extract of the Working Copy
el o --- Restricted Byway of the Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way
Northumberland . i
Goiinty Councll Byway Open to All Traffic

Scale: 1:10,000

Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infri

Pa WPy

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office
rgs%rwm Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. License no. 100048048 (2010).

mayc Jo




Armstrong’s County Map
1769

—————

. _ZZ?I a{s .flow&
it Koek N pplastle ur rungy
_“‘:\ S »;,‘-—‘n
(Hal larw A R owes m,w,& e ol
. S S S S »'-" Wy : .!lﬁltu_ 2 _». i “'“"“L} ‘ ’15:’,”’" 27 & W/
T RS g’z.s‘?z(’ész, <
. o 728 .
SBYssygary ", Hészay .
g RO e N
ﬁmw R
@» -gyy,ﬂwm "
Lo .,7/ ]ﬁm}'
fl’mzo .
-  N c{'mé Barnf o1t/

"Z?m/} 7eLs ,ﬁé/‘?/ "GM “ e LR
L j/«" Vel jrwza’[t’ﬁﬂf&&-"‘.-f"gj; ks

' /mv}ffmf: it _,:::,,:?-’:- ! -3_0131 RS
(;ﬂysfﬁff}',,,- " """" ﬂ/ﬁ’/ﬂﬁf Gale i; . _ : e
sy AP (‘/.w LA\ VIND oz.0vA ii V7 jéﬁfedaéwf /\ T
094 AV ng‘- o Birksh % ]3"&0! pzse
' - o 7 ¢ A D -9... .
Lunlers (rook” RO Th 077 6’;’4 2 2! ﬁa?fmr
v Slose Tlall. S 7;/7 L (]jfﬂff{ff
Fonshaw os2  ZastLomy -&/w/w/ 2
e = Bardins 4f s B = e Qdf(czzza’ a lone
]t’zz.s%(// fry Y 9_9“ Laltern Row

%a’ r72 %; X R lyz/yaofi
/( 72 . f...: '. <

Page 34



Thorngrafton Inclosure Award

1797

A AN R Falyeses
= , |

L. -

,ﬁ 2 y.« ; } " A h\ Nk\xu
:,V 7 ) \m\:_
o a0 e E

5 . \_mﬁim. i \ \W 2. 36 :
E ,..‘.\ . L’ b 2 gm«\n Dv(\.ﬁhm_&.e. \\Nn .m.u,c. k\.N\ wa..\e\mnh. 3 !

for 5 : i - .

& 4§ < ‘ %%%
A A m\ i é \ o

\m ree \m@\&f

8.0 /. .
: WQNSN Jewes

i Croarh
.\.R\ A\ Hwn\w: .w\ \\&
N \N\E\m

2 B 235 D 4.

\. \ \Q ‘%«.3,__.._\ B .ﬂ%ﬁawt.
o o dlediter

\w\ i

Crpy s

Zeafphold

bl VR Hallodiron

The -Hﬁzﬁ’;;r.(?/’ /7;:,,/}

, ‘ A ..\W..\.\N\\..\\&.Q% ! iy
sk .\?w.\\ﬁﬁam\ﬁ‘ : | CrefZoan

92,7, 16 Vi dosn

vﬁ\ukw Nete . , PR
. .n\«.« \U\m\\\\\»e&vw\_ fee S5 A §~ kﬁu\%\\

\\E_
N N o7 “\u&{
,._?. mﬁﬁﬂﬂ.&(ﬂ\b .\_n\_\

Page 35



Fryer's County Map
1820

KiE

L
T AT
SRS

~ i ! b W i ) 3
o, 9 3 i ik I
- ; e

ety

£

—_n/’

NG,




Cary’s Map
1827

>
a
?
[

w ]

lm"'

LR P N il i




Greenwood’s County Map
1828

ey
)




- Greenwood’s County Map
1828

%Wza_éxzzéy / Corvrntri : o Gt g %f/‘m
Lowndiices ‘% %/z?ér %Md .
.ﬂz’zﬁ-{?%wa e HEXHAM ;[/gzé/zd 4" %)’_ﬁﬂ?&()ﬂd R -1 =
%M@ & Acconib c%/:’(ﬁi?d’ g"/' L%Mﬁéé‘ R W..%
W/@(J aa‘z%.%?/wfmo/'z » O oo Nottige p//m/?;jya/é %?Z@é T - i
%@,ZMM{W&/{%&/A&@} e c@ayé//w o e e e ‘
16 Dlbirmenta. ... g — %52_/_ ? o>
Lgé%}% Wads § Tl toinas S %4%[%%2&@%_,__ a
ML%M —— (;% & G, .' 72k /wzmz,aé .
%M‘a{@é’ g/m/w(; ___“.mﬁ“__.f . %% & %y%& L E.

SCALE OF STATUTE MILES.
2 ] 4

T

A A

Page 39



Thorngrafton Tithe Award
1844

ROMAN WALL

Page 40



1st Edition 25” O.S. Map
c.1860

(Nophgya gnd)



SRR,

SN 1A,

fhaea.

AR Sy

ANV Ar e

SN 4,

B PP

e MWL
a T,

1st Edition 25” O.S. Map
c.1860

SN g

e LTS

? NN e, SN, g
Z i TN s LA s
WA LA
WA 7 e NN NS £e s A
e LT
i 5 . R T T
AR 24
RO PP .
J Y W
NN
: AN P T v
WAL 70 N
NN, NNV PR LT
WA SN rhr ANy, W g,
R P
: Rl (g SOUSUTTP
R LR W N R
AW
SN g,
AN T AN B LTI
ML
T . g
ASRANMIARF 72 1
W\,
{ RO DN >
RN ¥ \ .
; : ; Fewgons A
NN NNz, e \}

(Middle section)
Page 42




1st Edition 25” O.S. Map
c.1860

\ oo g,  ww——

\ i

§ -
Py A AR
& -
- I Py
7
. 4
\ 3 vyt i B
\ 4 A
\ i
. f
“ un i

v - AV e, \

ST

CASTLE
{ Raamaing of)

, (Soulghern 3%d)

age



“pAvaiof paring | GPS. L8F “pavaiof porean) | 189.89% pavmaof paaan) | 98261 ppnef porems) | 666:9981
"omisey | 19865 66 0 farmyeng | 0BF:L 0 ‘omysed | 100.9 ¥ ‘proz aqng | 865 %
aImgse | 46561 86 A1qBIY | $06:3 B¢ 9® ‘omysug | 6%L-8 e ‘o ‘emysed | 611-3T L¥

‘oR ‘ermierg | 087G 16 +(doyyueg) amisey | CL6-F A ‘o ‘fomgsed yEnoyy | 0FF-19 9%
‘mapIeEy) | 610: 96 |'0n ‘suepid ‘sasnopy | 87 1 ‘o ‘ornisug | 918.¢ I1 UMY | §50- op
‘e1gsey. | GOFG 26 "SIMSEY (8L 48 0% ‘PoOM | 1875 01 “uapIes) 4 gol. ¥
"op faIgsey | /BF-EE 76 OISR | [65-F 94 "o ‘ormiEeg | 990.8 6 uapIey | 580 aF
‘proxonqRe g | 1946 €6 TpROL AN | 98-8 o  (peoqmioH) 9% ‘oamgsed | 698 (43
camise | $8%-C %6 0% ‘ermiseJ | GEE-6 + .nw,mﬁm ‘BOSTIOFT | 06 8 .uw?xwu 00T ¥
o ‘mopre8 | 9By | €70-51 g s | €691 L “(qreqioRT) om
i m B ‘pred ‘enorT | $03- 16 ‘aImIseJ | 166-F ST soxgsnd glnoy | ¥69:¢ 9 ‘uapred ‘spred ‘sasnoly | 59¢. (152
PE. R ‘eamgsg | 1.9 16 on ‘ervsed ydnoy | gez% E ‘eangsad ydnoy | 680- - 62
i \ ‘uepred ‘esmopy | 971 06 reased | £09.9 0 : POOM | BGL-T T |t 0y ‘oInisng | £89-8% 68
‘0 ‘elqery | 1758 68 *PEOL 998ALLT | F02:1 61 axmsed glinoy | 178 g ['(30 3aed) uHnoy Feig | 8058 8¢
0% ‘orysed ydnoy | 153-91 88 Imsed | £66-¢ | 4§ . roamsed ylnoy | 30z -G "oy ‘ermysed glnoy | 080 L8
ysed | 0471 18 0B Plqey { Ge8g | 4 ﬁgm Aediy,) wwong | 122-01 I POOM | 2661 98
-0%9 fexmisRg | G001 98 "o fonised | 0891 9% e oy xngEEg | PEP-T g8
“0p forgsed | 919-9 o8 ‘0 OIqeLY | 0863 o5 JOSNIINTIE 10 JTHSNMOL ‘o ‘erysed ginoy | 680-655 | 8
0N ‘9Ise ] | $65:91 ¥8 RImeR g | L00-% ¥ 0® f[qury | ¢TH-81 88
a[ceTy | 189-91 €8 “( jo surenzaL ot {q8norg
RqELY | LTL.L ~gg |eudeRy) o SmV | 6448 me)) 0p ‘9IqRIV | $08-5 48
AR | 908-F -18 0 ‘aImgsed | Lg0:8 0 ‘erniseg | ¥18.8 I8
G2IISB A R OF, =08 o ‘aImsed | 1265  fappry go digs 0y ‘wepreyy | 151 08
m.:uaknmﬁu moT) 9% eamysed. | 8806 LMOT, 9T} JO BOTE [810, | 984 -GFFF “(areqsoH
suapred ‘spred‘sasnofy | g60. “61 0% ‘amisey | £88F i 190A) 9% ‘sasnof | ROI. 6%
o® ‘Fuepred ‘sammoyy | gos. 82 0 ‘eInisey | 6766 8 e p | coo-g81 0% ‘erngsed ylnoy | 829.5% 8%
‘0 ‘ermiseg | GLE'T “L), PIqeTY | $09-9 : Learey | g1LG “(spoog 03
2amjsed | 190- - 912 -0 fomysey | I/¥-6 5 “spvoz aqng | 05208 aqen) amgsed ySnoy | 870- LT
‘U9pIeL) | 070- =ak ‘o fermgsug | 9%3-8 § ‘puey | 702-955F ‘POOM | 60T Vg
q .vnmw.ﬁm. 0%0- Pl oy WB«...& 180-% i oy omwﬁoﬂm 167-08 9%
JPYMTETY) OR ‘o o[quIY | 7B8:¢ . -0 ‘esmoy | 696 (34
‘wopres ‘spred ‘sosnory | 918 g POOM | 80 EU.E 90 mmwﬂmwﬁu%ﬁmémm . ‘Peorongug | 8%8-1 WG
-on ‘eryseg | 88F- &l ‘0% ‘suapred ‘sesnopy | gog. 0 ‘erngsed gdnoy | 162-69 fxd
- 0R ‘erysey | £66.% 1 reryseJ | $H0-1 0% ‘emmgsed ySnoy | 0¢6.01 o
(prefosvid -0 foangsRg | 10T oy ‘ermgsed ydnoyr | r9c.cg bad
Q | § pmyy) oy "POOM | 055 Davowa ) Lepry Jo op ‘ernysed ooy | 7978 15
| ‘swapred ‘sasnoyy | 9311 0L 0 “quaunjuequiy | 91 ‘WEwMOT, o} JO BTV | TOP-SCET o ‘eamysrg | 163-0T 0%
E (morpeng Lem (gozEerT) A e ‘peoL atqng | ¢gF-1 e41
m -TIYY) "9 ‘spaek -suopred pue sesnolyy | 51z AN | L8L-OFT o5 ‘erngsed ganoY | L68-FI 81
\).“ ‘suapred ‘sosmoXf | 3195 69 0 ‘ermysB g | BY6-F ‘FpRoI NANT | 68%-9 POOM | 88F-8 81
i ‘09 "o fermyseg | ¢/7.9 puer | oz1.802T R ‘ornyse] | 8991 L1
B | ‘suoped ‘sosnofy | oyl 99 ‘arngsed ginoy | 060- RS BT (jo
e ‘SUapIRE) | $HE. 19 09 ‘eanysed yinoiy | 9¢.8 NOILVTALIIVOXYT yred) yBnory es[uesrp | 88%.ce 91
~ ‘guapred "0 ‘ernysv | 6T0-T " o ‘erngsrd USnoy | 149207 Gr
L% ‘spied ‘sesnoyy | 9ug. 29 "(wBI0ATED) oy ‘exmysed ylnoy | 410.69T BT
‘peor oHqu.y | 04T cg |o® ‘uepred ‘sesnopy | 9zs- (I 8 Awueny)
: : 0 "op ‘amgsed yinoy | 909-57 e o ‘erngsud ginoy | per-1a1 | 81
guapred ‘pred ‘esmofy | 660. $9 0% ‘amysed ylnoy | 001.0% ‘| TOF7-8G8L ‘o ‘emjeed gdnoy | 1e7.18 A
O ‘9Iysu | 960.F 29 9% ‘ermsed | 680.. Fo e “em Fadup
DIMEBT | LE6-€ 29 op ‘formiseg | 6g0.¢ "PROI IYN | F6E- 0¢ | puwe oxnysed ylnoy | 6TF-62 1
‘o ‘ermyseg | 86L.F 19 o ‘ernysed (- 6OI.9 ‘pror onqng | 010-G &% emysRJ | ZLI- 01

“panaiof pyfnosg | 189.986 “pananiof Jybnosg | 98964, :  ‘punmaiof pybnosg | 666.0981 “pavansof 1ybnosg | 06569

watimg e || wstowa B A | onteg 8 LA

6% HTLSTHMLTIVH 0 HSIGVL " TTLSIHMUUTYH 40 HSIHVd 8%




4
prvmsel poriitn | 196-518 panmaof prawy | 810018 : e —
- ‘ | BRTABFE
on termgsed | G8%-F 1e . o ‘erngsed | gos- C e
C ameeg | 0688 9¢ o ‘omgseg | 990-88 _ -0 ‘oAmseg. | 84948
(ssctry &, dpunin Juap “prOI DA | 688.6 08.088% ‘prol MMLE. | S19F |
-l g awﬁ ..smsw,m 88%- og armysed | 98/-5 eeg- “(esnog : -}
“{agofoEe) I " 1qeaN) Wp e
uoped puz s8N0 | 990- $o ifedeyp) -om ‘ormgsug | TgE-CF 151). ﬁMﬁuwﬂmm .mwm.aﬁ. MM .m%m@ "%. .mﬁ.WHmh tasnofr | g41-
orgeng | £89-8 8% waprey) | 180- g Qered | 997 4 “pOOM | 688
‘armse | €69 3¢ "SI0 | 050- B i wmm.w %% 0% ‘ormyEug il 99685
g ‘s | L1 1% 09 ‘arnysng | 68L-611 ciPouinoin: 3 vl e -onjsed |
o fermyseg | 6EI-Z 02 i ‘peol g | 939 6 e or -orsRg |
omgEng | 830-b. 6% "o ‘ormsed qinoy | 9516 ey s o3 foxmeed qFaoy |
_ “{oyeny Lo oy -‘axngsed | GPE-61 B AN I (stmy) fomoga .
~peay) mapred iy ssnafy | $90. 8F -3 ‘eangsed | oo | L¥9-9L 1 |-Aeppem pue omgsegc|
©og Gmsig | 150 ¥ ) Fmusd | 4021 d 1005 “(oeg xﬁ%.m%m__
o ‘ornisrg | 06581 9% 059 ‘armyeed qfnoy | 91719 : RN I -0 ‘oamised qBtoy
op ormsnd | 182 op ‘poop | 108-1 s omgendAnedl | 086-9683 | O B oyt
001} 59 exmERy | 09T ¥ [{epemyy asnopy) mop _ 3 _J_m wes 3% tamqsed qinoy
‘o ‘mmoms ‘armyeng | 090-9 g% |-mB - ‘spaed ‘esmopy | 58I g uoﬁ.«ro = - - -0 faTyE
‘amysed ooy | ger. ngF (3o suremes) (pue .mm., %m_”.. 091- or U ypidpoo
om ‘erngseT | 12601 gF  |enommoolog B smERg | gO%-1F 1o fed .u.u d ._wﬁ... ol *07p ‘poOMTETLIG D BTY
gfinoT wopuy | 036-% | BIF o ‘omysng | 9g6.5 Nl A i (anOTT.O10H) .
oy ‘omgsng | 60TL | TP "POOML, | 8161 o ot |- Eoc of Loy Gpaek ‘sasnom.
R .muﬁm,w.m 600: 18 oF ‘0 ‘aamysey | ROT-0T o mﬂaﬂ ” .om#.uw.ﬁ -8 .o.. 6 . R G
o -farmgied | $35-86 6% . Soms ._.dm” .ﬁwﬂ. g ~pOOX pRALIT |
omped | peg-b 8¢ || ‘NOLIVEDNYOHIL 40 JIHSN i D _M_m«. : g fapqury |’
0% xRy | 8DLE 18 .m”mmm son. b o faImITE
oy ‘ongeeg | Lp8-88 | 98 i o [ e M -(oopoye ) 0 |
o fomgsng | H0G-F o8 o nm.mwa%nm v m. 7 fwepred fpaed ‘esmoyy| 119
drmeng | 686-41 78 el | Lo . -ormsed inoy | 1816
09 ‘armjEe g Mwwmh Mm.. ~ddosuisuayg yo dige NM J.Swwamm Mﬂw z ‘uapaed %.99RNOH .umﬁ.m
gy . ze |- . g% faT0ET .
. - “waﬂ”“w, o % UM, 313 JO BAIE [BIOL, :.m.muam.  ‘oamgsed ySnoy |-520- I oﬁ.a%ﬁmdm wﬁm
‘Laepperd) oy . 1T . " saxmysed | 000-01
‘guopred ‘spredisasnogy | 9eg- 08 . h.ukw.._.%w Mmmmm ‘ ﬁﬁﬁmodﬁﬁmwmmZ.BOH 0% tayqery | 950-%
oy noHﬂumdm 195-61 it apRoL NN | 901.LE aHOW.Z..HMZmH.Hm J0 dl ._Hm.wu.ww,na..wmﬂn.m 460
‘03 farmgeeg | 16885 i1 pue | gen-306¥ 9% ‘elqely | 061-8
awwzﬁmﬁnn% Nmm.% Mm I . ) MOHE.mmn.—. .hﬂwhwﬁ
R 18T, 20%- ¥ dITHSNMOL orzod PATo ’ 0 famgsed 99¢.83
B omend | GPS9T | 9% SHE HOJL NOLLVIALIAYOTY. o seman . “Cq8napy
239 "aImisug | OR9-€ 96 \ ddosmyuei jo  ———— woplap} R ‘POOM | 650-GF
o joxngng | 818-6 e ‘ WOy, o1 Jo vary | ROT-L8¥T -puodiii. | 889:1
o ‘orgsng | 3gE0 2% 0L o1 ¥ B kst o5 ‘puogy. | 6885
,.ﬁmoﬁw.mwmmv uap . (3201} ddosumyuerg jo zopep | 28051 ‘o ‘poog. | GST:I
-wd g fopred “osnoR | 9Ll 50 |drsusoy, 273 Jo BTV | $09-6807 Sa[T | G181 -punoz8 [(jEOmRUID) | 66¥-8T
Smseg | pEe-1 1z eppeo o | 907.L6 «spred 7 osmOR[ | 180-
029 ‘erniseg | LGP (14 X030 M, | 43991 ..mﬁ.m.H B8.0S3E “om-famyeed | €09-%
S.%.wmmﬁwmma hwmeﬁwﬁ es ‘pueT ) 007.819% -punoad TeyusvIRII( . 650
: : MES . 61 —_— . “a1qery {0688
(103008 ‘pdet) "NOIZVIALIAVORYL NOLEVIRLIEYORY o ey | 938
woLRdqeeLy) esnoy ;i §I0. BHL .. papmanf pybrosg: | 89%-LEGT
- pevmiaf pybnosg | 8L9-8TF -
- : : ; "By it monduose - Ty
- ruoydime E_.a_.mM_.ﬁ uﬁaww wopdmosacr amnﬂu._,mw BN . Mﬂnﬁ%ﬂ mueay | wOCON RO WY

£8 TILSIHALIVE 0 HSIEVI “TLLSTHMITVE 40 HSEEVA




: 1st Edition 6” O.S. Map
1867




2nd Edition 6” O.S. Map
1898

E N
i i/ AMTST
ey B :

S S
s

"\anxsn-n.u\snll“'-:,
$ -

izEma

e, & e
- A




' Finance Act 1910 Plan

42"
e ¥

 Page 48



Haltwhistle RDC Handover Map
1932

- 43 ; By F R 3
SOSHOMSHIAUGCHY f)
(D A x_/ﬂ % 7

?
k)




THOTIRUTET dXAPNIR[G JO A1mpUROY WISES B} 07 POOMIOTY
TSIM BIA SONIPI[PULL) 3S0A4 O JDURIIUD 3524 21J JO SUS-YIROS,
spred 0pg ‘prot 238y Laprig-apapasary oy wo ymod m owoly proyy

3ol Awmasnel) Jo Jsua
spduf ggg fpreod Ajeg) La[poed-prelqs s 4wy 2y o jured € 07
IITH TMeaSulyy wla UeIIRIuR[ g JO0IIRIUNY JO [acu Spiek 001
pred plog Aspureq)-jo0g dureg opsdwrf a1y uo jurod v woal proly

uolgmIue] g HooraIsjunyy

18 peor pacy Lopureyn-o0y] qug APISART 8yl 0} SpPIRAlIIOU
LI MOOTDUIIURTT 4B PROL POMOIF SOR(—-MUYSUSI] 9} WOoI] proy

~adpugr paog

Aopmeggy Jo 15om spacd Q) PROT 100y Ao[peag—S[EPIaAly e

un qurod ¢ 0} surf HICJ PuUR UOTITIIR]J HOOINUNI] Bla OO
quungp apisAuTy U Prol oMl MUQ~MBUSOSH 91} WOI] proy[

PENOL] MUYSHIIE IO

130U spaes g8y ‘puol anny As[peig-eleplaal 2y uo jwod R 03

V1) LO[POr) PIIN SN0} ARMIENE]) BIA PIPIUY S WY IO §)nos
spavs Q1] ‘prod pomalg U()-MBHSUIL o) Uo ued ® w0y prosy

ayen) Loypuagf Jo jsem ojuu-f ‘gIEY'{ PEOI pPuIYUAALY)
-progaaqery 3y uo quiod e o] wreq peiyd ySig wory peoy

0By AR[prig Jo 9sue spaef 00 ‘GLLO’S POl praguastf)-plojaa]

oD By uo juied v 0] MuUGENIl] puB paofAsiurnyd vra TR
HORARY D[RPIIATY 17 GO°F DPEOL JS{MB)-WELXD)] BUJ WOL] PUOY

) ‘edeyn) 9sIp

-OUJRTY RATHWELT Mmisual] Jo ypoun spied op[ ‘pEea pamalny]

aau(-asno]] mog, aq} ue qunod T 0} spammisza-rron ‘ofwepi
MUSUAL] Ul PROL MPYSUS[[—UOUIN{) SMAUE] [V 2 wWoll Doy

-ofle

JIA sBysuay] .‘mnﬂomﬂ .m.umm ju prot ,—uu..ﬁv._m mu:OIb.:w:m:b.m DJ.M

0] aSveI[tA MuUYSUSI Wa ‘Tl WG 0] SJUBIUS 81} JO qsEe
spaed gFe 6y pUOL I[SIMEO-WNYXIE ay] uo juied v moy) proy

ORNGY] OPISUAMCEY IO 953 SEarl 0gy fPEOL pemelyg edu()

-MBUSTRIT @) U0 quied ® 0 POl anusmey e JUIpLpIRy
031 adunajus @yl v GOy proa A[RIIE-URYNDY DU moXy peoiy

‘PIPIUS s.qpilng
J0 ynos spaed 9oy ‘prod Pamalg epu(-meysusy ey} uo saiod
€ 0] MmOl AlI2qUiY) BIA SISNOY] U] JO 9SEa-yqnos spaed
fge ‘proa seoyy Jeadjnp-efpuyery Ay} wo jued ® woay proy

180T

yinox pasaag aou) 9% fIEH°E PYOI Puauadln—PIoJIaTIoY]) M)

5} PRI S[IUg pue ‘oS0l opisumorg ‘fedeyl JsIpoyIeIy

JATHWULL MUBYSUO]T BIA [[RF ouo3g 0] Q0URIMS Y O 986
sprel 0gL 69V PROZ BSIMR)—wWrXay s47 uo quiod ® Wory proy

“Jogr adpw

{aTy 10 9soav spaed e CYLE9E PROL PURIHIAL-PIOIILIOYD,

ayy uwo quied e o) ssopy qeadijery pur ABHIe) eIpEEY MA
umr:; odpMFEIY 1" §0°F PEOI J[STMB-WPGXe]] oY) mWoay proyy

Uy SNNOY] uowurod) 38 ‘gIeey

PrOL  pUIUANID-ILIOLIB[[OY) SIf) 0} PIRYIOCTY BIa  ‘I[ISTM
IR 00 UMOY, I B0 pued SIMTD-UITHNI BY) mol] puoy

‘o8l G

UONNIISHY AU[ONueads) Sy 03 |[IH qWe) Jo 3003 6yj IE prox
TR QWON-Proy Balsay JI3 woeay ‘opsiyagery ‘swery proypoop

GOF "6E6T “HOUVI{ HIOE-—SEVOY GRY SAsqIay

‘B4

ol

‘49

‘Jueq [[IF svyswoolg jo doj

Ay 38 deamo oy op Lreifjop) eudy, ginod puv peOY TIIM
RBIA [0OUDE UOIDTY O} B PVSTYMIIRE I TR woly proy

"lOGURR Hoanyy) 93} Jo

5ee spand gI1 ‘[ ared uo jutod ® 03 splesisom ‘a[IRIATITYL
oy oMo 9] I® 6OV PTOX J[SIMBD-WRBUXIE AY] woll puroy

‘peoy wRIsAY 36 pus

HITOW 24 0 [[1IY T pu® proy ydiy via ‘epsuysiel ‘rdeyD
SIPOWIDIY 31 1B 69°YV PROX I[SHAMD-WEYXOI ou} wWndy pPruy

WPITA [QT O S0WMSIP B 0T BPIMAIINCS YUY
peol BisifiE)-muyxaf eyj wexl ‘apsigadiely  ‘Suiuuor] s, Ljue

-epred pOT JO SDUBSIP ® I0F SPIRMULIOU [T 235U
I 89°V PTOI ISIMEN-UIBNXAT] AUl WOI] 'BMSIGAYBL] duurl [IIY

wpaus 0E1 IO SOUTISID B AT [[RH S99 SPIBMO) 2ur)
HRUS9aT JB QIEH'Y PEGL PTRAUOAI~POFIB[ON]) DY) WOIF puoy
: . ‘wnpeg
UBUIOY 913 3o asinod a3 jo Juissoso sj1 03 deyy muystdey puw
pusdean vra wurqiey 9seq jo yuos spred o jutod v moly peoy
‘uenwuelg 3313ea g J0 pud qsve
ot} 4e Anmojed o) 07 sprumgewd R JO 4SAM-NOu spard g9
‘prox esnoE (1M £1In)~pemalg eoup ey) o quiod ® woip pany
EANF (T SqqUD 09 PROI I U0 UING AR 9 10A0 Jeaind
oY} 0} SpPILMISRA-II0U SENOY] [PAL A1InD o j8me spred gl
‘pROL 9300T] [{9Ay SWnD-pomeag dou() 3yt uo quiod v tioyy proy

mang apIs|uep 0}

vealry saSpyg 1u prOL [[RAN SUI U0 PIRIS—OPISNITYAN OU) WoL§ proyg
"usmlf) uopuln oy Jog yong puw

sauoqy Lddug via wing uorey) quog o3 9® LaddyT ay) woay puoyy
OPIS[RA M
oy Jurpra] proa syy ylna worounl sgr e Lemoped ay} 03 spaed

000°L jo umsip v a0y spimamtou T wainquu)) weay puoy

‘B LyBneg o} esnoxg qep AmO o 3seR spavd gue
puol SN0 {PA A18)-pamalyg aoup oyl uo qutod @ woay puroeyy
: . ‘footog  uangsnn
v 1puoee spand goF ‘pTod ([P O3 Ue pleIyg-userr) safpg eys
uo guiod v 0} WROY [P NN PUE [93J Bia [PSOF YINOX
poseag) e e §IEY'{f pPrO PERUIAIL-PIOLIR|[O]) Y} WO Puoy]
joar
NG} 07 PrOL BYF U OYIY JUSWATPNR I9AD JIBANT O(F 0} S,Zm
IPIOPYA, BIA 9BY) [[IUSTUBY JO §eom opIvd QL ‘Prod UdIL)
SIpI-proquIng—Uu] 9800} uomwo 2y wo quwod ® wory proy
RRNOT SUOISAMIN 30 f8ue spaud 076 ‘SIE9H DUOM puaqueelr
~Paogaafion) @y uosqutod € o) (8 SYI UO PPIYY PHE [0oYRQ
wingqae) ‘oeely selpy ‘opmoyM ‘Proymang wia tu] esnoyy
UOWIHOT) ¥ GILYE PEOL DESYURRLD-PIOLIBOUY) AU} Woay puoyy
IRy
1% §9°Y PUOX S[SHAR)-WrRUX9L] Y} yIIa prolr eyl yo uorpunl
23 0 puoYy WISAY. pue asrol |Iyquog Y o9pg wa |, 'eyed
RUBIS,, W BLEYH PEOT PRAIULAN-PIOMI[IOND) Y3 woay proy

.mﬂm_g?ﬁdm.:QH.SNZawmm.ﬂ_Féa mmﬁ,:xu
~HEROXAY By 0 POy g pur 2w pRyraag ‘el
aepsureg Wi puy [ag 0} eauwiua oy} Jo Istm spank gge
FIRDE PUOY YR URAID~PIOJIB[[ON) S} o jurod v woay prey

‘GELT J,H.Qﬁai.ﬁ HIQE—SIVOY aNvY SITHAIEY

9 WOoJj JoesIxy

‘ef

g0r




T

BROOMLEE LOUGH
Bofas of Wt BHT B Tod Sagiombar 1636

ot 313 3ond Apt 1695

g e

A

=)
[~
"v-|:.-..--

T
X I gy N
€

SCALE 1:15,000

Northumberland Ordnance Survey 3rd Edition 6" map (1924-6)

County Council

Page 51



Extract from the Council’s 1951 Highways Map

oW o

HUMSHAUG
g

2k o4
.... :

Vasvesnbnwa
2 7




Survey Map (Haltwhistle RD aréa)

LC

il

e

B AT '
— & /

| — -
i




Survey Map (Hexham RD area)

- s

k= Hemmel

Page 54



P

Draft Ma

GH

BROOMLEE LOU

!
:
w
i

10 & 1evg




Provisional Map

-
-

- BROOMLEE LOUGH
Ty = Burfoms of Water 8388 Ind Sepiember |55




1:10,560 O.S. Map
1957

e o
e ool \;—a "
52

—
=

BROOMLEE

T Laribxerk § e

i et SN
(o e ¥

b e 0o Quarry mhfﬂrr,/ E

e ~., King's Wil L%

o

2 S -
g Bim B, s -
Fairy Stox ht
EordrcsatH Howse
i

VERCOVICIUM s, M

woran L K
S s

= .
LQN"“-.«M 3 raraTt s,
5 - : ; et e

/

7 Abtars found -,‘\K

LR T
4. D. 1883 oz,
5 VT
by
AOMAM TEHPE e 3

Site ofd

SEEITILiey

= 0




- AT

8z'0
B82*0

90°0
. T2

85°0.
30
Se*z

09°0 -
LT°0
ere
TL*0

02

aa
7

82°0

64L°0E

-

_ ‘ ~ *peOy 20TSeY JO pue yAou 0f TTTH IT8j
pus %.om,_.qmﬂm BTA T3S T Tey 18dey) 1STPOURSH 48 69°Y WoX I
. sgpael /4 89BII0] FJOIOUSY .
. xm@nmh 06 “3esxqg yoamyy ‘spred g Yoeq oIowsdhg ‘spIaf ZOT
j00.q9g saomsddy ‘spief OGT J0J YGNOS STISTUNGTRH 8 69°Y woIg
*spred QT 40F SPIGAYLIOU TITH PTISe)H 38 69°F woig

| sumTTEp URWOY OYf JO 9SINCs sug,04 dep meystdey pus vnommno
BTA Yusqaoy 9Seq qe LIBpUnog AOTISTI Teimy WeUISutiTog o woxg

.moﬂwa.dm.nm 3811qeeg JO ﬁnm 3880 03 e33 JO 180M~1q.10U QL% WOLJ
*nreg TTTH SaqFD 0% esmonTresi £33n Jo 9820 BEOLeN UOLL

*usetn uopulay o1 Log
Jong pue ssuogg AdATTS era JeddTg oY 18 UANG uorBnIUO] WOIJ

“SPTSTes) ov_ peox glIA uotgounf of spaesmgaou 3ITY uangneg
32T LAysneg og SS1OH TTON £39m9 Jo 98ea QLOLN WOLZ
.Hooﬁm TIQHEY JO THTOS SOE°D T92d PTA PonoIg 99ug 98 RTEQ°H WOXg

’ . *2NTg quewadpng
Sm@.nmmpgpw.nb ma,wu H.mﬂnuﬁmm%pmma@mor.baoah

*uieg opTSTEel

o1 useay so3pw pue vmmﬂ.nnsm ‘uuy osnog Tougoy 5% m.mmm g woxg .

*53e80uees 48 SIEQ™G 03 PUOY BOTSEY BTA STISTUMTEH 38 69°F uoIg
*afeqq00 Srexn 35 ZEOL'N ©% ©3ED TTRUSedT 98 IL9°g Jurssord

‘aquy TTEYSEST Jo UYMOS SpIed OfT TTSH S99 O} Peoy WoXy

‘ *wrej 31edEy Mo
Jo yanos spaef og qurod e o9 33Ty epreatysSurduey WOXJ

paBATog JyBnoag S

_ *oTISTUN.TRH
‘TTrH *Fed pue peoy UITH

T8 w300034, pUB
ST T SUTUHOT 8, AqueT

*oTISTUMITRH ‘SueT TTTH

| »dep neyspdey ~ JUBqa0l 988

uoTyequely 89tagesg

peoy Wxed TTTH S99F) -

*USSJH UOPUTE) = udng UOTTSD JU0q

-*oprsTes « JITY wmgne)
*peoy FTTu Ludney

~Tooypg wangEey — poneg 8oug
*peoy WIB{ OPTSOTUH

——— |

OPTLET2OM - TUT IENOH UOWOS
oqeSousyg ~ STASTYNGTAH

8e88gq0) Br2dg — ogep TIeYEee]

*mied 1TedIy noq

a|npayag peoy AJunon 8561

LyoLn

- ofoln
Sroltn

JnLa

R

£voL*n
gvoLn

Tosn
o%pen
B
segen
o
LEoL*n

ocolL
ceoLn

eoL*n

geoLtn



Original Definitive Map
Haltwhistle RD area




NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL

NATTONAL PARKS AND ACCESS TO THE COUNTRYSIDE ACT, 1949,
PART IV,

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY — STATEMENT.

1' m‘m R IE IR N I TN 3 I IR S BN I IR O R BRI N B NN N N L BL I U N BN RE BN L B BRI N I

mﬁmﬁﬁt A4 PO PR IALEANET AR P REARNET NSRRI EPRAIINREI N T
R'llral District .............MWISTLEua-.---aa.-nn.-.abi-o-

AR N RN R RN N RN RN NN RN RN NN NN RN R RN RN ENE R X]

- . 2. Parish : BARDON MITL

3. Num.t)er Of FOOtmth On mp .llIlI'lIiﬂlliliﬁvzttitrt‘.l'..'l".-0.|'|l‘.‘0

4. N&me ofPath [ BN TN ENENNESENERENENRNEENNENENEENENIERJNERLERNESXNNESN)

5- I{ind of Path (j.sEc FP/BR) ‘llIb.l.q"tlttdF:‘Pi;Ou‘l.i.t.‘llll.tloll.tl"tt.

6. Genersl Description of Path tensse, From F.Py 1 near Hotbenk in a North-

westerly and north essterly direction to the Brsdley Gate — East

L R A R R N NN NN N N N N N R YR R I Y Y A Y T Y Y
-

. Hotbark road north-west of Guddy's Crags. Lo v et Lo

~
) f - i word
LR AR Al R AR Rl L R R R e NN YT Y RN . s

-] -
X R R R RS A RN N N A N L)

I( : '

'-.} ./(:ﬁ‘ \.i{j(,:f_‘ P

[ ¥4
i D A T L
4038l .'.’.‘."".1l..l.;-ﬂitl"..0l.’l.l‘.‘.'..l.l"'...l'.'l.l".‘l....‘.....'a

t-.o...t-tt--.o-co.!tcl.O-Iooiuuconhllcontotgounn-i.-n-alltﬂt.l.l.l..l.ll.oon-

LA N N Y Y Y N N R R R A R S R R R R R I RN A N A I A X IR TN W N

7' other re:}.ﬁvan.t infOI‘matiOIl RN R N RN NN R R AN N NN NN
LR R N e NN e R T N I I N N T Ty
CICI‘.OIllt-lco-¢0--¢-ano¢o..oac;oocnI-at...nllop’..all!.-cIIOO'.'.;--!llllJOU
MR A N R N N N N NN N N I R N N R RN NN NN NN RN
LA R RS AR A A L A N N LR N N Ty T I R R R NN N E RN N NN NN NN ERE NN NS Y NN

L N N N N N N NN N Y Y A R R R R N X Y Y T YRR

Page 60 _




L,

Te

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNGIL

WATIONAL PARKS AND ACGESS TO THE COUNTRYSIDE ACT, 1949.
PART IV,

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY ~ STATEMENT.

e °
Bﬁﬁﬂmgﬁic T T I A e N R N NN R R R LN

1hﬁﬁﬂﬁzﬁxﬂaﬂmﬁx .-'a-‘.‘....;g|.||..t...o...cllcOlli.lloicnvnt

Rural DiStriCt q-.a----.-ogygﬁwgggxmgi.--o.n--.-..av----.o-.c

BARDON MILL

Pearish ’ N e R R N A R A N A R A

Number OfFootpath Onmp . ..‘.'l‘li.ll..‘.?ll.1‘....I.I‘It.l."l"'l.l'.

Name Of Path 'lll.‘l.ilDCIiociOtcll.lontocct-!atclluIlﬂ..oc

Kind Of Path (iteO FP/ER) Oooluq--.--o.?ﬂPb.loa]o-----.o----nuo-oovouoc.m

General Description of Path . .Fsc?zn. :th.e ???‘fi}??. f‘:‘a_'b'e' ane ?F.S:b Ho:t:nangc caver e

road north of Jenkin's Burn in a northerly direction to the Hexham

OO‘U!..‘bl.ivQ‘II..oloootioonrotcnoo.Olit-lQOQOl.u-ctcao.lllto!h.!'liﬂlﬁtaillo

" Rural District boundary esst of East Stone®lds. joining F,P, 14 in the

b'lbolool&olooonuob.lt'n-nlaco..u..q.ii.llull.t&tﬁbtcllt'1!.‘ldllalilioI'llll. T

Parish of Siponbm.

EEXEEERE LR R N tct-tobnccoou|nnn---o'-o---OGalca-00--00--0l-ttttﬂbtii"'lliﬁ"ﬂi'
so.-.n..........q.-..............;.a........g..qo-aa-.-cooofailtsal!ooa-oootio

Il.ll.l.tl..UO"I.I.OOIII.II..OI'.!ri-Cli..ﬂl.l't"‘lo.‘.l..llIJ.Q!l.ol.i-l.l’

Other relesvant information tdvseresEaTEILEEsRUSRIETIARRIRIbR AR TIAIRIRIITAS

-ococc--t.ﬁ-c-oo..o.ouaao------oouo--;sl--0i--00titc-‘10""¢‘*0""‘°-"-"0'

!.coov..tu!tt--vo.t.oon'00¢too¢tlstu.--t.lllil‘t.l‘l.lll.ll‘.‘i‘i.Ii-‘rlatoalo

.0‘!."Uollcidotll".tll..c"onllDoélnitdtﬁll(ll!‘.ll.‘l‘."‘".C"".'....i'l
¥

o.-o-cno--o-accco-saonso-o-o,v-------.’ccclnccvsnovuvt-'vniv'-"O-v'---Ol"ltv

o-oooo;nctobos;-o---.u..n.a-onooc.cc-uyunnou-vaoouon---oo-ocaiolta‘vo--btc-ool

Page 61 .



1.

3.

"

7.

o

{JW&Q.J b3 Mt}dtkﬁ:u}r:.oﬁ Ordos (No'b)mar:'c".'}

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL

NATIONAL PARKS AND ACCESS TO THE COUNTRYSIDE ACT, 1949.
PART 1V,

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY -~ STATEMENT,

ﬁﬂxﬂﬂghx l!..l..ll'l!l.l...l'.l.l.".'l.'."".l‘l.‘.'.
ﬁ@hﬂﬂxﬂixﬂriﬂt YT R R R R R Ty vy R R AN R R R R A R N RN

Rural DiBtrict . l.u.JtDtou...!quﬂnﬂtﬁinnaocll.l'...'...o..l.t .

BARDON 1MILL

PariSh It0.&.lilaccuvo.ull!oocaot!ODOOUOOODIOIUDOIVil
25
Number of Footpath on NEP E PRI AN e E B s s sl REs Rt tREINIERNOINBIRIEORES

Namﬁ Of Path ' I--ltncblo!!al-.l"-'p.cl'llucnll.louu.--.ltoi

Kind Of Path (igeo FP/BR} ....-no-..ooo-..?&I&--ntooi--aaoouno-ooo.nc.ct

the Public road south of Cuddy's
General'nescription Of Path I??T%{..fi."‘i.ill.l..l..i..ll";f?i.’l.l....

Crags in a north-essterly direction along the Roman Wall by Housesteads

lcooonvoooo-oto..t-o-;ualoo-.'ocnco‘Ol!oo-.o.o‘ooiiioltlhoitttl'o.0't0l|

Grags, end the Roman fort to the Hexham Rural Distriet boundary Jjolning

?}?& gzjga;qﬁﬁ q?r%qh Of andon. [ 3 L] TEFTEECEEEZETERE R R AN E RN NN BN AN B

..l..l-Qoltl#ll..lI'..CDll.'l!lt!.l..lll...llll‘l'l..llll.('l...‘.'..“t"l'l’

.-.C'I't..ac‘Q..-.cdoci.--l"lill‘!vl.l‘qD.lt.ts...-p--nn-ol.ccl....l‘ltc...‘..

OthEr rEISvant information ‘ll!‘.'ol'!.-.Q.ltl;.I.!.‘lll“'l.l..‘...'t..i
.Dincllu-anilnta-oDlw!lsoot-otlaneua-ocaooolo-.QOUOQUCUIUOIOC'!itﬂiGOOOIOIOOOO
accunon-onossns.Jpc-c--'oo|..ot:.coot'u.vltllclltillll!il-'!O"‘-C""*"""'
D-COUCUOILUOQQODDIOQQOt'-i....snla.n.a.n..i.--.-ccoltl.lllloallll.i.l.tli.....
e Y A X R R P R A RN N R R RS R A AR R R A A A

R R R e e e R A N R R R AR A A A A

Page 62

v & a8 l...l‘l...’.!Il.'..l.ll‘l'..'..'...'."l"...' 4



Original Definitive Map

Hexham RD area

Page 63



Extract from the Council’s 1964 Highways Map

Page 64



82*0

€e°0

90%0
e
86¢*0
280
$8%2

09°0
LT*0
PR
L0

R
Te307

“BOEO L]

® WEYXSE

*Urauxey

*WBRHSH
*URYXSH
*uretixey
*UIGXOH

T WEXSY

.Emnxmm_

*WEelXal

*WBUKSY
sweyxay

*EYTIO0F0Y
JI0 UOTETAT(J
oTqTsucdsay

*pEOy BOTSOY JO PUS UIIOW 4B G£0L*N WEOl 03 TTHH

sgpaed £4
*cpask g
sgpaef g0T

c*gpaBl 06

*apaed 29T
*opash N@a

ITey pue peoy USTH BTA sprengsen Tedwyy JeTPOULSH 3% 2OE°D WOIL

*OOBIJD], DIBNOH
qoBE 4oadqg BJowendd

*0eI-op-TNo 18818 SIOUEILS

*oBE-OP-TT0 998345 oD

*6o*Y 0% spaeaygnos ‘ZOCt0
éqesaqg uTeN Woxy Supuuog s Lquey
DBE~SP~TNO 20BIIS], FIOIOUSY

: OTASTUMGTEH

WL-ZOE*n JI0 Spammygnos BulUUna £4eed18 BUTMOTTOF OUJ

egpred QOT a0J SpawMylaou eTqsTuUmgTBH ‘TTTH ST45B) 9% ZOE'D Woag

‘UMTTRA UEWOy 9UG

Jo ssanoo syy oq den meysTdey pue pusSea) BTA SPIBMGSOR~ULNOS
Nueqqof 458F 98 AJTepuncq GOTIISTq Tedny WeysuTIred oYUy WO

*UOTLBIUET

g3taqeed Jo pue pmmm 0y Tesq JO 48OM-ULIOU SEOL*[ WOLT

LTSy

TTTH Sq4tnH Of SPIengsse-U9eIou Ssnof TTeN JO Pmmo 8COL* L WOXF

*ussan uoputan oy Log

Xong - pus gouons hmoaﬂm BLA nwmaﬁm 8Uq 3® uIng UOTLRH quod WOX{
*OPTSTBEM 01 PEOI U3Th uoTjoun{ 09 SpIremyqaou 881y wmque) woxg

s39Ty AySneg 07 SPJIBMITACU 2ENOH -TTOM JO 9888 REQL* [ WOIT

sToCUOg UIngMB) JO 1008 mom 0 urel O 9sMOY TTeM

3|npayog peoy Ajuno) 961

pus Tosy ®TA EDIEMGSON DUB SPIERURIOU PAMSIE S0UQ 4B STEQ H woag

ety quewelpnd

07 SPTSOTUN BLA SPIBAGIOU eey TLTUSHUSH JO 4594 QLOL*() WOXJ
. -ﬂDHﬂﬂ.HUm.MQ

*ST4STUNGTBH
‘ITFH arei pue peoy UdtH

“onaln 7o
.ngwﬁﬂﬁkﬁﬁ\\W<SQ\¥H«uxﬁm

S Yy mmwuﬂm 20>

*20€*D fgeeagg UTEN JO
ygnog ‘egeexlg STISTUMTEH

*oT4STyMgTeH ‘eue] T

*dey weysTdeR-RURGION qeg
*peoy uoTqEauerd 38Tajesqg

*peoy wred TTIH SqqTY)
An\ Hu teerlired¥ u....w..d
*uosIs)

nO@sanstnsm TOTTEH Juog
 SopTSTReM~FSTY uvIngne)

spuoy 88Ty fydneg

" *TOOUOg UAMGNE~peMalg SOUQ

*peOY WABL SpTELTUN

+PEOY 50 SWeN

Lrolen

SreLen

gyoLn

ol n
T}
O
£70L'®
(@)
©
2v0/60

VoLt 0
o%oL*n
6eoLtn

8L0L" 0
LEOL® 01

ON
aqnoy



First Review Definitive Map
(1963)

TURRET 364
iSire of )=




PO SIS DT N LY AN T o desiie

——— i —

£, hY - v - -
eaane D Ry HneraniGe)

O3 Tt it (r\mg) Ve FRST REVIEW OF DEFINITIVE MAP
W 1ol

RELEVAMT DATE . T NOVEMBER 1963

NORTHUMEERLAND GOUNTY COUNCIL.,

NATTONAL PARKS AND ACCESS TO THE CQUNTRYSIDE ACT, 1949,
Paird IV,

PUBLIG RIGHTS OF WAY - STATEMENT.

l. Bcﬂquh PV E PSSR RPN RAP I RSANHIBERI S NNBUI PP BB ITROPID
Ubbanﬁamsbﬂmut (AR EENEE SRR NN RER SR L NN RES N NN NN NNES AR RN NN

Rural District Icc'l‘}¥§HQQ¥£§q qtOttaQIDD‘OQ.......‘JOQ‘..Q.

- . Pﬁri& Bardon Mill

SRV E PSSP C PP T AR sETIRAETRLARSILAGRENYIOQOOSESLS

30 Numb&r Qf FOOtPEth on Map nol.con--o}oaslo.-Qolqololinocloilool.!tlaioco

A. Nama Of Patb IR RS AR R LN AN ERE R RN A RS NESENY YRS ZES R R AR R ER Y]

5‘ Kind Qf Path {i‘eo FR/BR) Docve‘l}?¥¥¥?9g100lct.‘..--Q-.é!t.ttit“t.-.to

. From F.P.4 in the Parish of Henshaw at th
60 Gener&l Descriptton'Of Phth 0’0f?:.au.f&.fiot:in:??filfilnf??itfi.ji’.ffi!

. Farish, Boundary, near, Oreg, Lough in a north-pasterley, direction alore Fpdrien's
Wall %o, the West side of Cuddy's Crags, thep, in, 8, norih-vesterly, snd, easterly.
direction, crossing the County Road (U,70443, ko, the, Hexhem Rursl, District....,
Boundary at King's Wicket joining F.P. 4 in the Parish of Haydon.

.‘...Q"..-l.I”.’..'..I"‘.“.....lIl'l-CIIDCODCOIQQIIItl'l.Il......l....."

.'.““'I.‘.’...'........'.l..lt..l(ll-l"-l‘l.l..l‘l.!l‘...I--'.-lt...ll...‘

7. Other relevant information T NIy nrmnoOTOTnIInmnooOoOTm
'....l"'"l..'..ll.’.Jl.-l..IQDDEOOCOOCQOOIQQIOl'.[.ll.!l.ll.ll...:.l.l.'l..

..II.Dl'.0.&.‘0""..I.i..l'...'l..l..lDl'.'l.l.Q.IQ.“'I‘D.....D.!‘llO'..l..

AR A AR RAE R AL S RS L Y R Y I Y N Y N N Y Y R R F R S S S R XS I L ]
LA A AR R RSl R S R AL Y Y R R Y N S N Y Y Y RN Y T T S S R Y N AN Y N ]

!toillnlont..‘nlo.toll.o.ﬁlittO..i..ti.t.o.vo‘lvo.p.;--.-o.-l-oloot.tp-noooto

Page 67 : l




g3°0 *UQTSTIALY :
LIBYX9H . : *sparA QQT 207 SpIEMULIOU
. (Zv92TL AN) ®T3STUMITRH TTIH TSR3 3B Z0E*D Woig *oT)STUMITRH ‘ouwt TIW IGvGL R
12°2 *UOTSTATY *(18978L AN) UMTTRA URWOY BYL JO 2SINOD 3l o} dey
wWeyxay ‘meysidey pueg pusbaxn BIA SPIEMISSM-UINOG Amovﬂo> AN Aﬁm:omwwmv
yUBQlOH 15Eg 1' AIRpUROQ USTITd UINQUOWTS 3Yl woig .nmw meystdeyg-~yueqlod 1SeJ oL,
8570 R .cowwﬂmwﬂ *uoT1BElIUETS DhTIERg jO . : )
o pus 3sE3 03 Spooﬂ AN) Tead fo. pm@sifuoq BEOL N Woxg ' speoy uotielURld BSTIlEAd |E40L'n
e . L .
280 *UOTSTAT( uIng MED YL ISA0 wmvﬂgq 8yl - :
HEY XY amcﬁvsﬁuca pue fsg JIBJ S® UIBJ TITH SOQTD SPI2MOT SpIem . - iy
. ~1588-y30U (TRYEFL AN) 95NOH TTOM 30 3588 gEOL’N WOIg peoy WIBJ TTTH 59410 [Z¥OL
Lo “UOTSTATG *(90L0EL AN)USRID uoputan 03 Sog yong wa 3315 1I1TIQ ) .
QL® T Leuxs ¥00y utqoy ‘e1is ALBTITOD. TI®H $,Ioujuep ‘sberl Buipxay v q ot e
i T BIA (889£ZL AN) U9SID $95p3 JO YIIOU 3SnT QFQLR woad *usRaY UCPUTIDH - UBSIY $90PF ITHOLIN
.0@.0 . .c%%wmwwm . *(O59CSEL AN) 2PTSTREM 03 DBOI UM .A@wgumpwau )
. . ) uotyoun{ o3 SpaeMylIou (£898%L AN) BBry uIngmen woxg ~ep1sTRAN-B5TY uanomed lovos'd - ©
AT10 *UOTSTATQ . *BHTH Aubneg o3 , mm_
weyxay spreMylIou (ZT8U0VL >zv 9SN0oH HHmB 0 1SES QoL woxg *peoy BETY Audnes l6E0L°n
‘lzee ,TUDTSTIATY *(¥LOGCL ANY) *TOOUDG UIngMe) jo .
WeyXay ynos gogen utol 01 Isnol IT9) puR fasg BiA Spiemisam ’ )
pue spaemylIou (OL9EGL AN) Pamezg e2up 1B 8TLQog WOIY *TOOYUDS UINGMEBD-PaMaXd 92u)  |BE0L]
e TUOTSIATG 9375 juswebpnd 03 SPTSPITUY BTA SPIBMUIIOU -peOy WIBJ SPISOITUM |LEOL™N
e (06990L AN) 93BD TTTUSHUBE 3O 38eM QEOLeN WOXJ :
A £y Txoyrny ‘
FEoTTH _ ‘o
renol afeoTH IC UCTeTATE uotydTIosag ‘ peROY JO ouwey N
@ e1qTevodsey : SIN0E

o|npayog peoy Ajunod 6L ,

Py -



e

P
3R e

Broomlee Lough

Northumberland

County Council

Network Management
Information System

Highways Act 1980 Section 36(6)
County of Northumberland

List of Streets which are highways

maintainable at the public expense

as at 02-May-2006

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office
Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. License no. 100049048 (2015).

Drn:

AB

Date:
May 2022

Scale:

1:15,000

Page 69




Highways Act 1980 Section 36(6)
County Of Northumberland

List of Streets which are highways maintainable at the public expense

Road Number

uzo41

uro42

U7043

U7044

uro4s

uro46

02-May-2006

As at 02-May-2006
Description Length - Metres
Total length for U7041 6,004
U7038 JCT TO CAWBURN BRIDGE 1,336
Total length for U7042 1,336
U7038 JCT TO PEATRIGG PLANTATION 926
Total length for U7043 926
COURSE OF ROMAN VALLUM TO EAST HO 3,587
Total length for U7044 3,587
C302 JCT TO MILL LANE 105
Total length for U7045 105
GRANGE ROAD TO BACK OF WESTGATE 24
SYCAMORE BACK STREET 38
SYCAMORE BACK STREET 15
€302 JCT TO SYCAMORE STREET 76
GRANGE ROAD 73
WESTGATE BACK STREET 45
€302 JCT TO GRANGE ROAD 49
C302 JCT TO GRANGE ROAD 50
C302 JCT TO BLACK BULL LANE 90
C302 JCT TO MARKET PLACE 32
C302 JCT TO ASHCROFT TERRACE 94
C302 JCT TO 30MPH HALTWHISTLE (SOUT 103
30MPH HALTWHISTLE (SOUTH) TO A69 JC 91

Page 461 of 730

Page 70



Neutral Citation Number: {2012] EWHC 1976 { Admin)

Case No: C0O/2453/2012

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE

QUEEN'S BENCH DIVISION :
ADMINISTRATIVE COURT IN MANCHESTE

Manchester Civil Justice Centre

1 Bridge Street.
Manchester M60 8DJ

Date: 19/07/2012 -

Before :

MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM

Between :

Kumar Shamrao Kotegaonkar

Claimandt
- and -~
(1) The Secretary of State for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs
(2) Bury Metropolitan Borough Council
Defendanis

Stephen Sauvain QC (instructed by Jubilee Law) for the Claimant
Tim Buley (instructed by the Treasary Solicitor) for the First Defendant
The Second Defendant not appearing.

Hearing dates: 28 June 2012

Approved Judgment
I direct that pursuant to CPR PD 39A para 6.1 no official shorthand note shall be taken of this
Judgment and that copies of this version as handed down may be treated as authentic.

THE HON MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM

Page 71



MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM Kotegaonkar v Secretary of Stute for Enviroyment,
Approved Judpment Food and Rural Affairy

MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM:

Introduction

1.

This claim raises this question: can a way which is not connected fo another public
highway, or to some other point to which the public have a right of access, itself be a
public highway?

Legal Backaround to the Claim

2.

Under section 53(2)(b) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, a surveying
authotity has a duty to ptepare and keep under continuous review a “definitive map
and statement” recording public rights of way within the administrative area for which
it is responsible, and to modify that map and statement where events listed in section
53(3) occur which appear to the authority to require such a modification. Those
events include:

“(b) the expiration, in relation to any way in the area to which
the map relates, of any period such that the enjoyment by the
public of the way during that period raises a presumption that
the way has been dedicated as a public path...

(¢) the discovery by the authority of evidence which (when
considered with all other relevant evidence available to them)
shows —

(i) that a right of way which is not shown on the map and
statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over
land in the area to which the map relates, being a right of -
way such that the land over which the right subsists is
public footpath...”. :

Schedules 14 and 15 set out a procedure by which a member of the public can apply
to the authority for a modification of the map and statement. If, upon investigation,
the authority is satisfied that a ground for amendment is made out, then it may make
an order of modification. However, if an objection to that order is lodged within the
specified time period, then the order does not take effect unless and until it Is
confirmed by the Secretary of State, who may (and usually does) appoint an inspector
under paragraph 10 of schedule 15 to make the appropriate decision.

Schedule 15 of the 1981 Act and the Rights of Way (Hearings' and Inquiries
Procedure) (England) Rules 2007 (SI 2007 No 2008) provide the procedure for the
inspector to follow. He may decide to confinm the order, with or without
modifications (paragraph 7(3) of schedule 15); or not confirm the order, in which
event the order does not take effect (paragraph 2 of schedule 15). The inspector must
give reasons for his decision {rules 14(2) and 26(2) of the 2007 Rules).

By paragraph 12 of schedule 15 , if a person is aggrieved by an order which has taken

effect, then he may apply to the High Court which may, if satisfied that the order was
not made within the powers of the Act, quash the order or the relevant part of it.

Page 72



MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM Kotegaonkar v Secretayy of State for Envirgnment,
Approved Judgment Food and Rurat Affairs

Other than by that procedure, the validity of an order “shall not be questioned in any
legal proceedings whatsoever” (paragraph 12(3)).

Factual Backeround te the Claim

6. In the late 1990s, the Claimant Dr Kumar Kotegaonkar wished to purchase a plot of
land in Mill Lane, Bury (“the plot of land™), between the Mile Lane Health Centre and
a parade of shops, from the Second Defendant (“the Council”). The health centre is
privately owned by the Bury Primary Care Trust (“the PCT”). The shops are
privately owned by the Claimant and a third party, jointly.

7. Because a route of paving stones was visible, from the health centre car park across
the plot of Jand to the forecourt of the shops, during the negotiations for the sale and
purchase of the plot of land, the Claimant’s solicitors wrote to the Council, as vendor,
to enquire about it. Having earlier noted that no such path was shown on the
definitive map, on 24 June 1999 the Council Solicitor wrote to the Claimant’s
solicitors:

“In respect of the paving stones which have been laid across the
site { have received confirmation from the Borough Engineer
that the Health Centre Manager was verbally given permission
to place the paving stones along the Council’s land and
therefore there is no possibility of prescriptive.rights being
acquired as the Council’s consent was initially sought...”. .

8. The sale and purchase of the plot of land proceeded to completion in 2002.

9. In April 2008, the Claimant sought planning permission from the Council to develop
the plot of land for sheltered housing. There was some opposition to this
development; but planning permission was granted on 7 August 2008.

10.  On 15 August 2008, an anonymous letter accompanied by 30 right of way user forms
was submitted to the Council, claiming a public right of way over the plot of land
from the health centre car park to the forecourt of the shops. On 16 February 2009, a
formal application was made to the Council as the relevant surveying authority under
schedule 14 of the 1981 Act for recognition of the claimed path as a public footpath,
by a modification order to add the path to the definitive map and statement. The
claimed path was from Watling Street (a public highway), over the land on which the
health centre stands, and then along the line of paving stones across the plot of land to
the forecourt of the shops.

11.  !The Council duly made an order (the Metropolitan Burgr (Public Footpath Number
181, Bury) Order 2010, “the Footpath Order™), but limiting the route of the path to
where it left the health centre land, on the basis that there was no identifiable specific
route across that land, The public footpath was consequently restricted to the crossing
of the plot of land.

12, The Claimant objected to the Footpath Order and, under the provisions of the 1981
Act to which I have referred, the Secretary of State appointed an inspector, Ms Susan
Doran (“the Inspector™). Following investigation, she found that the footpath was
dedicated both under the provisions of section 31(1) of the Highway Act 1980 (to

Page 73



Al

13.

MB JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM Eotegaonkar v Secretary of State for Environment,
roved Judement :

Food 2nd Rural Affalrs

which I shall turm shortly), and at common law. She dismissed the objection, and
confirmed the Footpath Order; a decision which, effectively, disenables the Claimant
from proceeding with the development of the plot of land in accordance with the
planning permission he has obtained.

In this claim, he seeks to quash the Tnspector’s decision.

Highways

14.

15.

16.

17.

Curiously, “highway” is not defined in any of the Highways Acts, nor does it appear
to be defined in any other relevant statute. Even the interpretation provisions of the
main statute (now section 328 of the Highways Act 1980) do not define the tern: they
merely provide that it includes “the whole or part of the highway”. Consequently, for
the definition of “highway”, recourse must be had to the common law.

In the words of Wills J in Ex parte Lewis (1888) 21 QBD 191 at 197, a highway is:

“_..aright for all Her Majesty’s subjects at all seasons of the
year freely and at their will to pass and repass without let or
hindrance.”

Whilst later cases may have used less flamboyant language, that definition is
uncontroversial, well-settled and is adopted as the definition of “highway” in
Haisbury’s Laws of England, Vol 55, “Highways, Sireets and Bridges”, 5th Edition
(2012).

At common law, a “highway” is therefore a public right of way, defined by reference
to a number of essential characteristics, namely:

i) The passage must be as of right, not mere permission.
ii) The right must be a right to pass at will.

iii)  Although the right may be for a limited purpose - such rights of passage may
be for vehicles (i.e. a road), or for pedestrians and animals (i.e. a bridleway), or
for pedestrians only (i.e. a footpath) — it must be a right owned by the whole of
the public, not merely a portion of the public.

iv) The right must be over a defined route: the common law did not recognise a
right to stray or wander over land.

vy The right must be permanent: a highway c ot be extinguished at comumon
- law except by way of complete physical destruction, hence the maxim, “Once
a highway, always a highway”. Short of physical destruction, extinguishment

relies upon statutory provisions.

Before the Highway Act 1835, the creation of a highway was also dependent upon the
common law, which identified two essential elements: dedication by the owner of the
land, and acceptance by the public of the way. Each element was important. For a
landowner, the dedication of a highway over his land meant that he divested himself
forever of the right to exclude members of the public from using the dedicated land
for the purposes for passing and repassing. For the public, the-dedication of a

Page 74



MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM Kntegaonkar v Secretary of Stafe for Environment,

Approved Judement ] Food and Rurst Affalrs

18.

19.

-20.

21.

- highway meant the adoption of a burden as well as a benefit: for example, liability for

the repair of almost all highways fell upon the public in the form of the parish in
which the highway was situated. It is therefore unsurprising that the common law
required an intention both on the part of the landowner permanently to divest himself
of some of his propmetonal rights, and on the part of the public to accept the utility of
the way.

Dedication by a landowner could be by way of express act or declaration; but, even in
the absence of clear evidence of such an express intention, it could be inferred from
usage by the public and acquiescence in that use by the landowner. Although
sometimes referred to as a “presumption”, there was no presumption of dedication at
common law: the common law simply accepted that a conclusion that dedication by
the owner had occurred at some time in the past could be inferred from evidence as to
the manner and length of usage (although, at common law, no particular length of
time of usage was either necessary or sufficient). Such a conclusion, however, could
only be based upon a finding, express or mplicit, that the usage of the route in the
past had been as a highway.

Therefore, for the route to become dedicated as a highway the past usage had to be by

. the public, and not a mere section of the public: the inference would therefore be

thwarted by a restriction of the persons enabled to use the way, e.g. to the inhabitants
of a particular parish (Poole v Huskisson (1843) 11 M & W 827). Further, the
previous use had to be as of right, and not, e.g., by way of permission of the
landowner: so that the inference might also be thwarted by evidence of signs placed
on the way making clear that the landowner granted permission for the public to use
the route over his land.

The common law rules remain important, as will soon become apparent. However,

-the creation of highways is now the subject of statute.

The current provisions are found in the Highways Act 1980. These provisions cover
creation by (for example) construction, agreement, declaration and order. In addition,
whilst the common law required actual dedication by a landowner (whether express or
implied), section 31(1) of the 1980 Act creates a statutory presumption of dedication
of a route as a highway, in the following terms:

“Whete a way over any land, other than a way of such
character that use of it by the public could not give rise af
common law fo any presumption of dedication, has been
actually enjoyed by the public as of right and without

. interruption for a full period of 20 years, the way is to be

' deemed to have been dedicated as a highway unless there is
sufficient evidence that there was no intention during that
period to dedicate it” (emphasis added).

Unlike the common law, that provision does create a true legal presumption. If the
conditions of the provision are satisfied, then, as a matter of law, dedication is deemed
to have occurred; although the presumption is expressly rebuttable, by evidence that
there was no intention during that period to dedicate it.

Page 75



MR JUSTICE HECKINBGTTONM Kotegaonkar v Secretary of State for Environment.

Approved Judgment Food and Rukal Affairg
22.  As can be seen, this statutory provision retains common law concepts. By virtue of

the emphasised words, there can be no deemed dedication of a highway under section
31 if the way over which such dedication is alleged is of such a character that, at
common law, use of it could not give rise to a inference of dedication. As I have
already indicated, there was no presumption of dedicalion known to the common law
(see paragraph 18 above): “presumption” here clearly means “inference”.
Additionally, the statutory requirements retain such common law concepts as
enjoyment of the way by the public as of right.

The Inspector’s Findings and Decision

23

The Inspector found as follows:

i) The health centre land and the land on which the shops are situated — which
are joined by the footpath over the plot of land — are in private ownership, and
there is no public right of way over either of them. In so far as members of the
public enter either piece of land (e.g. to get to the footpath), they do so as
licensees. The Inspector dealt with that 1ssue thus:

“13. There is no legal requirement that a public right of
way must lead to publicly owned land, and clearly many
public rights of way cross private land. 1 agree with the
Coungcil that the shopping parade is a place to which the
public would wish to go (it presently contains amongst
other facilities a supermarket and Post Office), indeed 1
consider the public would have a reasonable expectation
to go there. The Health Centre car park may also be
considered to be a place to which the public may wish to
resort.

16. On balance I consider that in connecting two places
to which the public resort the [path] is not precluded from
existing as a highway.

37. Tt was suggested that if the Order were to be
confirmed, the PCT could fence off their land at point B
[i.e. where the path meets the PCT land]. However this
is not a matter relevant to my consideration of whether or
not the tests have been met and a right of way subsists.”

In the light of those extracts, I should perhaps say, for the avoidance of doubt,
that, even if a public right of way did not exist across the plot of land,
members of the public could very easily walk from the health centre to the
shops, along Watling Sireet and Mile Lane (both public highways), although
the walk may be a few yards longer. The path would do no more than
effectively cut off the short corner made by those two public highways.

Page 76



MR JUSTICE, HICKINBOTTOM ) Kategaonkar v Secretary of State for Environment,
Approved Judgment Food and Rural Aifales

24.

25,

i} The relevant date for “calling into question” the existence of the footpath was
2008, so that, for the purposes of section 31, it was necessary for the
proponents of the footpath to show uninterrupted use of the path as of right by
the public in the 20 year period from 1988.

iii)  There had been a “longstanding short cut across the [plot of] land, as reflected
by the Order” which had been used, uninterruptedly, by members of the public
for the relevant 20 year period.

iv) The key issue was whether the public use of the footpath had been with the
permission of the landowner. It had not.

V) There was no evidence to rebut the presumption of dedication consequently
arising under section 31.

There is no challenge to these findings of fact. On the basis of them, the Inspector
found that the footpath was deemed to have been dedicated to the public as a
highway, nnder section 31.

In the alternative, she held that an implication of dedication arose under the common
law. However, before me, it was common ground that, if dedication could not be
deemed under section 31, then it could not be inferred at common law. The
alternative ground fot confirming the Footpath Order therefore adds mothing of
substance; and I need not deal with it further.

The Issne

26,

27.

28.

29.

The Inspector’s findings of fact set out above satisfy many of the requirements of
section 31: they amount to findings that the way over the plot of land had been
enjoyed by members of the public without interruption for a period of 20 years, and
there was insufficient evidence of intention not to dedicate it during that period.

However, there is a caveat to section 31, namely that the relevant way must not be “a
way of such character that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to
any presumption of dedication”. In this case, Mr Sauvain QC for the Claimant
_submltted that this path was such a way; because, at common law 2 route that is
GSSQI;tIEL]_ c;harac_tggs_tm_of bemg open to pass_age and repassace by all members of the
public at will, and a way to which the public has no right of entry at either end or at
any point along its length cannot be a public highway at commeon law, as a matter of
law.

. Mr Buley for the Secretary of State subrmitted that it could. He accepted that the fact

that a route was inaccessible to the pubhc as of right may be relevant to the question
of whether the landowner had an intention to dedicate — or, in the terms of section 31,
whether the landowner could rebut the presumption of dedication after 20 years
usage. However, he submitted that the common law does not say that, as a matter of
law, a route that is inaccessible to the public as of right cannot be a public h1g11way

There is an additional claim, that the Inspector’s reasons were deficient — but that is
not a claim of substance, because, whatever her reasons, the Inspector was either right

Page 77



ME JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM Kotegnonlar v Speretary of Siate for Envirenment,

Approved Judgment Eond and Rural Affnirs

30.

or wrong in proceeding on the basis that a route that is inaccessible to the public as of
right is capable of being a public highway.

- Tt is that issue upon which this claim falls to be decided.

The Characteristies of a Highway

31.

32

33.

34,

35.

36.

The common law, coyly and somewhat surprisingly, does not appear to have any
authority directly on this issue; and the authorities to which I was referred are, in the
main, old and of limited assistance. The submissions of Mr Sauvain and Mr Buley
were consequently based largely upon general principles, as, inevitably, is this
judgment.

As a matfter of principle, in my judgment, the concept of an “isolated highway” (ie.a
highway that is unconnected to any other highway, either directly or via land over
which the public have a right of access) is incongruolis, because such a way does not
have all of the requisite essential characteristics of a highway, for it is not a way over
which there is “a right for all Her Majesty’s subjects at all seasons of the year freely
and at their will to pass and repass without let or hindrance”.

Where, as here, the only people who can lawfully pass or repass along the relevant
route are those with a licence to enter and cross other land, the public do not have a
right to pass over that route “freely and at their mli” They can only do so at the will
of the owners of the land over Wh10h they have to exercise a license to get to the way.
As a matter of law, those owners may, if they wish, withdraw the licence at any time;
or, in more practical terms, physically block access to the way by walls, fences or
other hindranccs, with the result that the way is unusable by all or possibly any
members of the public. A highway, once in existence, has the additional
characteristic of permanence, in the sense that it cannot cease to exist at common law,
short of physical destruction. Where access to the way might lawfully be blocked at
any time by adjacent landowners, the public’s ability to pass along the way is not as
of right and is of such fragility that it simply does not and cannot have the necessary
“characteristics of a highway.

The fact that, in practice, the owners of the land at either end of the path may not have
put any restrictions on those who are allowed to cross their land, either currently or in
the recent past, is not to the point. The definition of a highway is determined by the
nature of those who use the way; they must have a right, practically enforceable, to do
$0.

The position would of course have been different in this case if there was additionally
a public right of way over the health centre land and/or the 'land on which the shops
are sitnated, joining one or both ends of the route over the Claimant’s land to the
public highway; but the Inspector made an express finding that that was not the case.

In the terms of section 31, in my judgment a way to which the public has not had
access from another highway or from other land over which the public have access as
of right fails to meet the statutory criteria because, on a frue analysis of the common
law principles upon which the statutory criteria are founded, (i) it has not been
enjoyed “as of right” for the requisite (or, indeed, any) period; and (ii) it is a “a way of
such character that use of it by the public could not give nise at common law to any

Page 78



MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOAM Kotepaonkar v Seeretary of State for Environment.

Approved JTudgment : Food and Rural Affairs

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

43,

presumpfion of dedication™ These are not, in truth, distinct deficiencies; but rather
two reflections of the fact that an essential characteristic of a highway is that it must
be a way enjoyed by the public as of right.

There is good justification for that principled approach. A public highway, once in
existence, imposes burdens on the public, including keepmg the way free from
obstructions and, often, the burden of repair and maintenance. There seems to me no
good reason why the common law would or should impose such burdens on the
public, unless the public has the legal right, practically enforceable; to use the way
without any let or leave. If a philanthropic landowner wishes to allow people to cross
his land, in circumstances falling short of those necessary to create a public highway,
then he may do so by other legal means, such as a licence, with possibly a wide scope
of beneficiaries, and possibly of long-standing if not indefinite duration. However, he
cannot, for example, dedicate a route across his land as a public highway if its use is
restricted to a portion of the public, or if the route is insufficiently defined. He cannot
create a public hjghway, with the obligations that that imposes on the public, if that
which he wishes fo give away falls short of the criteria required by Iaw for a highway
to exist.

If that is the direction that principle points, are there any authorities that point another
way?

I should at the outset thank Mr Sauvain and Mr Buley for their assiduous and helpful
research, and their submissions on the cases they have found. Iam confident that they
have missed none of relevance.

I appreciate that the point appears never to have been directly in issue; but it is
noteworthy that in none of these cases has a way that is unconnected to any other
highway, either directly or via land over which the public have a right of access, been

{found to be a public highway; nor, in my judgment, do any suggest that such a way _

might, as a matter of law, be a public highway.

The authorities grapple with (and, in my respectful view, occasionally confuse) two
issues, namely (i) the essential characteristics of a highway (a question of law), and
(i) the intention of the landowner to dedicate (essentially a question of fact, for
determination on the available evidence). The two issues of course are interrelated,
because some factors (such as permission) are relevant {o both, and the nature of the
route may generally be evidence for or against its earlier dedication as a highway: as I
have indicated, a finding of dedication can only be based upon a finding, express or
implicit, that the usage of the route in the past had been as a highway with all the
necessaq( characteristics that that entails, |

However, the issues are nevertheless analytically discrete; they have different bases
(the former being a question of law, and the latter a question of fact); and, in some
circumstances, it may be important to consider them separately. For example, -
whatever a landowner § intention, as 1 have indicated, he cannot dedicate (expressly
or by unphcatlon) a route as a public highway, if that route does not have the
necessary attributes to be a highway.

I have set out above (paragraph 16) the essential characteristics of a highway. Most
of the cases to which T was referred considered whether there was a further such

Page 79



MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM Kotegaonkar v Secretary of State for Environment,
Approved Judgment . Food and Rural Affairs

44,

45.

46.

47,

48.

characteristic, namely whether, as a matter of law, a highway must have a ferminus a -
quo and a ferminus ad quem, 1.e. a public terminus at either end.

Early cases suggested that that might be a legal requirement for a highway. However,
by 1925, it was well-established that a cul-de-sac could be a public highway. In
Moser v Ambleside Urban District Council (1925) 89 JP 118 at page 120, having
approved a passage from another passage from Wills J in Eyre v New Forest Highway
Board (1892) 56 JP 517, Atkin LT said:

“It has been suggested that you cannot have a highway except
insofar as it connects two other highways. That seems to me
that too wide a proposition. I think you can have a highway
leading to a place of popular resort even though when you have
got to the place of popular resort which you wish to see you
have to return on your tracks by the same highway...”.

Two points are worthy of note from that passage. First, the reference 1o “a place of
popular resort” marks the difficulty of proving that a landowner intended to dedicate a
way for public use over his land, where that way is from a place where the public
have a right to be (such as-public highway) to a place where the public have no right
to be. The case makes clear that that.is not a legal bar, but only an evidential
challenge to the person asserting that a highway has been created; but it may be a
substantial challenge in a case conceming a cul-de-sac in a rural place (see, e.g.,
Attomey General v Antrobus [1905] 2 ChD 188, especially at pages 206-7). It will be
easier to prove if the cul-de-sac goes to “a place of popular resort”, such as a local
beauty spot.

Second, Atkin LJ did not suggest that a way without any connection to a highway or
other land to which the public have a right of access might be a highway; indeed, he
referred specifically in the case of the cul-de-sac to the ability “to return on your
tracks by the same Aighway” (emphasis added).

The other main authority to which I was referred, at some length, was Bailey v
Jamieson (1875-76) LR 1 CPD 329, an old and far from easy case. It was refreshing '
to see that the case, to show cause on a rule nisi made by Pollock B at the Newcastle
Spring Assize, was heard in a single day by a Divisional Court of Common Pleas of
three judges (Lord Coleridge CJ, Denman and Lindley IJ), with each judge giving
judgment in a single paragraph that same day. It is on the other hand dispinting that,
over 130 years later, academic writers still debate what the case decided, a debate
which, by virtue of this case, has now spread to this court.

The facts, at least, were straightforward. The case concerned a public highway in the
form of a footpath from Sheepcote Rectory to the village of Bothal, in
Northumberland. However, as a result of stopping up orders properly made by the
local quarter sessions in respect of other highways, there ceased to be any access to
the footpath from a highway, or any other Jand to which the public had access. That
the earlier stopping up orders had left this isolated footpath appears to have been an
error: if a stopping up order had been sought in respect of this footpath also, it seems
inevitable that it would have been granted. However, it was not sought. The evidence
was that the defendants had no permission from any adjacent Jandowners to be on

Page 80



MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM Kotegsonkar v Secretary of State for Environment,
Approved Judgmeng Yood and Bural Affairs

49,

50.

51.

52.

their land; so that they could only access the footpath by trespassing on the adjacent
land to get to it.

The defendants relied upon the common law maxim, “Once a highway, always a
highway”. They submifted that the public footpath could only be extinguished by a
stopping up order or other device provided by statute. However, the court discharged
the rule, helding, as the headnote says:

“A way ceases to be a ‘public highway’ where the access to it
at either end has become impossible by reason of ways leading
to it having been legally stopped up.”

Mr Buley submitted that this case supported his submission that, as a matter of law, at
common law a way isolated from a highway or other land to which the public had a
right of access could be a highway, the difficulty for the proponent of such a highway
being not legal, but evidential. Where a way is isolated from highways and other land :
over which the public have the right of passage or access, for obvious reasons it may
be evidentially difficult to show that there was an intention to dedicate the land for
public passage.

In support of that proposition, and in support of his interpretation of Bailey v
Jamieson, he relied on two passages from Mr Sauvain’s own book, “Highway Law”,
4th Edition (2011). At paragraph 1-18, the author says:

“The existence of a public right of passage across land implies
some reason for the public to exercise the right of way.
Traditionally, highways have been links between towns and
villages. Thus, the need for a public terminus at either end (a
ferminus a quo and a terminus ad quem) has been considered in
the past as a necessary characteristic of a highway. This must,
however, be considered with some caution. Certainly it has
been held, probably as a rule more of convenience than of legal
principle, that if access to a highway is cut off at both ends, asa
result of stopping-up orders, the remaining section, to “which
the public could only have access by trespassing over private
land, ceases to be a highway... Essentially, the existence of a
public terminus is an important element in the evidence to
prove a highway: “It is always a strong observation to a jury
that the way leads nowhere” (per Crompton J in Bateman v
Bluck (1852) 18 QB 870...). However, there is certainly no
rule of law that a cul-de-sac may not be a highway, whether iq
be in a town or in the country. In the latler case, however, a
practical evidential problem may arise in establishing some
reason for the creation of the public right of way.”

He then refers to Moser v Ambleside Urban DlStl‘ICt Council and Eyre v New Forest
Highway Board, before proceeding:

“Where no obvious reason for public use of a cul-de-sac
appears, then other evidence (for example, of repair) will

Page 81



MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM ' Kategaonkar v Seeretary of State for Environment,

Al

53.

54,

55.

56.

57.

raved Ju ent . Food and Rural Affairs

assume greater importance in establishing that the road is a
highway...”.

The second passage is from the chapter on “Extinguishing and Diversion of
Highways”. Having indicated that the common law did not recognise any concept of
abandonment of a highway, except where the route had been physically destroyed, the
text continues (at paragraph 9-05):

“A more difficult point is whether a highway, which becomes
isolated through the physical destruction or legal stopping up of
all its connecting highways, remains a public right of way even
though the public no Jonger have access to it. In Bailey v
Jamiegon it was held that a highway, comnected at both ends to
a highway which was then stopped up, itself ceased to be a
highway. In that case the highway had become isolated and
there was no question of any other land being served by the
highway and the decision seems to emphasise the maxim that a
highway needs a ferminus a quo and a ferminus ad guem.
However, that maxim is most commouly applied to the need for
evidence of public utility in order to establish public user, and
is not an essential attribute of a highway. The extent of the
principle in Bailey v Jamieson, which seems on its facts to have
been based on pragmatism, must be uncertain.” '

A footnote then continues:

“A case for stopping up such a highway on the grounds that its
retention is unnecessary would seem, however, to be
unanswerable.”

Mr Sauvain is, thankfully, still alive and well; and Mr Buley relied upon those
passages, not for their inherent authority, but for the reasoning they deploy.

Unfortunately, I do not accept that reasoning; nor do I accept the premise that Bailey
v _Jamieson supports the Secretary of State’s cause. Indeed, in my view, it
substantially undermines it :

The judgments in Bailey v Jamieson are short; but each makes clear that the footpath
in question, having been isolated from other highways in the manner I have described,
ceased to be a highway because it ceased to have all of the essential charactenstics of
a h1ghwa¥ The Lord Chief Justice said (at page 332-3):

“It is necessary, therefore, to determine whether or not [the
footpath] remains a highway. I am of opinion that it does not.
Its character of a public highway is altogether gone.”

Denman J agreed, and added that, despite the dictum, “Once a highway, always a
highway’”:

“... I think we are compelled to hold that this is a case where
that which formerly was a highway, but which, though it has

Page 82



MR JUSTICE HECKINBOTFOM Kotegacnkar v Seerctary of State for Envicgnment,
Approyed Judement Food and Rural Affairs

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

been not been stopped by statutory process, has, by reason of
legal acts at either end of it, ceased to be a place which the
Queen’s subjects can have access, loses its character of a

highway.”
Lindley J also agreed, adding:

“[The plaintiff’s] argument amounts in substance to this, that
there cannot be a public highway public access to which has
lawfully been stopped at either end. Iagree to that.” i

Bach judgment was therefore apparently firmly based on the premise that a way
whtch is not connected to another public highway, or to some other point to which the
pubhc have a right of access, cannot itself be a public highway because it lacks an
essentml charactenstu: ofa 111ghway

Mr, Buley made two submissions in respect of that.

First, he submitted that this casé was distingunishable from Bailey v Jamieson, because
in that claim the defendants could not get to the footpath without trespassing over
adjacent land, whereas in this case members of the public could get to the footpath,
from either end, by exercising a licence granted to them to do so by the owners of the
land at either side. Indeed, the Inspector appears to have found that the public had
exercised such a licence at one end of the path or the other or both for over 20 years,
although not such as to create a public highway over either the health centre land
(express finding of no public right of way) or the land on whlch the land was situated
(no finding either way).

However, this difference between the cases is immaterial. As I have already
indicated, the public have no right to access the footpath in this case, over either
parcel of adjacent land. They may lawfuily be prevented from going onto the health
centre land or the shopping parade today. It is certainly not fanciful to suggest that
the licences might be withdrawn: before the Inspector, both landowners objected to
the right of way over the plot of land. On the other hand, in Bailey v Jamieson the
defendants or others could have been granted a licence by adjacent landowners to
access the path in that case. But those circumstances cannot affect the legal status of
the relevant footpath, which is dependent upon the public having a right of access to
it. Inneither Bailey v Jamieson nor this case, irrespective of licences that may or may
not have been given to members of the public to cross the adjacent land, was there
any such right.

Second, Mr Buley relied upon the judgment of the Lord Chief Justice in Bailey v
Jamieson, with which the rest of the court agreed, that the relevant characteristic of a
highway that was missing in that case was the fact that the footpath did not have a
terminus a quo and a ferminus ad quem. He said (at page 332):

“... [T]o constitute a highway, there must be some notion of a
passage which begins somewhere and ends somewhere, and
along which the public have a right to drive or to walk from its
beginning to its end. Here, that notion is entirely absent.”

Page 83



MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM Koutegaonkar v Secretary of State fur Environment,

Approved Judgment Eood and Bural Affairs
63.  That is a reference to the early cul-de-sac cases (see paragraphs 43-46 above), and,

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

submitted Mr Buley, it is now accepted that, in the cul-de-sac cases, the absence of a
terminus is not legally fatal for the proponent of the footpath; it is merely an
evidential challenge. In this case, on the evidence, the Inspectior found that the
owners of the plot of land had intended to dedicate the land to the public. That
finding is not challenged.

I accept that, in his judgment, Lord Coleridge relied upon old cases which suggested
that it was a necessary requisite for a highway to have a ferminus a quo and a
terminus ad quer; and that, at least since 1925, that has not been a legal requisite (see
paragraph 43 above). However:

i) That quoted passage has to be considered in the context of the Lord Chief
Justice’s judgment as a whole. He said of the cul-de-sac cases:

“The conclusion to which the court came in those cases
was that the stoppage of one end did not make a road
cease to' be a common highway; for, though it thereby
became a cul-de-sac, the public still might have the right
o go over it to the end and back.”

When read as a whole, the full judgment makes it clear that the prevention of
the right of access to the public at either end of a way does deny that way the
attributes necessary for it to be a public highway.

i} In any event, although they agreed with him, the other two judges of the court
made it abundantly clear that it was that missing characteristic that prevented
that way being a highway.

Nor am 1 impressed with a number of suggestions in Mr Sauvain’s book; relied upon
by Mr Buley. I do not agree that Bailey v Jamieson emphasises the now outdated
proposition that a highway must have a terminus a quo and a ferminus ad quem.
Rather, in my view, the judgments when read as a whole, properly emphasise the need
for a highway to be connected to another highway, or to other land to which the
public have a right of access. Nor do I consider that, when properly construed, Bailey
v Jamieson is at all focused on the evidential challenge for those seeking to show that
a way has been dedicated as a highway. Nor do I consider that the decision is based
upon pragmalism, rather than principle. Nor do T agree, so far as Mr Sauvain’s book
or Mr Buley’s submissions suggest, that Bailey v Jamieson is wrong.

When properly interpreted, in my judgment, the decision in Bailey jv Jamieson is
anthority for the common law principle that a way which is not connetted to another
public highway, or to some other point to which the public have a right of access,
cannot itself be a public highway because it lacks an essential characteristic of such a
highway namely a right for the public to pass and repass over the route at will.

Mr Buley relied upon two other authorities with which, for the sake of completeness, I
should deal. '

First, he relied upon the only authorily in which Bailey v Jamieson appears to have
been cited, namely Great Central Railway Company v Balby-with-Hexthorpe Urban

Page 84



MR JUSTICE HICKINEQTTOM Kaotegaonkar v Secretary of State for Environment,
Approved Judgment Eood and Rural Affairg

69.

70.

71.

District Council [1912] 2 ChD 110. The case concerned variows sections of a
highway, one issue being whether the extinguishment of public rights of way over ane
section (the yellow section) resulted in the extinguishment of such rights in another
section (the red scction). Joyce J said (at page 123):

“[The railway company] say reasonably, I think, by reason of
the case of Bailey v_Jamieson, that if both ends of a piece of
land, which is subject to a public right of way, are closed, and
there is no access to the intervening piece for the public, then
the latter as a maiter of fact is also closed, although perhaps,
technically there may still be some public legal rights existing
in respect of it.”

Mr Buley submitted that this suggested that Bailey v Jamieson was decided on the
basis that the absence of any connection with land to which the public had access was
one factor taken into account in respect of the question of fact as to intention fo
dedicate, not in respect of the question of law as to the essential characteristics of a
highway. However:

i) Although the passage T have quoted is not unambiguous, I am not at all sure
that that was Joyce J’s understanding of Bailev v Jamieson; because he
immediately continued;

“I think, however, that if the rights of way are
extinguished over the yellow, then, on the authority of
this case of Bailey v Jamieson, the railway company
would have established that the public rights over the red
and yellow were gone.”

That suggests that they would have “gone” as a matter of law.

ii) In any event, his comments appear to have been obifer dicta; and, in so far as
they suggest that Bailey v Jamieson did no more than indicate that, in
assessing whether a landowner had an intention to dedicate a way to the public
the court had to take into account all circumstances including the fact that a
way was 1solated, then I respectfully consider them to be wrong,.

The second authority was the recent case of Newhaven Port and Properties Ltd v East
Sussex County Council [2012] EWHC 647 (Admin). This concerned the registration
of West Beach, Newhaven, as a village green under the Commons Act 2006. The
Commons Act concerns the rights of “a significant number of inhabitanti of any
locality. .. [to indulge in] lawful sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least
20 years.” One issue in the case — there were many - was whether such a right could
exist in respect of land to which the public had no right of access. Ouseley J
considered that the absence of any right of access was not determinative of the issue
as to whether there was a right to perform sports and pastimes: it would be merely
evidence that there was no such right (see [163]-[164]).

I can deal with the case shortly. Although of course there are some parallels between
the scheme for creation and recognition of highways, and that for the creation and

~ recognition of village greens, the schemes have obvious differences. In particular, as

Page 85



MR JUSTICE HICKINB hil Kofepaonkar v Secretary of State for Environment
Approved Judgment Food and Rura] Affairs

I have explained, for a way to be a highway, it must have certain essential
characteristics. One, retained by section 31, is that it must be available to the whole
of the public as of right. A village green certainly does not have to have the same
characteristics. The comments of Quseley J about the intention to dedicate on the part
of landowners in each scheme does not bear on the question of whether access to a
highway or other land to which the public have a right to access is a necessary
characteristic of a highway. For those reasons, 1 do not consider the Newhaven case
to be of any material assistance to me. '

Conchision

72.

73.

74.

75,

Therefore, as a matter of law, on principle and authority, T do not consider that a way
to which the public has no right of entry at either end or at any point along its length
can be a public highway at common law.

The Inspector, in directing herself that it was capable of being a public highway,
misdirected herself in law. She was not referred to Bailey v Jamieson; and I am afraid
that, understandably but erroneously, she misconstrued the relevance of the “place of
public resort” in the context of cul-de-sac cases, and wrongly applied it to this case.
In my judgment, to be a highway, it is insufficient for a way to be linked to a place to
which “the public would have a reasonable expectation to go” or “a place to which the
public may resort”, as the Inspector considered to be the case: a highway, by
definition, requires to be linked to a highway or to other land fo which the public have
aright of access.

For the reasons I have given, the Inspector unfortunately erred; and, as a result, I am
satisfied that the Footpath Order was not made within the powers of the 1981 Act.

1 consequenﬂ}} allow the claim, and quash that Order.

Page 86



Agenda ltem 6

Y

Northumberland

County Council

TYNEDALE LOCALAREA COUNCIL
14 June 2022

REVIEW OF THE DEFINITIVEMAP AND STATEMENT
OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY

ALLEGEDRESTRICTED BYWAY No 26
PARISHOF WESTALLEN

Report of the Executive Director of Local Services
CabinetMember: Councillor Jeff Watson, Healthy Lives

Purpose of report

In this report, the Tynedale Local Area Council is asked to consider all the relevant
evidence gathered in support and in rebuttal of the existence of restricted byway
rights over the route of existing Public Footpath No 26, from the Cumbria County
boundary at Blacklaw Cross, in a general northerly direction, to existing Byway Open
to All Traffic No 37, at Keirsleywell Bank.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Local Area Council agrees that:

(i) there is still insufficient evidence to indicate, on a balance of
probabilities, that public vehicular rights have been shown to exist
over the route A-B;

(ii) there is, however, sufficient evidence to indicate, on a balance of
probabilities, that public bridleway rights have been shown to
exist over the route A-B;

(iii)  the route be included in a future Definitive Map Modification Order
as a public bridleway.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 By virtue of section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981 the County
Councilis required to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under '
continuous review and make modification orders upon the discovery of
evidence, which shows thatthe map and statement need to be modified.

1.2 The relevantstatutory provision which applies to upgrading an existing public
right of way on the Definitive Map and Statement, based on historical
documentary evidence, is Sectiqngaé)@?ii) of the Wildlife and Countryside



1.3

14

1.5

2.0

2.1

2.2

Act, 1981. This requires the County Council (as Surveying Authority) to modify
the Definitive Map and Statement following:

“the discbvery by the authority of evidence which (when considered with all
other relevantevidence available to them) shows :

“that a highway shown in the map and statement as a highway of a
particular description oughtto be there shown as a highway of a
differentdescription.”

" This route has been the subject of two previous applications. In.February

1998, Alan Kind made an application fo upgrade existing Footpath No 26 to
Byway Open to All Traffic status. This application was refused (insufficient
evidence for public vehicular or public bridleway rights) by the County
Council's Rights of Way Committee in January 2001. The applicantappealed
this decision fo the Secretary of State, and the Secretary of State allowed the
appeal, directing the County Council to include the route in a future Definitive
Map Modification Order (DMMO). DMMO (No 10) 2003, identifying the route
as a byway open to all traffic, was made on 12 May 2003. The Order attracted
7 sustained objections, and was referred to the Secretary of State for
determination. Following a publiclocal inquiry on 6 & 7 April 2004, the
Inspector concluded (decision letter dated 10 September 2004) that there was
insufficient evidence to demonstrate the existence of carriageway rights.

On 22 November 2016, Mr Kind made a fresh application, supported by some
extra documentary evidence, seeking to upgrade Footpath No 26 to restricted
byway status. This application was refused (insufficient evidence for public
vehicularrights) by the County Council’s Rights of Way Committee in
November 2017. Again, the applicantappealed this decision to the Secretary
of State, though this time the Secretary of State rejected the appeal. The
Inspector concluded (decision letter dated 19 December 2018) that there was
insufficient evidence to demonstrate the existence of restricted byway rights.

Allthe relevant statutory provisions and competing rights and interests have
been considered in making this report. The recommendations are in
accordance with the law and proportionate, having regard to individuals’ rights
and the publicinterest.

PUBLIC EVIDENCE

In October 2019, Alan Kind of Newcastle upon Tyne made a formal application
seeking to modify the Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way by upgrading, to
restricted byway status, existing Public Footpath No 26, from the northern end
of existing U3111 road in Cumbria, at the County boundary at Blacklaw Cross,
in a general northerly direction over the route of existing Public Footpath No
26, to existing Byway Open to All Traffic No 37, at Keirsleywell Bank, west of
Fairplay.

The application is supported by the following evidence: The Hexhamand
Allendale Inclosure Act 1792, The Alston Moor Inclosure Act 1803, Extracts
from the Hexhamand Allendale Inclosure Award 1799, Extracts from the
Alston Moor Inclosure Award 1820, a Paper on widths and photographs of
Blakelaws Road, a Report on the State and Condition of the Roads and Mines
on the Estates of the Greenwich Hospital in the Counties of Cumberland,
Durham, and Northu mberlandba@@rv@@ Lockyer (1823), Greenwood's Map



2.3

of Northumberland 1827, Hodkinson & Donald's Map of Cumberand 1770,
Greenwood’s Map of Cumberland 1823/4, OS 27/3789 extract from the
National Archives, 2"d Edition 25" OS map extract, OS Book of Reference
page to accompany the 15t Edition 25" OS map, an exiract from Richard Oliver
in Ordnance Survey Maps: a concise guide for historians (2005), a satellite
image of the application route, and case law, as cited in the accompanying
Statement of Grounds.

Mr Kind supplied the following background and analysis of the evidence to
accompany his application:

“Earlier Orders Concemning This Route

This route has been the subject of two previous applications which were
each rejected by the surveying authority, and later rejected by the
Secretary of State on appeal under Schedule 14.

Reopening the Issue of Status

1. ltis established law that the process of applying for, and
(separately) making, an order to modify the definitive map, is not barred
to furtherorders after an initial order has been made. (Express
statutory provision apart, such as regarding restricted byways in
CRoWA 2000). Whatmatters is the ‘discovery’ of evidence, and that
discovered evidence must then be considered with all otheravailable
evidence, whether‘new’, ornot. ' In the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981, S.53(3) _

(c) the discovery by the authority of evidence which (when considered
with all other relevant evidence available to them) shows-

(i) that a right of way which is not shown in the map and statement
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsistover landin the area to
which the map relates, being a right of way such thatthe land over
which the right subsists is a public path, a restricted byway or, subject
to section 54A, a byway open to all traffic;

2. InRv. Secretary of State for the Environment, ex p. Riley [1989]
CO/153/88, the ability to-‘reopen’ the question of the status of a way
previous subject to a definitive map reclassification order was
considered. Held:thatthere is no res judicata in this statutory
provision, and MacPherson J provided an oft-quoted reference to a
‘better greybeard’s evidence being added to a (earlier) “not very
convincing greybeard’s evidence,” and the whole being weighed
together (at D-E on page 10 of the judgement).

3. Stubbing Courtv Secretary of State for EFRA [2012] (consent
order) is a case conceming an order to delete a public right of way from
the definitive map and statement. The Secretary of State consented fo
judgementon the pointthat there is no ‘gatekeeper test' for the
discovered evidence (the 'new evidence’). Once there is new evidence
then the test of sufficiency (cogency, positivity, etc.) is applied to all the
evidence together. It is wrongto apply any differenttest to any part of
the evidence: the relevant test must be applied fo all the evidence.

4. In this application there is the evidence previously considered, plus
‘new evidence’, which is also evidence that speaks to the historical
public status of the road. Rage 89 matter if this ‘new evidence’ alone



is not sufficientto establish the claimed status. What matters is
whetherthis ‘new evidence', plus all other evidence, weighed together,
is sufficientto prove.

5. The correct approach is to establish thatthere is discovery of
evidence and, if there is, discountthatihe route has been subject to an
earlier application, or order. Considerthis application as a fresh, stand-
aloneissue.

6. To facilitate this approach the discovered evidence (the ‘new
evidence’)is identified below, and then all the evidence is set outin this
submission.

Overview

7. The application route — The Carriers’ Way —is highlighted in blue.
It is ‘bookended’ by two lengths of inclosure award public carriage road
(in green). The road highlighted yellow is the pre-1823 turnpike road.
The AG86, A689 & B6294 are part of JL. McAdam’s 1823 turnpikes.

8. The essential proposition is this: There is no direct evidence as to
the highway status of the application route, but the continuation ateach
endis an awarded public carriage road. There is no place of public
resort over which the application route runs. The totality of the indirect
evidence points clearly to the whole through route being the same
public traffic status throughout.

The ‘New Evidence’

9. Three items of evidence, not previously considered, have been
found and are putin as part of this application. These are:

9.1 John McAdam’s plan of his proposed turnpike roads, 1823.

9.2 C & JGreenwood's Map of Cumberland, 1823/4. Copy located
online atthe Cumbria Record Office, with a higher-resolution version
later found on the ‘Guides to the Lakes’ website.

9.3 Exfracts relating to Gateley Road in the Hexhamshire and
Allendale Inclosure Award.

10. Thisdocumentis set out firstly as regards the evidencein
Northumberland, and secondly as regards the evidence in Cumbria
(Cumberland, as was). Each county section is in chronological
sequence.

Northumberland Historical Evidence

11. The Hexham anld ‘Aliendale Inclosure Act 1792

11.1 An Act for dividing and inclosing certain parts of the commons,
moors, or fracts of waste land, called Hexhamshire, and Aliendale
‘Common, and also certain town fields within the regality or manaor of

Hexham, in the county of Northumberland, and for stinting the
depasturing of other parts of the said commons, moors, or waste land.

Page 90



11.2 This Act proQides for two distinctprocesses. The first is “dividing
and inclosing certain parts of ....” and the second s “stinting the
depasturing [grazing] of other parts...”

11.3 Thusthe process of allotmentof stints is not “dividing and
inclosing”. It is a separate and different process.

11.4 S.17 provides {marginal title) “Commissioners to set cut the best
part of the commons or wastes to be divided and inclosed”.

11.5 §.17, {(marginaltitie) “Roads”, “... the said commissioners ... shall
and they are hereby authorised and required, in the first place, fo set
outand appointsuch publick carriage roads in, over, and upon the
lands and grounds intended to be divided and allotted as they shall
think necessary and proper, all of which publick road shall be and
remain of the breadth of sixty feet at the least.

11.6 S.17, "Roads” on page 3254, “... none of the inhabitants of the
said parishes of Hexham and Allendale (otherthan the owners and
proprietors of the said lands and grounds fo be divided and allotted)

~shall be charged and chargeable (over and above the statute duty)
towards the forming and putting the said roads into repair, until the
same shall be completely formed and made good.”

11.7 S.18 “Commissioners to determine to whattownship roads
belong” empowers the commissioners to allocate roads to townships,
even where these are “ancientones”.

11.8 S.18 continues (page 3256) to provide that once the
commissioners have set out public highways overthe lands fo be
“divided and allotted”, it shall be unlawful to use other roads, and such
other roads shall be deemed part of the lands to be divided and allotted.

11.9 519 provides that the commissioners shall have the power to
“assign and set out such common, publick, and private horse and other
roads, ways, passages, bridges, stiles ... in, over, and through the said
lands and grounds io be divided as they shall think proper, useful and
convenient..."

11.10 S36 “The residue of the commons, etc, to be held as stinted
pastures” “... after the fifteen thousand acres of the said commons,
moors, or fracts of waste land shall have been set outand allotted in
manner herein-before directed, the residue and remainder of the said
commons, moors, or tracts of waste land shall be held and enjoyed as
stinted pastures ..."

11.11 Thus, this Actempowers the commissioners to alter existing
public and private roads , keep existing roads, and make new roads, in
the lands to be afterwards divided, inclosed and allotted. There is no
power to the commissioners to do anything with, or to, the publicand
private roads in the residue of the lands directed fo be “held and
enjoyed as stinted pastures”.

12. The Hexhamand Allendale Inclosure Award 1799 (QRA31/1)
Page 91



12.1 The inclosure award has ‘private roads’ set out by the
commissioners. One such is shown and named on the inclosure plan
as 'Gaterly Road, and is set out thus, “One other private carriage road
sixty feet in breadth, beginning at Houstie Carrs Road, opposite the end
of Coldcoats road, and then leading eastward to the stinted pasture, for
the use of the owners and occupiers, for the time being, of lands and
allotments in the township of Catton Grieveship.”

12.2 So it was perfectly within powers for the inclosure commissioners
to set outprivate roads to the stinted pasture.

12.3 It has previously been suggested that there is some significant
distinction between the award stating that some public carriage roads
run “to the stinted pasture” and some “into the stinted pasture”. There
seems to be no obvious explanation for this linguistic distinction.
Considertwo roads adjacent to Alston Road as examples — Keirsleywell
Road, and Appletreeshield Road — both of these are set outas running
“to the stinted pasture”, yet on a simple view of the inclosure planand
Ordnance Survey map, both must also have run through /over the
stinted pasture. Appletreeshieid Road would be a dead end, both ends,
ifit did not.

124 And further, Alston Road is set outas "Alston Road, beginning at
a place called Powstile gate, and leading south-westwards tothe
stinted pasture near Knights-cleugh head.” On the face of that wording,
that road is also a double-dead-end public road, and there is no such
thing known to the law. It would be irrational to hold that an awarded
public road called 'Alston Road’ wentonly about 1.25 miles and then
stopped as a dead end.

12.5 The unclassified public road that runs up the hill from Hawkuplee
to the northern end of the application route is set outin the award as a
public carriage road called "Alston Road”, thus, “beginning ata place
called Powstile gate, and leading southwestward to the stinted pasture
nearKnights-cleugh head.”

12.6 Judgingfromthe old maps there is litle doubtthat the unclassified
road / BOAT from Ninebanks, up the awarded ‘Alston Road’, to Long
Cross, and down to the pre-1823 road at Clarghyli Colliery, was a
principal route from Alston Moor towards Tyneside. Butitwas not
necessarily the only route. Using online mapping, the route from
Powstile Gate, along ‘Alston Road’, via Longcross, on pre-1823 roads,
to Alston marketplace, is just over 5.6 miles.

12.7 Measuring from Powstile Gate, along ‘Alston Road’, via the
application route, Blagill (pre-1823 roads) and Gossipgate, measures at
justover 5.7 miles. Nothingin it.

12.8 Andfurther,when the award plan is superimposed on modern OS
- mapping (below), it is clear that the Long Cross road makes a thirty-
degree turn to the right, off the line of the ‘Alston Road’, through whatis
shown as an unbroken boundary on the award plan.

12.9 By contrast, the application route continues the straightalignment
of ‘Alston Road' for aboRiggea@2 before making a turn of aboutten



degrees at the end of the ‘funnel’ between allotments, which is where
‘Alston Road’ blends into the stinted pasture.

12.10 This below is the same location from a satellite photograph.

12.11 Simply, ‘Alston Road' on the award plan, and as set out, is
anciently as likely to be the end of application route as itis of the Long
Cross road. The Long Cross road makes a lateral connection with a
much straighter alignment. This suggests that ‘Alston Road’ and the
application route is the older route, and the Long Cross route was, at
one time, a side branch offit.

13. Greenwood’s Map of Northumberland 1827/8

13.1 ltis often difficultto understand and reconcile ‘'simplistic’ early
commercial maps, based on magnetic north, with modern Ordnance
Survey maps based on grid north and with much more detail and
precision.

13.2 This below is that Greenwood map, superimposed as a see-
through layeron a same-area piece of outline First Edition 6” scale OS
map, rotated to register common features (such as junction of Aiston
Road and the order route).

13.3 Itis clear that Greenwood is showing the order route to and
beyond Blakelaw Cross, and also the Long Cross road. The
representation is somewhat schematic, but the commonality of features
and reasonably precise registration leave little doubt that Greenwood
was'showing a through route along the order route in 1827.

13.4 It might be observed that Greenwood shows a ‘dog-leqg’ in the
county boundary line to the west of Blakelaw Cross, whereas the OS
shows a dog-leg to the east. It may be that Greenwood was in error
here, but his location of Blakelaw Cross is accurate. It may be that
Greenwood is showing a schematic representation of the boundary line
around Hard Rigg. It may be that the boundary line has altered over
time. Hodkinson and Donald’s map of Cumberland suggests thatis the
case. Whichever, whatmatters is the reasonably accurate (by today's
exacting standards) representation of Long Cross, Blakelaw Cross, and
the roads leading to those.

13.5 There is a particularly important pointto be made about
Greenwood’'s map. It was publishedin 1827 /8 (differentreference
boaks give the differentdates). Greenwood shows a road in this extract
from the southwestend of the ‘Alston Road’, reasonably directly to
‘Black Cross’. Greenwood shows a shallow reflex curve in the route,
which schematically mimics that still shown on the Ordnance Survey
map. In 1827 Greenwood had no map to copy from. Fryer (1820) and
Cary (1825) do not show this road. According to Richard Oliver, the
county was notsurveyed by the Ordnance Survey until 1855. 1t is
improbable that Greenwood dreamed-up a road here that quite
accurately predicts the course shown since 1855 by the Ordnance
Survey. It is probable that there was a road here, well-enough defined
to be seen, followed and mapped.

Page 93



14. Ordnance Survey, First and Second Edition Maps
14.1 There is no visible change between the firstedition GS large-
scale maps (1855-64) and the first revision (1894-7). This extract below
is from the 1896 issue, 25” scale map, available online on the National
Library of Scotland website. It is from sheet CVLII, and has the name
‘Carriers’ Way’ printed alongside the application route.

“15. Ordnance Survey Book of Reference
15.1 The Ordnance Survey published ‘Books of Reference’ (in some
places) to accompany the first edition 25" maps. This copy below is
from 1858/9 (dated by its being made in ‘large letterpress’) and for the
same map sheet CVLI|, lists ‘Carriers’ Way’ as being ‘A cart road’. The
accompanying extract from Richard Oliver's book (page 54) explains
how these Books of Reference were made.

16. Ordnance Survey Boundary Sketch Book

16.1 The Ordnance Survey made ‘Boundary Sketch Books as part of
the first surveys, which are now held at the National Archives under
reference OS27. These records were made underthe authority of the
Ordnance Survey Act 1841, and the surveyor had statutory power to
summon the clerk of the peace, and any documents he wished to see.
The Boundary Sketch Books were then advertised for publicinspection.
The books are held in the National Archives and the extract below was
taken there.

16.2 The relevantsketch for Blakelaw Cross, made in 1858, is
0827/3789. This below is the catalogue reference and the sketch
itself. The sketch shows a ‘road’ to each side of the county boundary,
labelling the Cumberland side as ‘Black Laws / Road’, and the
Northumberland side as 'Carriers Way / Road’.

Cumberland Historical Evidence

17. Hodkinson & Donald’s Map of Cumberland 1770

17.1 This is the earliest map of Cumberiand to show any significant
pattern of roads. | does notshow any road 1o, or past, Blacklaw Cross.
It does show a road past Long Cross. It does notshow the ‘low road’
northeastward from Clarghyll. It does not show many roads in the area
depicted, which musthave existed to connect settlements.

18. The Alston Moor Inclosure Act 1803

18.1 An Act for dividing, aliotting, inclosing and otherwise improving
several commons, moors, or wastes, within the manor of Alston
otherwise Alston Moor and Carrigill in the parish of Alston, and county
of Cumberland. 11 June 1803.

18.2 This Act (page 1462) imports the provisions of the ‘General
Inclosure Act’ of 1801, unless otherwise stated. No variation from the
1801 provisions is made as regards ‘roads’.

18.3 $.8 of the 1801 Act requires that a public carriage road is set out
at least 30 feet in breadth. The annotated plan here shows widths
taken atintervals along Blakelaws Road. The road is walled (some
parts have disappeared, [eaving foundations) and is historically wider
than 30 feet throughout.

Page 94



18.4 Blakelaws Road is a publicly maintainable road on the list of
streets, and has been on the county council’s records of publicly
maintainable highways since 1929 (the handoverfrom the rural district
council L.e. aroad underthe authority of the rural district council).

18.5 Nobody is questioning the status and origins of Blakelaws Road.
The setting outof this road by the 1803 inclosure award, and its
becoming a pre-1835 publicly maintainable highway is valid by virtue of
the award and the view of the courtin R v. The Inhabitants of the Parish
of Enford 28 March 1955.

18.6 The setting outof Blakelaws Road is important evidence
regarding the status of the order route. The 1820 award is 21 years
after the 1799 award. The adjoining land in Northumberland had been
statutorily inclosed 21 years earlier; it could notin the normal way of
things be inclosed again. The many stint holders hold thatland in
severalty, and it would be effectively impossible for a highway to be
dedicated at common law. Thusthe ideathat the Alston commissioners
set out Blakelaw Road in anticipation of the Carriers’ Way being later
dedicated in the same status is not a rational explanation of the facts.

18.7 The stint holdersin the 1799 inclosure award are all
Northumberland land-holders or land-occupiers. None of them are
Cumberland people. the stinted pasture is not any sort of place of
publicresort. Although both the Alston and Allendale inclosure acts
provide power to set cut ‘private roads’, the commissioners do not set
outthe order route, orits linear continuation along Blakelaws Road, as
a private road forthe stint-holders.

18.8 The Alston Moor commissioners did set outprivate roads. This is
an example quite close to Blakelaws Road.

18.9 This raises a strong presumption thatin 1820 when Blakelaws
Road was set out as a public carriage road there was a purpose — a
utility — in that setting out. That purpose was most probably making a
through-route from the Weardale Turmnpike, to Blakelaw Cross, along
the order route, and to Ninebanks beyond. There is case law on
‘through route presumption’, the study of which assists here, and is set
outbelow. It is important, here to considerthe evidence as a whole.

19. The Alston Moor Inclosure Award 1820

19.1 The inclosure award sets out as a ‘Public Carriage Road’:
Blakelaws Road beginning atthe Weardale Turnpike road near Nenthall
and leading northward to the boundary of the regality or Manor of
Hexhamnear Blake Laws Cross.”

19.2 None of the awarded roads in this award are set out as ‘leading
into’ lands outside the award boundaries, and similarly none are shown
on the plan as extending beyond the award boundaries, although all or
some, e.g. the Weardale Turnpike road, must have. The pre-award
Long Cross road is set outand mapped as ‘stopping’ atthe inclosure
boundary. -

Page 95



20. JL McAdam’s Tumpike Road Plan 1823

20.1 In his plan of a proposed turnpike road from Alston into Weardale
(which was largely an improvement of the existing road) McAdam
marks and names a number of public roads, including (fo the east of
Alston) Limekiln Road, “From Blagill”, “To Galligill”, Blakelaws Road &
Rampgill Rake Road. This suggests that McAdam regarded Blakelaws
Road as being a public road of some ‘traffic connection’ to the proposed
turnpike, rather than no more than a dead-end with no incoming traffic.

21. Report on the State and Condition of the Roads and Mineson the
Estates of Greenwich Hospital in the Counties of Cumberland, Durham
and Northumberland, with suggestion for theirimprovement. Edward
Lockyer 1823.

21.1 This is an early report into the process that engaged John
McAdam to survey the roads with a view to theirimprovements. These
improvements were put into effect by the turnpiking of the lower roads.
Mr Lockyer notes on page 3, “The public roads are carried over the
highesthills with scarce attempt to find an easier level, and the surface
is loaded with an immense quantity of heavy stones, withoutthe least
consideration of the wear and tear of carriages and cattie employed in
the conveyance.”

21.2 ‘Cattle’ in this context means draughtanimals, not ‘cows’. The
reference to ‘carriages’ in the context of “roads ... carried over the
highesthills ...." is good evidence of reputation that the hill roads were
before 1823 used by ‘carriages’ - vehicles. Carriages are not just ‘stage
coaches’ or vehicles for the carriage of persons. A carriage is a ‘means
of conveyance’. If hill roads were used by vehicles forthe trade of the
area in 1823 then it is probable that they were also used before this
time for as long as the trade traffic existed.

22. C & J Greenwood’s Map of Cumberiand, 1823/4

22.1 Greenwood’s map of 1823/4 shows Blakelaws Road runningup to
Blakelaw Cross, and continuing for a distance into Northumberland.
Greenwood shows the Long Cross road and the Hexham Tumnpike, in
the same way. Greenwood, in his 1827/8 Map of Northumberiand
(above) showsthe south crossing the boundary at Blakelaw Cross'and
continuing a little way into Cumberland.

23. Topography

23.1 The physical existence and nature of a route is some evidence,
taken with other evidence, as to its antiquity and status. Satellite
images (from the website wheresthepath.com) clearly show a linear
feature on the same line as the footpath on modern OS mapping, and
as the ‘Carriers’ Way' on the first and second edition OS mapping.

23.2 ltis improbable that such a feature was made by public foot traffic
alonein a remote area. It is improbable that a public footpath would
have been identified by the Ordnance Survey as a ‘cartroad’, and
would have survived for another (almast) 165 years with such visibility.

Page 96



24. The ‘Through Route Presumption’

24.1 There is considerable judicial consideration regarding ‘dead-end
roads in the countryside. Two examples will suffice here. These views
should be applied to Blakelaws Road, south to north, to where that road
finishes on the Alston inclosure award at Blacklaw Cross.

24.2 In Leicestershire County Council (R on the application of) v.
Secretary of State for EFRA [2003] EWHC 171, Mr Justice Collins, at
paragraph 16, “The Inspector notes that it was highly improbable that
the footpath actually finished atthe northern boundary of Manor
Cottage. That seems to me to be a matier of common sense because it
would serve no practical purpose unless it wentthrough to the road.”
That view sems entirely applicable to the present case. A’status
change’is as much a cul de sac as is a ‘full stop’ to a highway of any
sort.

24.3 In Eyre v. New Forest Highway Board (1892) JP 517, the Courtof
Appeal under Lord Esher, MR, considered an appeal againsta decision
by Wills J, who had rejected an application by Mr Eyre that Tinker's
Lane in the New Forest was not a publicly repairable highway and
should notbe made up by the Board. Lord Eshercommended Wills J's
summingup as “... copious and clear and a complete exposition of the
law on the subject; it was a clear and correct direction o the jury on all
the points raised.”

24 .4 “Butsupposing you think Tinker's Lane is a public highway, what
would be the meaning in a country place like that of a highway which
endsin a cul-de-sac, and ends at a gate onto a common? Such things
existin large towns ... but who ever found such athing.in a country
district like this, where one of the public, if there were any publicwho
wantedto useit atall, would drive up to that gate for the purpose of
driving back again? .... It is just an observation that if you think that
Tinkers Lane was a public highway, an old and ancient public highway,
why should itbe so unlessitleads across a common o some of those
places beyond? | cannotconceive myself how that could be a public
highway, orto whatpurpose it could be dedicated or in whatway it
could be used so as fo become a public highway, unlessitwas to pass
over from that side of the country to this side of the couniry. Therefore
it seems to me, after all is said and done, that the evidence with regard
to this little piece across the green cannotbe severed from the other ....
it would take a great deal to persuade me that it was possible that that
state of things should co-existwith no public way across the little piece
of green ... | am notlaying this down as law; butl cannotunderstand
how there could be a public way up fo the gate — practicaily, | mean,; |
do not mean theoretically, - buthow in a locality like this there could be
a public highway up fo the gate withoutthere being a highway beyond
it. If there were a public highway up Tinker's LLane before 1835, it does
not seem to me at all a wrong step to take, or an unreasonable step to
take, to say there must have been one across that green.”

25. Summary
25.1 As stated in the ‘overview’ above, there is no direct evidence of

status of the application route, but there is a large and informative set of
indirectevidence. Page 97



25.2 In Commision forNew Towns v JJ Gallagher[2002] EWHC 2668
(Ch); [2003] 2 P&CR 3, NeubergerJ at paragraph 83, “While each of
these aspects of the evidence has to be initially considered on its own,
it must, of course, also be assessed in lightofthe other aspects. Inthe
end, after considering all of these aspects together, I have to ask myself
whether, bearing in mind that the onus of proofis on the Commission, |
am satisfied on the balance of probabilities that the use and reputation
of Beoley Lane was such as to justify the inference thatit was

dedicated as a public carriageway.”

25.3 In considering the indirectevidence itis easier to aggregate the
evidence by considering the whole through route, effectively fromthe
Alston to Stanhope Turnpike in Cumbria, northwards to Ninebanks in
Northumberland, and onwards towards Tyneside.

254 In 1820, inclosure commissioners set out a public carriage road
leading from the tumpike {(before McAdam’s 1823 turnpike, this road
was previously turnpiked) northwards towards Blacklaw Cross. This
road was formed and inclosed, is about 1.75 miles long, and is and has
been since a recognised publicly maintainable highway.

25.5 The fundamental question is this: why would the Alston Moor
inclosure commissioners setout, form and make a public carriage road,
nominally 30 feetwide, only for it to stop — dead - at the county
boundary, where there was no place of publicresort? The
commissioners could set out private roads, foot rcads and bridle roads,
and if the Carriers’ Way was in 1820 only a foot road, then itis
improbable that they would have set outa public carriage road.

25.6 There is evidence which suggests thatthe road ran on northwards
from Blacklaw Cross, albeitnever ‘made’ as it was in Cumberland. The
two Greenwood maps show a through road 30 years before the
Ordnance Survey made its first survey here.

25.7 The Allendale inclosure award in 1799 sets out'Alston Road’. As
set out above, this road most probably wentto Alston, and from the
maps and topography there is no greater case that it wentby Long
Cross than it did by Blacklaw Cross.

25.8 Butnothing saysthat there was only one route from the top of the
- awarded Alston Road. The Long Cross road is undisputed, butthe
inclosure boundaries, and the direction taken by each of the Long
Cross Road and the application route pointto the Blacklaw Cross route
as once being more important, or at least older, than the Long Cross
route.

25.9 Thenthere is the Ordnance Survey, starting about 1858. The
map calls the route the Carriers’ Way. The Book of Reference
describes this as a cart road. The Boundary Sketch Book has Black
Laws Road one side of the county boundary, and the Carriers’ Way on
the other side.

25.10 The ‘through route presumption’is nota legal presumption;
rather it is a matter of commonsense and joining-up the dots. The

courts have no problemR@agigr@dhem.



3.1

25.11 It really is very hard to see how commonsense can be appliedto
Blakelaws Road withoutreaching the view that the same public
highway continued along the Carriers’ Way, and made a direct linear
connection with the awarded Alston Road.”

LANDOWNER EVIDENCE

Under covering letter, dated 25 March 2022, Warners (solicitors) responded
on behalf of the Wellhope Partnership, supplying a detailed report prepared by
their rights of way consultant, Liz Sobell:

“Parish of West Allen Alleged Restricted Byway No 26
Comments on behalf of the Wellhope Partnership

. | have been asked by Mr Tom Warde-Aldam of Galbraith LLP, cn behalf of the

Wellhope Partnership, to research what historical evidence mightexist in
relation to the alleged restricted byway which is currently recorded as the
Parish of West Allen Public Footpath No. 26.

. The claimed route, known as the Carriers Way, is enfirely within

Northumberand, beginning atthe Cumbria County boundary near Blacklaw
Cross and joining a point on the U8038 road (Byway No 37) at Keirsleywell
Bank. The current application is the third claim made for this route by Mr Kind.

. The first application [ed to a two-day publicinquiry in 2004 (Order Ref.

FPS/R2900/7/30). The Inspector Mr Alan Beckett did not agree with Mr Kind'’s
proposal that the status of the claimed route should be upgraded from public
footpath to byway open to all traffic, stating ‘/ conclude the evidence before me
is insufficient to show the existence of public carriageway rights over the Order

~ route.’ (Order Decision FPS/R2900/7/30, § 35).

. Mr Kind’s second attempt was made in 2016, when his application fora

restricted byway over the same route was made under the provisions of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, s.53(3)(c)(ii). This is the duty of the
surveying authority to keep the definitive map underreview and to react
appropriately to any discovery of new evidence which wouid lead to an
alteration of the description of a highway. In such a situation, all relevant
evidence must be considered along with newly discovered evidence.

. Northumberland County Council (the surveying authority) refused the

application by letter in November 2017. Mr Kind’s appeal (Ref:
FPS/P2935/14A/5) was decided by the Inspector Mr Rory Cridland, who noted
that most of the evidence submitted had already been considered in detail at
the 2004 inquiry, stating 7 have seen nothing which would lead me to reach a
different conclusion on that evidence’. (§6).

. The two pieces of documentary evidence submitied in order fo trigger the

2016 claim were the Alston Moor Inclosure Act of 1803, and a copy of an
Ordnance Survey Boundary Sketch Map of 1858. Both will be discussed
further below.

. The argument put forward by Mr Kind was that his claim should succeed on

the ‘through route presu mption’,[Ihag'g ©9¢ a length of way between two



public highways should benefit from a presumption that it shared the same
highway rights.

8. However, in his summary Mr Cridland stated that 7 agree with the conclusions
of the Inspector in 2004 that the evidence in support is so meagre that this
presumption does not weigh heavily in favour’ and that ‘Accordingly, | do not
consider that it has been demonstrated on the balance of probabilities that
Footpath 26 ought to be shown as a restricted byway. As such, the appeal
must faif’. (§14 & §15).

9. Forthe current, third, application Mr Kind has cited three documents which he
puts forward as new evidence. His numbered list confains a total of seventeen
items, one of which is the location plan. Discounting this plan, along with case
law (No.17), satellite imagery (No.15), a paper on widths and photographs
(No.B), a passage from a reference book (No.14), and a statement of grounds
in support of his application (No.16), Mr Kind has submitted eleven historical
documents, eight of which have already been considered by one or both
Inspectors who refused to confirmthe 2004 and 2016 applications owing to
the ‘meagre’ and ‘insufficient’ evidence thathad been provided.

10.The remaining three items of ‘newly discovered’ evidence currently supplied
by the applicanttherefore need to be sufficient (when added to all previous
evidence)to demonstrate on the balance of probabilities that Footpath 26, the
Carriers Way, should be given the status of restricted byway. Paragraphs 11
to 18 below considerthese.

J.L.. MacAdam’s Proposed Turnpike Roads NRO QRUP 13, Map 4, (1823)
11.Mr Kind devotes only one paragraph (§20) to a discussion of this ‘newly
discovered’ evidence. He points out that MacAdam correctly identifies public
roads branching off the proposed turnpike, including Blakelaws Road.
However, this map is dated 1823, three years after the Alston Moor Inclosure
Award, and therefore would be expected to show roads in the vicinity to help
locate the line of the proposed turnpike.

12.Mr Kind claims too much for Blakelaws Road as it appears on the 1823
turnpike map. It is notdisputed that Blakelaws Road was set outas a public
highway in 1820. MacAdam’s plan does notextend to the county boundary.
Therefore, it is of no assistance as evidence of the siatus of the alleged route,
the Carrier's Way, which is entirely within Northumberland.

C & J Greenwood’s Map of Cumberland 1823
13.As with the previous item of 'newly discovered’ evidence, only one paragraph
(§22.1) is allocated by Mr Kind in reference fo Greenwood’s Cumberland map
of 1823. He points out that the extract shows Blakelaws Road. Since The
Alston Moor Inclosure Award was made in 1820 and Greenwood’s map was
published three years later, it would be surprising if his map failed to show
Blakelaws Road.

14.Therefore, two out of the three pieces of ‘newly discovered' evidence cite
maps which post-date the Alston Moor Inclosure Award by three years and
correctly show Blakelaws Road. The existence of this awarded road is not
disputed butis notthe alleged route. Greenwood’s maps of Cumberland and
Northumberland will be discussed further below,

Page 100



Extracts relating to Gaterley Road, Hexhamshire & Allendale Commons
Inclosure Award {1799)

15.Mr Kind uses the example of Gaterley Road (§12.1) which was setoutin the
1799 Award as a private road with its eastern terminus at the stinted pasture.
Use of the road was restricted to owners and occupiers of the township of
Catton Grieveship.

16.In paragraph 12.2, Mr Kind states ‘So it was perfectly within powers for the
inclosure commissioners to set out private roads fo the stinted pasture.” This is
allthat is said about Gaterley Road: no coherentargumentis made to
demonstrate how this helps identify the status of the Carriers Way. From §12.3
onward, no more mention is made of the road.

17.Mr Kind's following paragraphs contain his views conceming the respective
importance of the Alston and Long Cross Roads. It is very difficultto accept
the Gaterley Road extract as evidence of anykind, ‘newly discovered’ or
otherwise. Its function seems to be to allow a repetition of Mr Kind's assertions
about the Hexhamshire and Allendale Commons Inclosure, which have
already been submitted as evidence in 2004 and 2016 and found insufficient
by two Inspectors,

Greenwood’s Maps of Cumberiand (1823) and Northumberland {1828)

18.Paragraph 13 of Mr Kind's application deals with Greenwood’s map of
Northumberland which was published in 1828. It might have been expected
that the applicantwould show extracts of both the Cumberland and
Northumberland maps side by side to demonstrate the continuation of the
alleged route spanning two counties.

19. However, when Greenwood’s county maps are placed side by side, it
becomes obvious that the Cumberiand map of 1823 is much more highly
detailed and accurate than his 1828 Northumberland map. (See Appendix 1).
The topography shown in the Northumberland map is vague in comparison,
leading to inaccurate locations of some landscape features.

20.This is clear in the case of the Northumberland map, where Black Laws Cross
(Greénwood: ‘Black Cross’) is located to the north-west of Mohope Head
instead of to the south-west. This and otherinaccuracies were pointed outin
the 2004 decision letter (FPS/R2900/7/30). The inspector stated In the light of
these errors from an otherwise reputable carfographer, 1 do not aftach much
weight on this map as evidence of the existence of the claimed road over the
moor’ (§22).

21.The late J.B.-Harley, in his 1962 book Christopher Greenwood County Map-
maker and his Worcestershife Map of 1822 (pp1-24) devotes a chapter to an
analysis of Greenwood’s map-making business. Harley compared :
Greenwood's expenses per square mile with those of the Board of Ordnance
survey in Ireland. He concluded that Greenwood had spent approximately 30
shillings persquare mile surveyed, whereas evidence given to the inquiryinto
the Survey of Ireland in 1828 estimated that a proper survey would cost £16
per square mile.

22.Harley stated ‘Moreover, as many costs such as the drawing, engraving and
advertisement of a map would be the same throughout most surveys of the
period, it is most likely that the economies were effected in the topographical
survey.” (pp. 31-32). Despite hispagyir]g){ponomies, Greenwood’s business



was failing by the late 1820s and he was unable to complete hisintended
series of county maps. Greenwood’s Northumberland County map of 1828 is
therefore an example of an insufficiently surveyed (consequently unreliable)
map published by a company in financial difficulties.

Ordnance Survey Boundary Sketch Book Exfract (OS 27/3789)

23.This exfract (below) was submitted by Mr Kind in. 2016, but not considered to
provide significant detail aboutthe alleged route’s status or use (Appeal
Decision FPS/P2935/14A/5, §10). However, the sketch provides evidence of -
correction of the naming of it: Close examination shows thatlater corrections
to the sketch were made in red ink, whereas black ink was used for original
annotations. The black ink original marked ‘Black Laws’ on the Cumberland
side of the county boundary, and ‘Road’ on the Northumberland side. Red ink
corrections deleted ‘Road’ on the Northumberland side and substituted the
name ‘Carriers Way’. The designation ‘Road’was confined to the Cumberland
side, added below Black Laws’.

24 These corrections were made either by Ordnance Survey Examiners, or else
reflect an objection made when the boundary sketches were open o public
scrutiny. As a result, a distinction was made between the name of a route in
Cumberland and its apparent continuation in Northumberland. Appendix 2
shows a description of the work of Ordnance Survey Assistants. It was notpart
of the duties of Ordnance Survey employees to ascertain the legal status of
ways being mapped, as demonstrated by the defails of their duties given in
Appendix 2.

25.The second edition of the 25-inch OS map carries the disclaimer ‘N.B. The
representation on this map of a Road, Track, or Foolpath, is no evidence of
the existence of a right of way’. The entry in the Book of Reference as ‘Cart
Road’ merely describes the appearance, not the status, of the Carriers Way.

The ‘Through Route Presumption’

26. Al three of Mr Kind's applications for this route have argued that the status of
Carrier's Way should be upgraded on ‘the through route presumption’.
However, he has notbeen able to cite any documentwhich on the balance of
probability demonstrates the existence of a highway for wheeled trafficalong
the alleged route.

27.All documents submitted in applications to alter the definitive map oughtto be
understood according to the historical context of their creation. The following
paragraphs explain the background to the two relevant Inclosures, that of
Hexhamshire and Allendale Commons (1799)and Alston Moor {1820).

28.In the case of Hexhamshire and Allendale Commons, the lord of the Manor of
Hexhamwhen the Act (NRO 691/61/29) was passed in 1792 was Sir Thomas
Blackett, who died very soon after. He was succeeded by his daughterand
son in law, Dianaand Colonel Thomas Richard Beaumont. No Act proposing
to inclose commons or ‘wastes’ within a manor could proceed withoutthe
agreement of the lord of the manor.

29. There were three Commissioners of the Hexhamshire & Allendale Inclosure:
one appointed by the lord of the manor, Colonel Beaumont, another by major
landowners (in this Enstancelikxgé;éeiwm Hospital Commissioners), and a



third commissioner recommended by the first two. The inclosure outcome was
the resultof close cooperation between Greenwich Hospital and the
Beaumonts to ensure that the division was carried outto their best advantage.
The Commissioners were John Fryer, William Bates, and Thomas Bates.

30.The scope of the enabling Actof 1792 covered the whole area of the

31.

commons, hence the legal necessity to perambulate the boundary: the lord of
the manor, commissioners, and all persons entitled to right of common or their
agents were required to ‘openly, publickly, and in the Day Time, ride or
perambulate, or cause fo be ridden or perambulated, the Boundary of the said
Commons, Moors, or Tracts of Waste Land intended to be divided and stinted’
(NRO 891/29, clause VI, pp.3240-3241).1

Since large areas of the Hexhamshire and Allendale Commons were
assessed as incapable of agricultural improvement, it was decided to allot
limited grazing rights or ‘stints’ over the common land which would notbe

‘made into fields.

32.Those who held tenements valued at less than £10 perannum could choose

to take theirawarded allotment as eitherland or stints {clause XXXVIII,
pp.3274-4). Therefore, the land designated as stinted pastures was allotted
underthe same powers as lands which were divided and allotted as fields. [t
was not, as Mr Kind claims, outside the powers of the Commissioners to
decide whathappened in the stinted pastures. '

33.The 1792 Act ordered that the Commissioners should set out roads and ways

over the former Commons, and that following the Inclosure no former roads or
ways would be lawful unless setout in the Award. Once the newly confirmed
roads had been ceriified by Justices of the Peace, they were to be maintained
as parish roads at the expense of the inhabitants of the townshipsthey
crossed (clause XVII, pp.3255-6).

34.No roads, other than Allenheads Road, were set out across the stinted

pastures, yet lead ore still had to be carried across the moors over which the
1792 Act operated. Transport of lead ore by packhorse was a major expense,
and clearly could have been affected by alteration o routes in the mining
areas had notthe following clause been included in the Act.

35.Clause LI (pp.3284-5) reserved to the lord of the manor all of hisrights to

minerals under the former Commons, ‘fogether with all convenient and
necessary Ways and Wayleaves.....and leading and carrying away the Lead,
Lead Ore, Coals, Stones, and other things to be gotten thereout, or out of any
other Mines, Minerals, and Quarries or Collieries belonging to the said Sir
Thomas Blackett, his heirs and Assigns..’

36. Therefore, all tracks and Carriers Ways crbssing the former Commons could

continue to be used as occupation ways forthe Lord of the Manor's lead
transport, including materials transported from any mines elsewhere owned by
the lord.

37.The township inhabitants (who were mostly employed as lead miners, smelters

and farmers who also worked as carriers) were responsible for the
maintenance of roads as far as the stinted pastures, but ways over the
undivided pastures were the financial responsibility of the mineral owners,
Colonel and Mrs Beaumont.

Page 103



38.To require roads to be formed and then maintained overthe Stinted Pastures
would have been a grossly unfairburden on the Township inhabitants,
especially since those ways existed for the future profitof their manorial lord.

39.Before the completion of the inclosure process, Colonel and Mrs Beaumont
were naturally concemed thatthe inclosure shouid notin any way lessen the
profits of theirlead business, and wrote o their Hexham Manor Bailiff, John

Bell, asking his opinion as to whethertheirlead interests would be harmed by
it.

40.In a letter dated 10" March 1793 to John Erasmus Blackett, {Chief Steward of
the Blackett Lead Company), John Bell wrote that the Greenwich Hospital’s
Northern Receiver had made enquiries in Weardale and Teesdale where there
were stinted pastures. They had found thatlead transport costs were no more
expensive there than costs over open moorland.

41.Bell also pointed out that roads between the inclosed fields were ‘fo be made
by the Propriefors and when the Carriers get upon that Part of the Common
which is to be stinted they will then have the open wide Moor fo pick their Way
upon in the best manner they can as they do now’

(Extract of letter written by John Bell to J.E. Blackett, Allendale Estate Archive, now
moved to Northumberland Archives but not yet catalogued).

42.Paragraphs 29 to 40 above have shown thatthere were powers comprised in
the 1792 Hexhamshire and Allendale Commons Inclosure Actfor the
Commissioners notonly to aliot land and set out publicly maintainable roads
within certain areas of former common, but also to allot limited grazing rights
and set out roads over land designated as stinted pastures.

43.The fact that no public road other than Allenheads Road was set out over the
stinted pastures must be seen as a deliberate decision on the part of the
Commissioners, because the lord of the manor's mineral rights allowed full
rights to make ways convenientfor his lead business. The tracks whose
names contain the word Way reflect this right.

44. Turning now to Alston Moor Inclosure (Act 1803 NRO 324/A83/6; Award 1820
CRO/QRE//108), the foliowing paragraphs describe the historical background.
of the event. :

45.The Manor of Alston belonged, in 1803, to the Commissioners and Governors
of the Royal Hospital for Seamen at Greenwich. In 1735 this charitable
foundation had been awarded the former Northern Estates of the Earl of
Derwentwater following his attainder and execution fortaking part in the 1715
Jacobite Uprising. The Northern Estates were administered by Receivers, who
got approval to instigate an Inclosure of the extensive Common land within the
Manor.

46.The Receivers were the same people who had worked closely with Hexham
Manor's administrators between 1792 and 1799 to bring about the inclosure of
Hexhamshire and Allendale Commons. The two manors shared a boundary at
Black Laws Cross and for a considerable distance in eitherdirection. The
whole extent of Alston Moor was awarded as allotments of land to be fenced
off into individual plots. No area was designated as stinted pasture.

Page 104



47.The Commissioners appointed to carry out the Alston Moor Inclosure were
John Fryer, William Bates, and William Donkin, two of whom had also been
Commissioners for the Hexhamshire and Allendale Inclosure.

48. Alston Moor was also a very productive lead mining area. Greenwich Hospital
leased the minesto the London Lead Company but retained the duty ores,
which were taken via the Whitfield Valley to their own smelt mill at Langley.
London Lead Company smelted their ore atthe Cupola Mill in Whitfield, but
from 1748, the Company's ores were smelted at Nenthead. Neither Greenwich
Hospital nor London Lead Company used a route via Black Laws as the
primary means to carry lead ore to their smelf milis.

49.Since the administrators of both Hexham and Alston Moor manors were on
demonstrably good and cooperative terms, and Greenwich Hospital had
benefited greatly from the land and stints awarded fo it by the 1799 Inclosure,
it can be assumed that the Receivers were familiar with the Hexhamshire and
Allendale Commons Inclosure Award plans.

50.As joint promoters of that Inclosure, they did notobject during the planning .
period to the stinted pastures having no public roads set out apart from
Allenheads Road. It is reasonable, therefore, to look for an alternative reason
for the creation within theirown manor of a publicly maintainable road leading
as far as the Cumberland county boundary.

51.Blakelaws Road was set out with this description: ‘ Blakelaws Road beginning
at the Weardale Tumpike near Nent Hall and leading Northwards fo the
boundary of the Regality or Manor of Hexham near Blakelaws Cross’.
Appendix 3 is an extract of the Alston Moor Inclosure Award plan.

52.Two other public highways were set out leading from Blakelaws Road: these
were Blagill Greens Road and Nentsberry Greens Road. Blagill Greens Road
ran east from the old Hexham Turmnpike Road into Biakelaws Road, allowing
access o newly allotted lands.

53.Nenisberry Greens Road ran south-eastfrom Blakelaws Road, crossing
Gudamgill Burn, then into Nenthead from the north-east. It provided access to
new allotments, lead mines, and a quarry.

54.As well as the two public roads which joined Blakelaws Road from east and -
west, the road itself gave direct access to six newly awarded fields on the east
side, and five on the west side before the junction with Foreshield Private
Carriage Road.

55.Continuing north fromthat pointup to the County boundary, the west side of
the road allowed access to a block of approximately 950 acres awarded in five
parcels to the Greenwich Hospital, lords of the manor, promoters and chief
beneficiaries of the inclosure.

56.Since two public roads joined Blakelaws Road, it would nothave been .
appropriate to set it out as a private carriage road limiting its use to owners of
allotments on eitherside, as that would have blocked access to and from
Blagill Greens and Nentberry Greens Roads.

57.For this reason, | suggest, it was simpler (and more beneficial to Greenwich
Hospital) to set out Blakelaws Road as a public highway whose maintenance

was the responsibility of the parifdage 105



Conclusion

58.This report has demonsirated that out of the eleven historic documents

submitted by the applicantonly three items can be claimed as ‘newly
discovered’ evidence: however, two of these, MacAdam’s Turnpike Plan of
1823 and Greenwood’s 1823 Map of Cumberland, do notadd any helpful
information aboutthe claimed route. The third, the Gaterley Road exiract, is
completely irrelevantto the route. The remainder of the applicant's submitted
evidence has already been considered and rejected in 2004 and 2016.

59.1 have described the historical contextin wh ich‘the inclosures of the

Hexhamshire and Allendale, and Alston Moor Commons were carried out,
providing evidence which gives a plausible explanation for the existence of a
public highway in Cumbria which atthe county boundary meets with a track
which was once used as an occu pation road for lead ore transport. The
historical context in this instance makes the through route presumption
untenable.

Liz Sobell MA, 8 February 2022.

[LINB: | have not submitted the entire text of the 1792 Act, as 1 have previously supplied both the Surveying
Authority and {indirectly} Mr Kind with this document.

4.1

42

- CONSULTATION

In January 2021, the Council carried outa consultation with the Parish
Council, known owners and occupiers of the land, the local County Councillor
andthe local representatives of the “prescribed and local organisations” listed
in the Council's “Code of Practice on Consultation for Public Path Orders”.
One reply was received and is included below.

By email, in March 2021, the British Horse Society responded to the
consultation, stating:

“Parish of West Allen

Alleged restricted byway no 26

“As this proposal is supported by inclosure awards, a source that
requires an Act of Parliament, it can be assumed that the origin of the
publicrights associated with it will have a legal origin.

“The change of the recorded status of the route as it passes from
Cumbria to Northumberland through Blacklaw Cross, high on the
watershed of the North Pennines, has long been recognised as an
anomaly. Why should a récognised county road in one county
(Cumbria) become a public footpath once it crosses into the adjacent
one (Northumberland)? There is surely no reason why anyonein the
past would have made the demanding journey with ahorse & cart up to
the top of the ridge, if they did not plan to travel down the other side? A
similar ancientway, Long Cross road, a little further north crosses the
county boundary withouta change in status.

" "Map evidence suggests that the fenced lane, recorded as a horse &
cart route in Cumbria %@um a route of similar status, although



5.1

unfenced, as it descended the hillside on the Northumberland side of
the county boundary. This means that the route should be recorded as
a restricted byway rather than a public footpath. Whetherthe route is
suitable for a horse & cart today is not a consideration forthe purpose
of recording the publicrights. If those rights existed in the past, they
still exist today so the BHS supports the recording of this alleged
restricted byway.”

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE

A search has been made of archivesrelating to the area. Evidence of Quarter
Sessions Records, Council Highways records, County Maps and O.S. Maps
was in spected and the following copies are enclosed for consideration.

1769 Armstrong’s County Map

~ Although "“Black Cross”is depicted on the map, there is no evidence of
frack, approximating to the route of alleged Restricted Byway No 26,
leading uptoit.

1800 Hexhamshire & Allendale Inclosure Award

“Alston Road” is depicted on the award map. It enters the stinted
pasture a short distance north-east of PointA. There is no evidence of
any track approximating to the alleged restricted byway through the
stinted pasture.

1820 Alston Moor Inclosure Award {in Cumbria)

. "Blakelaws Road” is depicted on the map. It proceeds in a general
northerly then north-easterly direction, fo the county boundary at
Blakelaw Cross (PointB).

1820 Fryer's County Map

“Blakelaws Cross” is depicted on the map, butthere is no evidence of a
track, approximating to the route of alleged Restricted Byway No 26,
leadinguptoit. The “Long Cross route, slightly furtherto the north, is
identified.

1823 JL McAdam’s Turnpike Road Plan 1823

The western end of Blakelaws Road is clearly identified (and labelled as
such)on the map. Map notincluded here —original map supplied is
small scale and copies made from this are of poor quality.

1823 Greenwood’s County Map (Cumberland)

There is clear evidence of a road or track following the continuation of
alleged Restricted Byway No 26 on the Cumberiand side of the county
boundary (in the vicinity of “Blacklaw Cross”). In common with other
cross-border routes, a short extension of the road / track is shown in
Northumberland.

Page 107



1827 Cary’s Map

- There is no evidence of track, approximating to the route of alleged
Restricted Byway No 26, on the Northumberland side of the boundary,
and no evidence of a track on the Cumbria side of the boundary either.
The route passing Long Cross, slightly furtherto the north, is depicted.

1828 Greenwood’s County Map (Northumberland)

There is clear evidence of a road or track approximating to the route of
alleged Byway No 286, crossing the boundary in the vicinity of “Black
Cross”. Anotherroute is shown crossing the boundary in the vicinity of
Long Cross, although “Long Cross”itself, is not identified.

1858 Ordnance Survey Boundary Remarks Sketch Book

There is clear evidence of a route crossing the border, at whatappears
to be PointB (the southern end of alleged Resiricted Byway No 26).

On the Cumberland side itis identified as an enclosed road. On the
Northumberland side itappears to identified as an unenclosed road or
track. The entry for this boundary crossing appears to have been
amended (originally both sides of the boundary were depicted as parts
of “Black Laws Road”) so that the Cumberiand side (only)is “Black
Laws Road” with the Northumberland side relabelled as “Carriers Way”.

c. 1860 Ordnance Survey Book of Reference

In the extract taken from the back of the Book of Reference published
to accompany the 25" 18t Edition Ordnance Survey Map, “Carriers Way”
is described as “A cart road”.

1865 Ordnance Survey Map: Scale 1:10,560 (reduced)

There is clear evidence of an unenclosed path / track over the route of
alleged Restricted Byway No 26. It is [abelled “Carriers’ Way”.

1898-99 Ordnance Survey Map: Scale 1:10.,5660 (reduced)

There is clear evidence of an unenclosed path / track over the route of
alleged Restricted Byway No 26. It is labelied “Carriers’ Way”.

1924-6 Ordnance Survey Map: Scale 1:10,560 (reduced)

There is clear evidence of an unenclosed path / track over the route of
alleged Restricted Byway No 26. [t is labelled “Carriers’ Way”.

c.1952 Definitive Map — original Survey Map

The route of existing Public Footpath / alleged Restricted Byway No 26’
exists on the base map. i is labelled “Carriers’ Way”, but no public
rights of way are identified forinclusion overit.

Page 108"



6.1

1957

Draft Map

As with the Survey Map, the route of existing Public Footpath / alleged
Restricted Byway No 26 exists on the base map. It is labelled “Carriers’
Way", but no public rights of way are identified forinclusion overit.

Bridges and Roads Committee minutes (16 December 1957)

These state that “The County Surveyor has carefully considered a large
number of representiations made by the Ramblers' Association for the
inclusion of paths on the draft map for the Rural Districts of Belford,
Castle Ward, Haltwhistle, Hexham and Norham and Islandshires and
his recommendation on these are based upon the evidence he has
been able to obtain from local sources.” Some one hundred and ninety-
two routes were identified, and all of them appear to be footpaths.

Draft Map {(Modified)

The routes of existing Public Footpaths Nos 12, 26 and 27 are all
identified (in purple)}forinclusion as public footpaths (then numbered
30, 31 and 32), as a result of successful representations atthe Draft
Map stage.

Provisional Map

As with the Draft Map (Modified), the route of existing Public Footpath /
alleged Restricted Byway No 26 exists on the base map and is
identified (by the purple colouring) as a public footpath (then numbered
“301!).

1862 Original Definitive Map

. 2004

2018

The route of existing Public Footpath / alleged Restricted Byway No 26
exists on the base map and is identified (by the purple colouring)asa
public footpath (then numbered “125”) in the Parish of Allendale.

Inspector's Decision regarding DMMO (No 10} 2003

The Inspector determined that, on a balance of probabilities, public
vehicularrights had notbeen shown to exist.

Inspector's Decision re appeal against NCC’s refusal to make an Order

The Inspector determined that, on a balance of probabilities, public
vehicularrights had notbeen shown to exist.

SITE INVESTIGATION

From PointA, on existing Byway Open o All Traffic No 37, a 3 to 5 metre

wide, overgrown and slightly sunken grass surfaced track proceeds in a south-
westerly direction for a distance of 150 metres to a field gate. A paraliel, 0.5
metre wide trodden grass path, on slightly higherground, justto the north-west
of the track, appears to be the route favoured by walkers today. There isa-
pool of standing water at the gateway. An adjacent step stile provides access
for walkers. Beyond the field gafé ay@atfack proceeds across the open



6.2

7.1

7.2

moorland, in a general southerly direction fora distance of 2480 metres to
PointB, atthe north end of the U3111 road in Cumbria, at a field gate, at
Blacklaw Cross.

The track across the open moor is almost entirely grass surfaced. It is mostly
clearly defined (and helpfully identified by waymark posts, at reguiarintervals),
but the width is variable, ranging from 30 centimetres up to around 3 metres.
The widest sections are most evidentup to about 100 metres from the field
gates ateither end. The track fords 4 minor watercourses. In other places the
grass surface was quite saturated with water.

COMMENTS RECEIVED ON THE DRAFT REPORT

In May 2022, a draft copy of the report was circulated fo the applicantand

those landowners / occupiers who responded to the initial consultation fortheir
comments.

By email, on 27 May 2022, Tom Warde-Aldam of Galbraith LLP submitted the
following comments in relation to the Draft Report:

“I refer to your letter dated the 13 May to Michael McNally of Warners
Law LLP.

“My firm, Galbraith LLP, act as agents for the Wellhope Partnership
which owns valuable sporting rights over the footpath in question.

“ note your recommendation that there is not sufficientevidence to
record RB (Restricted Byway) Rights, butalso your further
recommendation that there is sufficientevidence to support the
existence of Bridieway Rights.

“l am writing, on behalf of my Client, fo make an objection to your
recommendation in relation o the Bridleway proposal. | would make
the following comments:

“You suggest in yourreport that the NCC Rights of Way Commiitee
refused Mr Kind's original 1998 Application for Byway status on the
grounds of “insufficient evidence for vehicular or Public Bridleway
Rights”. This decision was appealed, leading fo a two day Public
Enquiryin 2004. The Inspector in that case refused the appeal on the
grounds thatthe evidence did not reach the standard required for a
balance of probability test on either level of rights.

“The next application in 2016 for a Restricted Byway over the route of
Footpath 26 also failed on Appeal in 2018 for the same reasons. Both
Inspectors commented on the “meagre” nature of the applicant’s
evidence.

“The 2019 application is once again for Restricted Byway status using
the trigger of “newly discovered evidence”. Liz Sobell’s carefully
researched report showed that whatwas submitted amounted to only
three pieces of previously unsighted evidence; one of these was totally
irrelevant (Gaterley Road) and the other two did notshow the route
under consideration.

Page 110



8.1

8.2

8.3

“All three applications have relied heavily on the presumption of a
“through route”linking two public roads. However, this is an argument
twice rejected by Planning Inspectorsin 2004 and 2018, because there
was insufficient documentary evidence to support it.

“Section 8 of your draft report states at paragraph 8.6 that “it does not
appear that the possibility of Public Bridleway Rights existing overthis
route has been properly explored.” It further assumes that in rejecting
the claims for public and vehicularrights, no other status had been
considered by the two Inspectors in 2004 and 2018. We would suggest
that this is an unjustified conclusion on your part; the Inspectors had full
powers to order that the route should have been recorded as a Public
Bridleway if they had concluded thatthe evidence submitted had shown
that, on the balance of probabilities.

“None of the “newly discovered evidence” adds any support to a claim
for Public Bridleway status, norhas Mr Bell’s own documentary
research added any support to such a conclusion.

“On this basis, we have to disagree with the recommendations for
elevating Footpath 26 to Bridleway status. The decision by the Righis
of Way Committee should be based on the strength or otherwise of the
documentary evidence in relation to this alleged Restricted Byway, not
on un-evidenced supposition.

‘| trust that you will take this into accountin yourreport and will highlight
our clients’ strong objection to the Rights of Way Committee.”

DISCUSSION

Section 53 (3)(c)(ii) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, requires the
County Council to modify the Definitive Map when evidence is discovered
which, when considered with all other relevantevidence available to them
shows:

“‘that a highway shown in the map and statementas a highway of a
particular description oughtto be there shown as a highway ofa
differentdescription.”

When considering an application / proposal for a modification order, Section
32 of the Highways Act 1980 provides for “any map, plan or history of the
locality or other relevantdocument” to be tendered in evidence and such
weightio be given to it as considered justified by the circumstances, including
the antiquity of the tendered document, the status of the person by whomand
the purpose for which itwas made or compiled, and the custody in which ithas
been kept and from which itis produced.

The Natural Environmentand Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC Act 2008)
had a major impact upon the recording of vehicular public rights of way based
upon historical documentary evidence. Undersection 67 of the Act, any
existing, but unrecorded, public rights of way for mechanically propelled
vehicles were extinguished unless one of the ‘saving’ provisions applied. In
brief, these saving provisions were: (a) if the main lawful public use between
2001 and 2006 was with motor vehicles; (b} if the route was on the List of
Streets (on 2 May 2006} and nofaggenltilDefinitive Map as something less



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

than a byway open to all traffic; (c) the route was legally created expressly for
motor vehicularuse; (d) the route was a road deliberately constructed for
public motor vehicular use; or (e) the vehicular highway came aboutas a
result of unchallenged motor vehicularuse before December 1930.

None of the above saving provisions would appearto apply to the alleged
restricted byway route. This pointwould appearto have been acknowledged
by the applicant. Whilsthis 1998 application was for a byway open fo all
traffic, his (post NERC Act 2006) 2016 and 2019 appilications, only soughtto
record the route as a restricted byway.

The representation of a path or frack on an Ordnance Survey Map is not
evidence thatitis a publicrightof way. It is only indicative of its physical
existence at the time of the survey.

It is possible to detect a degree of frustration, from the landowners, thatthis
matter is being considered fora third time, on the basis of, what they consider
to be, very limited new evidence. On the one hand, whilstitis an important
principle thatthe discovery of new evidence should enable a matter io be
revisited, it should notbe followed in such a way that an applicant mightbe
encouraged to withhold evidence and then drip feed additional documents into
the equation, so they can have multiple bites at the cherry. Notwithstanding
these reservations, new evidence has been infroduced to support this most
recent application to record a restricted byway and, significantly, it does not
appear that the possibility of public bridleway rights existing over this route has
been properly explored. The Inspector determining DMMO (No 10) 2003 does
not appear to have considered this aspect (he simply found thatthere was
insufficientevidence in supportof public vehicularrights). The Inspector
considering MrKind's appeal againstthe Council's refusal to make an order
pursuantto his 2016 restricted byway application, similarly found against Mr
Kind in relation to the existence of public vehicular rights without, apparently,
considering the possibility that public bridleway rights might exist.

Mr Kind and Ms Sobell have both devoted a certain amountoftime to the
subject of whetherthose pre-existing public highways overthe stinted pasiure
land, that were not specifically set outin the inclosure award, were
extinguished by the inclosure award pro¢ess. Mr Kind's view is that they were
not. The Inspector determining DMMO (No 10) 2003, in 2004, agreed with
himon this particular point, and | would.also agree with this position. The
Hexhamshire and Allendale Inclosure Award did not set outor otherwise
identify any public rights over the alleged restricted byway route. Accepting
that any pre-existing public rights over the stinted pasture were not
extinguished by the inclosure process does not mean that any public highway
rights necessarily continued through the stinted pasture or that any highway
rights that did exist were necessarily vehicuilarones. Ultimately, whilstthe
Inspector determining DMMO (No 10) 2003 agreed with Mr Kind regarding the
effects of the inclosure process, he found against Mr Kind in relation to the
overall strength of the evidence in support of vehicularrights.

The landowneris notimpressed with the new JL McAdam’s turnpike plan
evidence. They aren’t contesting that Blakelaws Road was set out as a public
vehicular highway in the Alston Moor Inclosure award, only three years
previously. Ms Sobell considers, notunreasonably, thatthe turnpike road’s
intersection with Blakelaws Road would have been identified as a point of
reference. This part of Blakelaws Road mightbe used by traffic from Blagill
Greens Road or from Nentbﬁagiﬁe&riﬁoad — notnecessarily by people



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

travelling across the county boundary. | would have to agree that the turnpike

~ plan —which appears to identify many connecting routes, notjust a select few

—adds little weightto support the reputation of Blakelaw Road as part of a
cross-border through route for public vehicular traffic.

Ms Sobell is critical of the accuracy of Greenwood’s Map of 1828.

She, not unfairly, points to a lack of precision with regard to the location of
Blacklaws Cross. She also notes that JB Harley, writingin 1962 about
Greenwood’s Worcestershire Map of 1822, had concluded that Greenwood
spent approximately 30 shillings per square mile surveyed, which compared
unfavourably with the £16 per square mile cost information supplied to the
inquiry into the Survey of Ireland in 1828. I'm notsure this is necessarily -
comparing like with like, however. If the Board of Ordnance survey in Ireland
amounts to an Ordnance Survey standard survey, itis to be expected that this

- would be vastly more expensive to conduct. The level of detail provided on

Ordnance Survey maps dwarfs that shown on the commercially produced
County maps. In my own experience, the accuracy of and detail on
Greenwood’s County Map of Northumberland compares favourably with the
map produced by Fryer. In general, the County maps do have a tendencyto
be slightly schematic.

Mr Kind has drawn attention to Edward Lockyer’s report, of 1823, into the
condition of roads on Greenwich Hospital Estate’s land in the area. Mr
Lockyer observes “The public roads are carried over the highesthills”. Whilst
this certainly does indicate that wheeled fraffic was using some of the upland
routes in this area, Mr Lockyer does not appear to identify which ones. This
comment may relate to routes which are, today, accepted public roads — it
need not apply to the application route.

Ms Sobell has also noted that the Ordnance Survey Boundary Sketch Book
entry, illustrating where the route crosses the Cumberland — Northumberland
boundary, appears to have been corrected. The original entry had the words
“Black Laws” on the Cumberland side of the boundary, with “Road” on the
Northumberiand side, implying thatthe cross border route was uniformly
known as “Black Laws Road”. The correction (made in red) identifies “Black
Laws Road” as being the route on the Cumberland side of the boundary and
“Carriers Way” its continuation on the Northumberland side. The word “Road”,
on the Northumberiand side, has been crossed through with ared line. This
correction could, of course, simply be due to the fact that the route was known
by differentnames, depending which side of the boundary you were on, butit
might also reflect a perceived difference in the status of the route.

The applicanthas acknowledged thathe has no direct evidence identifying -
the alleged restricted byway route, itself, as a public vehicular highway. He
considers that since, at its eastern end, the alleged restricted byway begins on
a recognised public vehicular highway, and because its westerly continuation
{(within Cumbria) has also been determined to be a public vehicular highway, it
is reasonable to conclude thatthe central (alleged restricted byway) section is
also public vehicular highway. He has supported this proposition with two
legal judgements (Leicestershire County Council v Secretary of State for
EFRA[2003] and Eyre v New Forest Highway Board [1892]).

On the face of it, this is a fairly convincing general principle, butit cannotbe
assumed to apply universally. It would be particularly persuasive in
circumstances.where a route didn’tintersect with any other highways,
traversed fairly uniform terrain afiag@sdd Bind that, historically, had always



8.14

8.156

been owned by a single landowner. The situation at Mohope could be
explained simply by differential dedication. The route across the stinted
pasture (and its continuation within Cumbria) may, historically, have been
something less than a public vehicularrightof way. If the Alston Moor
Inclosure Commissioners elected to ‘upgrade’ the Cumbria continuation to
vehicular status, this wouldn't alter the status of the section across the stinted
pasture in Northumberland.

Mr Kind has argued that it wouldn't make sense for the Cumbrian continuation
of the alleged restricted byway route to have been set out as a publicroad if
the continuation within Northumberland didn’'t have the same status. Members
of the public driving vehicles along Blakelaws Road, within Cumbria, would be
forced to turn round at the County boundary, and there is no obvious reason
why anyone would derive any utility from this. This argumentis not without
merit. As Mr Kind points out, the inclosure commissioners could have set out
Blakelaws Road (or the section east of that road’s junction with Blagill Greens
Road, at least) as a public highway of lower status (to match the continuation
within Northumberland —had the inclosure process there, some twenty years
previously, established the status of the route across the stinted pasture) or as

-a private road (potentially, with public footpath or bridleway rights along the

same route).

Ms Sobell has suggested that since two public roads joined Blakelaws Road,
it would nothave been appropriate fo set it out as a private road, thereby
limiting access to the Blagill Greens and Nentbury Greens publicroads. She
has also argued that it was simpler - and more beneficial to the Greenwich
Hospital Estate — for Blakelaws Road fo be set outas a public highway,
because then the maintenance responsibility would fall on the parish, rather
than on specific landowners. The commissioners could have solved the first
difficulty by setting out most of Blakelaws Road as public — so as to preserve a
through connection between the Blagills Green and Nentbury Greens Roads,
but naming the northern end (the cul-de-sac section leading to the County
boundary) as something different (with a lower status). [ would suggestthat
the maintenance argumentdoes have merit, however. No parcels of land {in
Cumberland)would rely on the extension up to the County boundary. The
Greenwich Hospital and Joseph Dickinson plots, lying either side of this route,
would both still have direct access to the public road network, even if this
extension didn'texist. There may have been influential landowners on the
Northumberland side of the boundary (perhaps with private rights, or perhaps
satisfied by the existing footpath or bridleway rights through the stinted
pasture, in the Northumberiand) keen to preserve access on the Cumberland
side of the boundary. | wonderwhetherthere may, potentially, have been
some difficulty setting outa private road fo protect these interests, if the
beneficiaries in Northumberland (who would usually be expected to initially
finance and subsequently maintain the route) weren't actually landowners
involved in the Alston Moor inclosure. By making this route a public road, the
maintenance burden would, as Ms Sobell points out, be shared amongst the
whole parish. .

8.16 There are, in fact, a significantnumber of other non-through route vehicular

highways, apparently set outin the Hexhamshire and Allendale Inclosure
Award. | have attached a small scale map extract showing the existing public
rights of way network between Aliendale and Hexhamshire. The yellow routes
are ordinary roads (shown on the OS base map). The routes represented by
solid brown lines are recorded on the Definitive Map as byways open to all
traffic, the broken green IinePagsJﬂJ[bzﬂaridleways andthe broken red lines



8.17

8.18

8.19

are public footpaths. Starting in the 12 o'clock position, and working round
clockwise, Greenridge Road, Ardiey Road, Eshells Road, Lightside Road,
Woestburnhope Road, Lousley Road, Houstie Carr's Road, Shilburn Road,
Watch Currock Road and Newfold House Road are all byways open to all
traffic that were set outas publicroads in the Allendale and Hexhamshire
Inclosure Award. All of these roads were set out only as far as the stinted
pasture separating the two valleys. All of the highway continuations crossing
the stinted pasture, connecting with byways open to all traffic on the other
side, are currently recorded on the Definitive Map as public bridleways — not
as vehicularrights of way (nor as footpaths). Whilstitis certainly possible that
one or more of the crossover routes could be more than just public bndieways
I haven't, as yet, been made aware of any compelling evidence o
demonstrate that any of them are.

In relation to the above area between Allendale and Hexhamshire, | have also

. attached exiracts from Fryer's (1820) and Greenwood’s (1828) County maps.

Both Fryer and Greenwood appear to have identified the majority of the
inclosure awarded roads leading up to the stinted pasture. At present, there
are 7 public bridleways recorded on the Definitive Map crossing over the
stinted pasture to connectwith the ends of these roads. Fryer has depicied 3
of them and Greenwood appears to have depicted 5 (possibly 6) of them. The
majority of the public highways shown on Fryer's and Greenwood’s County
maps are vehicularones. Given the scale of the mapping, this is almost
inevitable — it would be impossible to show, in any meaningful way, every
public bridleway and footpath, too, though Greenwood did specifically identify
afew (i.e. less than 20) bridleway routes (labelling them as bridleways)within
Northumberland. 1 would suggestthat both Fryer and Greenwood may have
shown a small number of routes where the status wasn'tabsolutely certain.
They may have believed they were likely to be vehicular, butin reality they
might have been of a lower {most likely, public bridleway) status.

The cumulative documentary evidence in supportof public vehicular rights
over the alleged restricted byway route is not considered to be sufficientto
satisfy the balance of probabilities test. Whilstthe “through route presumption”
undoubtedly has significant merit, it cannotautomatically apply in every case.
The numerous identified examples of inclosure awarded roads (many of them

- now recorded as byways open to all traffic) terminating at the stinted pasture

between Allendale and Hexhamshire, with public bridleways forming the
uplandlink between them, reinforces that position. [f the alleged Restricted
Byway No 26 route (like the connecting routes between Allendale and
Hexhamshire}is not a vehicular highway, it does, however, seem more likely
than notthat (again, like the connecting routes.between Allendale and
Hexhamshire) it will be of public bridleway rather than public footpath status. It
may be significantthatthe Allendale to Hexhamshire routes were all originally
identified as public bridleways at the Draft Map stage, whereas the Mohope
route was only identified for inclusion following representations to that Draft
Map, by the Ramblers’ Association —a walking group.

Commenting on a drafi version of this report, Galbraith LLP (for the Wellhope
Partnership), objected to the recommendation in support of the existence of
public bridleway rights. The sequence of events outlined in paragraph 1 of
their comments section isn’tquite correct. It is quite true that the NCC Rights
of Way Committee refused Mr Kind's 1998 application fo record a byway open
to all traffic on the grounds of “insufficient evidence for vehicular or public
bridleway rights”. Mr Kind appealed againstthis refusal and this appeal was
successful. Northumberland Colatg@oildcd was directed, by the Secretary of



8.20

8.21

8.22

State, to include the route in a future Definitive Map Modification Order as a
byway open fo alltraffic. An Order (DMMOQO (No 10) 2003) was duly made, and
attracted objections, which led to the Order and objections being submitted to
the Secretary of State for determination, and it is this which led to the two day
publicinguiry —not the appeal againstthe County Council's refusal to make an
Order. Followingthe publicinquiry, the Inspector declined to confirm DMMO
(No 10) 2003 on the grounds that“the evidence before me is insufficientto
show the existence of public carriageway rights over the Order route.”

The applicant's appeal againstthe County Council’s refusal to make a
definitive map modification order pursuantio his 2016 application failed. The
Inspector concluded “| do not considerthat it has been demonstrated on a
balance of probabilities that Footpath 26 oughtto be shown as a restricted
byway. As such,the appeal must fail.”

Galbraith LLP has also argued that the amount of new evidence produced to
support the new application is extremely meagre. Although the new evidence
in support of vehicular rights is certainly modest, whiistinvestigating this
application, additional evidence thatfurther challenges the through route
presumption was discovered. This draws on the treatment (within the same
Inclosure Award) of routes linking the Allendale and Hexhamshire valleys.
Whilstthe Award set out numerous public roads leading up to the stinted
pasture, no continuation was identified continuing through the stinted pasture
itself, though there are multiple public bridleways recorded crossing over that
pasture, on the Definitive Map, today, adding supportto the hypothesis that
the application route mightbe something less than public vehicular butmore
than public footpath.

Galbraith LLP is correct in asserting that the Inspector had the power to
amend DMMO (No 10) 2003, if he had believed the route was a public
bridleway, and the Inspector considering the 2017 appeal might have been
able to directthe County Council to make an Order for public bridleway, even
if he hadn’tbeen convinced thatpublic vehicularrights existed. Neitherof
them did, but thisis perhaps unsurprising, because neither Inspector appears
to have addressed the potential existence of public bridleway rights. If an
Inspector had actually considered the existence of public bridleway rights, and
then dismissed the evidence in supportas beinginsufficient, itis not
unreasonable to expect that they would have stated as much.

8.23 Advice from the Planning Inspectorate in their ‘consistency guidelines' states

9.1

that it is important to have the correct width, where known, recorded in the
definitive statement. Where no width can be determined by documentary
means (such as an Inclosure Award, Highway Order or dedication document),
there is usually a boundary to boundary presumption for public highways.
Since this route is notenclosed now, nor does it appear to have been
enclosed previously, itis proposed that, if it is fo be upgraded to public
bridleway status, it should be recorded with the Council’s standard default
width of 3 metres (i.e. wide enough fortwo horses, travelling in opposite
directions, to pass each other. '

CONCLUSION

In l-ightofthe documentary evidence available, it appears that, on a balance of
probabilities, public vehicular rights have not been shown to exist over the
route of alleged Restricted BiA@geNd 26



9.2

93

In lightof the documentary evidence available, it appears that, on a balance of
probabilities, public bridleway rights have been shown to exist over the route
of alleged Restricted Byway No 26.

It would be appropriate to recognize the public’s higherrights over the route of
existing Footpath No 26 by upgrading this to public bridleway status on the
Definitive Map.
BACKGROUND PAPERS
Local Services Group File: E/49/26z

Report Author Alex Bell — Definitive Map Officer

(01670) 624133
Alex.Bell@Northumberland.gov.uk

Page 117



High Banks Moss

N7,
88

3 "
Ouston Fell | &
wily High Banks Moss

wily,

oS P RIS

| Whitfeld Moot

a1,

a1g PIoIADLES

=

L?W Blackisp, Cleugh

¥
The Delphs

wiTs,

The Mares o

ailn
Halley Moor

Ty,
Carriers’ Hill

Broad

T,

Northumberland

County Council

Infrastructure Records, Local Services
County Hall Morpeth Northumberland
NE61 2EF Telephone 0345 600 6400

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office Crown Copyright

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and :

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
License No. 100049048 (2013).

Wildlife & Countryside Act, 1981

ATAYATATAVAVAYA

Alleged Restricted Byway

Former District

Tynedale

Parish

West Allen

Scale

NTS

0.S.Map

NY74NE/75SE

Date
September 2020




Sandy Ford

Xg
50

A, &
o

16&{‘5

e e Ty,

Coliscty

Loval
i) * 1

Collects
Collezis

Common

Mohope Moor '

p
F:
Pinch Park of]

Shaft
o (dis)
. J
Callact

Collpcts

Whitfield Moor 1

g OAPUES

P
- g:?:}/L-mKiIn
WiTas tdis]

> Low Bja0p
» lackish Cieugfﬁu

2
Wil
i/

a

£ 4
!‘-_.ﬂ“

H

A¥Th,
Carriers’ Hill

Bell's Moss
wils,

P
: M~
m Eiend This is a computer generated extract of the Working Copy
iy Fodipat of the Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way
== Bridleway
Northumberland
County Council

Contact: Alex Bell
Telephone: 01670 624133
Email: Alex.Bell@northumberland.gov.uk

== Restricted Byway

=== Byway Open to All Traffic
—— 1km Gridlines

Scale: 1:10,000

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office
Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. License no. 100048048 (2010),

Page 119




Armstrong’s County Map
1769

) ' s - s sl Lomp N
,Mié.“ D J\%mes,rm f//v Tl BargyyHills S
d "{Zﬂg/i.mv? - -

. foziiam
s %’; ]’m{}’- B el s gﬁ,ﬁ,ﬁ, g aralee

B % -?.‘ *{’f& &1 f'aﬁt"

: !!—"‘ s - z o A
Vo s - o LM’(IM{ pol TH z;};— uV-Ff . if/

/‘%Av J 7.2 i Untteanik jy”” e AT Sharnss . A jf’ 71‘%71” ? ,\

?, ,’,".‘ Friedifede ‘:fy.." ) _A// ) é! eer oy OSE

//j& f(ma’ én’/’
} J‘/NJ 2 9 g__.Lg's,_' "
t g P l__g e 8 T

i Lard w2 /R 7

B ¢} ?.v'"
Lldge Ggf i SIS

ke (-,ﬂy @xy{z 73 & J/(w//n«rz/ /

LR 2R 23
wrrfoal® m//m.r&r/z sty
’* \ q_’l z Yf’a’mf]/mm'
Tamdloy 3

: ,:' ]f ]1‘%:/11.)‘/ fary j;,/ j/awd
'/

‘. IR
o {}5‘;' 28, M LU _[,mf Storee '.f,-' Foobants ? N ('"j
Jamlg f:/- /“ : ﬂfl? Cp ""{2_ ..u\/
Llee o 2 };;rﬁ,fl {W “ch, Buen 'Whlteﬁ Bk o - Vﬂﬁ‘}-:
,%yﬁ‘”‘% by "@Zy ng ¢lese ' L\”/m b P
‘717&//”/54/1? L 'Jo/zfrv Park '?) 7 !._\ .5 5'/(:,-3
i . L Jl'zz/ﬂj/azzse T g

2 9_:.“7:.'9/1/?/ hoad Trals L

' , Finetla 2L
Jfr . ]r? o ﬁmr//gfa é

“ ] :
Yy e 8 ROW 5,0 i shdank Ok Ftol ;
N S S

\|‘. ﬂ/ ,«: - J/zc;wlﬁo 240 %r" ﬂ/’d/;r( ;(:é‘j:/,gf{ (_'”"Hé”/ ]/w’fméas/ iy
e f/éﬁ iy e . 4 Fall. %

E\\‘ ﬂ_q{ L g5 A/“z\ /-w%\ ]_ , /~g < ‘M Cunry it rv-' '\’?: A Tguse Burnt .'/";'w s,
widale o an. f“ = g FayLees ™ ;
sru ‘1“‘ v ..S/oai/ i Greon T % g = %/"‘ A o .if ﬂ/afmi‘m/d /% Tt s 0%
n\/‘\“‘vy/ﬂ T Wy (’I({ . " ?‘IJ; (I(/(‘ e A mj Q_.. T\ NTA”//&!{."&’ o Greens 5
dewan! ‘,‘1‘ q”r//(’w"'rb” J ey T i 17/ j/i]/m/sm ]/ y // L }7(7/,‘#/#1? S A%

& - s F Garsneerda f
,,.,4‘,@/,‘.&‘ ode) Q.-\’,e“o\ errley % _6} J/ﬂ‘/ﬂ’ o Hall ® N, 4
r ““ " "’-1 9’ i "('/wy/ - il ¢ Wy, S'Zmr ¢,y faad Gl /
sl \‘ ?. o ' /% Wtlyshans &;__; ~j. ”:‘ R 8 Ivdaties _“,_,-_--.:-:.':.:
/LA 7)’({/?1 gl o hsty e (mewl % T JJ/
e, / ah 7 o P -
v ,%'” o \\\ |” :,_'}’ _ ﬁrkhau gh - Nn:-e:)an 570 ///m “])’mMa .
\\'{ﬁ"" gy w i ‘y/m/m G 1 :— & («, ory B Stergernd y

- Maéw/';m@ .“L];/{//pg
:' ,ﬁaﬁﬂy/"r zaw.f g,a'f- N

! \ .Za'.r s

fms'/r e Henre -
el foopre

h N
u] ay oy J{Jrfmé

"'kf///m/wzﬂ/@r "
i Faellor FHetl
: ,71(//1 Ry M\ o

_E’&r// 70 Z

s TR
.t .

kb Beerre Foad w

. o Sxe. o JM
;’/ = ALsTON e, M e{/ﬁo ) “
I E “Yrnziorn
i Ay
! & L,

3 .
1 (2, ‘_f,‘;
g 3 | g B mﬂmy c h.
e = 0 wrrong p
=] w e s
wy - & T T e D

Page 120



Hexhamshire & Allendale Inclosure Award
1800




Alston Moor Inclosure Award
1820

A'c,’[utrdrn Lirddvia

Wellewm N 'uf/;ii(l

iy K

’

Extract of piag@@ezj by Liz Sobell



Fryer’'s County Map
1820

Page 123



Greenwood’s County Map (Cumberland)
1823

Wiy shase .}?{yyfe‘o

) 0
6’ h
4

qrass
Liedd

edgithope Y

;“i‘ SO wQuwwd *C -y

Extract of plan supplied by Liz Sobell

Page 124



Cary’s Map
1827

R “ "Qm, v
d 'qh_% ‘._.-‘

h by f ﬂ -
Widon Sgad )] Pl

e * .9/m.r L "5

SRt chiicledy i \{%, ,r 2.
i NI (L .
Wi Aokl e

(3 4AL
Matcden Law ™ '11:_;'?-"

¥
= Loaningeide * i _? .
A [hfﬂw_; )
ve i "‘ o " i 7,
. #}m:nﬁ:ﬁf/z \ . ’g\.g_

Whitfield 2

"t s

.
VAT -j -
"t / n g e g .
g | ' 5 ’4(’;.,;' )
IR A .;/’4{?’

4
LA T It

: T, | S
o Birfenkion & Jra{wm

Page 125



Greenwood’s County Map (Northumberland)
1828

DSTONE

e

et b i fm o b o P e e

Page 126



Ordnance Survey Boundary Sketch Book
(1858)

Copy of extract supplled by Alan Kind
Page 12



Ordnance Survey Book of Reference
c.1860

INDEX TO PLACES.

6 T 25344 Descriptive Remarks.
\ inch seale.

~ame of Place.
Hn.scaled

A house.

(',au:'HO‘t‘.. emrr e s amans .
PRI Way. eaeevstett A roed.

i E‘J_l“'l B-llﬁi. T ETLREL
¢ tureh (Per Curacy)} + o~
PO R R L A, farm house.
copwbirry Hillesoeeweees . A farm house.
Crawberty Cleuglte +ovver A ravine.
Chint THIL o cesvvemaenees Cotrages.
{ruwiree Voo, cvavsanen
;-x;'nrrivrs‘s'a}'............ A cartroad. %
PR < B
Clongh FOOE cvavnavesres
i'm:s" Siho.oanevnens rane
s TUREUE, «eevecener
(lenzh Head, v oveseansss
Cress Welloaeeeans vanans

A house.

Part of Allendale Common

Clarey Gape s ovenerorers
Cat PitSacrvasnnenvorer " 11 Rough ground.
{umb IIOU.SE......-..-.-\ ) 11
Church ( Per, Curacy) - - 5 13
¢urr .‘il;iul S ieraseesedrs 3 13 A hamlet.
Clashole, covrsveeanianes " 14 Cottages.
e
1y BIKE s g s are ey » 2
eurrvs Told o vavniavaens ’,, ia For sheep-
Coslpits o vansnervonsvns 3 13 A hamlet.
oateuhill oo eveeens weire 1 13 Cottages-
Contenlill Plantation, «... ’e 13
o afis (Lead) +eveedd X 2 \
Cowberry HIll < ouaenvans CXL 1
Currshicld Moor. o ooe oo »» 1
?TO-‘Sdi{ue P ” 1 | Couages.
“urrock SPHBE. vaveren s
Codtbam, . 5 | A farm house
Comnfield Cottage . o ocon ” ” :i;r
Chinrell cvvevanas . . 3 Chapel of Ease.
(lose House . . 3
('_u:\.lcleﬁgh Mine (Lea&} .. :’, 5
l_o‘dclcugh MOor seanerrs " 5
t;L.u:ddm.igl‘l TP Lveeie 2 5
‘waleleugh Pits {Coal). ..+ 2 3
Coal Clewgh . .... 5 A ravine.
Couldleugh. ... st » 5 4 village.
l";xrriurs Wav. .. e ” 6 A road.
Canlsons Sike, | i e v 6 )
:-u‘l’its: (Coal) v on Co M ¥
“raigshield Shaft (Lead) .. » K
Devburn Cleugh. . ouveass CI. 16 A ravine.
!)r} Burn. ... c » 16
Decke NEEILRXR] YII. 1
_ T O TR COIL 6 A cottege.

Copy of extract supplied by Alan Kind |
Page 128



! - .;ri"’""'"'ﬁr_u s
; e 7T -
b avermir e e T - ,"-a..-{
WL 1dad . T £
Searedr, f'onf 4 .
; S A Altendule tommon (Deed, 1“310'6‘63
o £ Pg D8 (DIN6HEE
- “. .’JMMJ‘(, axyyorswr o il thos ¥ i o v ATy
sae o - . T A e i .
;-’.&P/du -3 - v U ’Z
. ¥ H
<ism f ' ,-"' -
r P
e High Mohapeheail/d
# h
. " ﬂ’ﬁ tfe:
- Rt l 2Sen T828.3
.r,_, HedLd
A -‘.'
- High Bankic Moss o .
- | e .
. ;o - - N i, T
- ] A T " i e Helpghr-
- P L ./Za”‘& o . ,—- '
'..f . L i dackish-Tley, A i o
oo J s
s e ,}J/" ) ~—
o \\. A ; R 250

Loapy Cleugh Howd '
] Cre, e
3 - f'"“’""--\ fike Famad

SCALE 1:12,000

Northumberland Ordnance Survey 1st Edition 6" map (1865)

County Council

Page 129



(T J
- e e - b I i 7y
e 3 s . — ALTENDALE GOHI[OH(MJ“- v s . .P!’uﬁ Pﬂrk—;;.
s Vg " g v i il ‘
. N 5 it . .

!
P

PEA T
¢

R

* E TR

L'frqg,;
" L

The Mira

/ Hearty (Nl ﬁ :ﬁ@
/ Mine { .

:'E " inck -5pnﬁ;1
i

fihgwi) g

L ET JC O \l/MON g s

PP SN
:’\ /f " -‘(,/‘:\ﬂ [
0\ »" . (m“’"’""") A G - . )—0\
& e e - — = s [ o .
A T come gt} T ' o s A ¥
) _4« S ﬂ)‘ / ey ) ey = » /
— & ini -;.-.x s ;.;,"*’z . N[ e - v
bk e - ‘ sl - - . - .
" O T A cres - <812 /
. - ' -
L ¥ e e b -

SCALE 1:12,000

Northumberland Ordnance Survey 2nd Edition 6" map (1898-99)
~ounty Council .

Page 130



= 7
- - e~
£t o n /> F e 1 1 = I
-:. g T s J—
. wdl M‘:“-" - -y L4
p— . N 4
- .
— o 7
— e B ,\LLENDJI.-E coMHaN {Ded. No.3) g o

Landy commen b the Pariskes of
ALLENDALE ¢nd WEBT ALLEN

e

e st

b ALLEXOALE COMMON (Dt, ¥o.t)
Laxds common o the Periker of
ALEERDALE nnd WEST ALLE!

] P
R,

unangn, b,

-6‘% % —

“ e, . _L_
- » y ) : )
[ 1 R : y . .
] The Merer / % )
it " i, 5 y - g,
A A, ,Sw.,_ it Ao wnea) / / ""‘,r.
P s gy F e -
~' . i R e Y
o ¢ R e N
” p—
M e ) - e
-

e

(A

L3
%:. [T

R Jo— N
Bianz e o
p—— [

e,
— p. LR | e~ e .
I - % vt
g - . —e
o - A i e & O Shast(
UMy, — -
I - i B — iy A
Ao . i wl & Hoarty Cleugh Mine'
v - J— ] Black aSrmry . fW}(DhMt
& - -f’ - o Ol Limekity
\ 5 - .~ [—— rw S, o
1760 5 en, R . R
& iy i e el
e A . Rt "\é ey - 2 -
¥ -
» e, LGN T - amr
T .l: ,,A’s
N s g
o ys J—— Tarriers’ Hilt H
& - Wil £ il
e “
F -, o — i fir.
— W e ERTRIETE B ss p A |
o
e - . P .
o - .
o5 T R
- e [
-
- iy, bt
J— st
J— o Bell's Mags s
g, ™
et J— _—
. .
o I [ '
I 0
. , P 7 vinyy - - —
» H J—
£ e -
F .
7 _ ": Boes - — s
[—" v - — F—
4 ki - —_— ety
LU, . i \ - s
o j— Berings =
‘"‘ﬂ . ] . - v
S e, -~ -
Dia Guarry ¢ Choar - b,
— gy e udinng it
[ - il X § s "
J—— J—
J— n [ . iy ™ Oid Quarry
—tine J— ) . ek s '
b, "
B—P LT
- LUl L L LT '
Rl Y e X
Advian Vs T Hy LLILITH .
h

Hurty Clwgh Hood - o ya

iy - BATery,

SCALE 1:12,000

Northumber]and Ordnance Survey 3rd Edition 6" map (1924-6)

County Council

'*-\ RCiL

Page 131



Survey Map

=

ey

I

&

{
Yoo

4

-~
o
©

Page 132



Draft Map

. B ALLESDALE {ONNON 1Dl 8o Y

i Lends armmon b it Pari

i ALLENDALY wad WEST ALLEN

E ST
| b ALLERDALE COMMOR (a Naa)/

L i Lands pmamon o the Parudsn ;

R i ALEENDALE and WEST sr.u:sr'f,f H-g:

. Ay
amen

s
(e
et /f
& .

i ——
AU G
PELLAb N

) -
T - -
i -

Page 133



(uIng MoH oyl e ysued el ul g 'ON
yed Sumuof ‘Alepunog ysiied HoImaLE, oyl v po)
a1 01 {[IH wnqmoH pue uoneuelg uolduidiy
‘noneeld ped £q uonaeup Apoynos w ut .
fiepunog] ystied a1 3¢ [Hymoreo T "on Witd wouf |"7 1 'd'd uoyduijdry
-— sz el ul
1 "ON itd Suuutol ‘Alepunog ysued uojBurdiy
alfy 01 vo1Ap Apeyinos v ul Arepunog W0LISIC
jeany yadlop Syl e 25NOL] UL JO ISIM-YIN0S )
spivA (07 Inoqe proy uopPN-uRiog ) WOl rd'd HLYAO]ED.
~gonemueyd oty jo Alspunog ginos 9y} 1 prodl
U0 EYAA-UOPIFIN 24l 410} O3 WLIE YHON UOHPUM |
£q uopoanp Apoymos T uy Aiepunog 1PINS .
(Y Wadio sul 18 U2013IaATY T ‘ON Ud Wedg T 'dd "UoNBYM,
‘uonoun{
peoy UINQI1IQ-IISEIMIN 0 1see-ijou
spik  QOT Iwoqu prod pEIRETED [ AR HRREA
1sap4 Y3 ulof o} uopodaalp £l1ogqnos v up A
-punog uslEd 901JEYg 1SPH 94 e g oN ied wodd |77 bdd ‘pacipuag
yspeg Wyl ul b ON Wed uiof 01
£1epunog ysued plojpeid ey ol lBH 301§ 180T
puE axE| 931 BlA HOHIALD ApJoyinos © ut Asepunaog € d'd
st feany ypdiow a4 1¥ ¢ ON UYItd WO ‘a01jeys 15ed
proY UANGLO}IO-I]ISEIMIN a2y wiof 0
5109591 Aauia] Aq YInos uayj ue SIH puk dopiel
JO 15013 9y} BuojL JseI ey siodig Bla Ap2ISEd
-ymos ‘suer F0UEYS Kq A0IS9M-{IN0S uayl
oI $32IES JO 1SIM splek pgi oqe 01 Liepunoq
a1y Juimofjej uonaallp Apaisea ue Ul Kivpunofi
jounsi eIy uedio 9N Ju 1 "ON ured weld (b id’d p01§uYS ISLH;
< rSI (DAY PAvAL PSUD

‘Llppunog YsuEd |[Puptog

ay} 1 g "ON itd urof 0} uoIPANP Al3ISES UL ug .

aoyuimg JO IInos prol 1[BYEN [-00YULME U] WO g tdta weyded

‘fiepunoq

je) 1@ €5 'ON WBd ujof o} Amspunog 1LISIQ

jeiny . sfepuan ol 1Som-HOU  SUISSOND  ARM

-qies Jydi] 1 DOOM Byl ul [ ON YI¥gd WOl g

-fazpunoq PISIQ (e ajepuslD v

7 oM yid utof 01 POOM jueydlaCl yInoayl 1sam

Xied uByna( 1€ proy Nopmusg-JUeyag Wol S ded hweydrQg

U] AIBWAID)

e [ 'oN "W'd uiof 01 Fvi) SOYUIMS Aq 159Mm

-yiou aue A0YUIME 1Mo 18 9 "ON Wied wedd |TLl ‘4 ‘weyored
-paojpelg Jo Isea-yuou

peoy ydimquieg-proipeli ay] urof 03 uONOAIP

KLpmsem-piou © Ul sgupjing  Wieg )0 152

yuepony ¥ proy Io¥ong-LIYUepoD Y} wold Tog dd Cplogpeig
LRSI fen pofiag

‘drd el

‘wopduosad ed

212V 9y Ul umap pie aanpasosd
SU7 (114 SOUB[IORDR UT PIEaYy 34 {1 DPEW 218 YA suonvaiqo Aue pue

It 161 YIUWHEIAC] I.r@—%lwn_{ON— anNy sandaldyg ,

- T-]PZEH £Q UODdAIp Ajoyiiou ‘bsg ‘poom . “D<

S u@EdigaoN,  wiol 01 uon

- woxy yed ® Jo uosnpour ayJ,

CHIA PRUsSING  Jo | yanos

Pasiiioapk 2q |jIm SHONTIYIPOT 943}
1 I { jzacidde s ampuuwo)-gqng ot
w:w:wmwcn“w_ pug ‘mejaq Jnoe 19s syjediooy 2y jo .%E. tﬁvrw_m %ﬂ w%_mﬁo%..m
] sdde 01 papuaiwosss AjSuipiooor ol 93 IWWCD-qNS .os.“. )

. .moo.:_

m_“%._wm: ﬂow%-w _Mum.m_mmm;hn; 20uapIA2 9y uodn paseq ose %mwﬁra wmw Mw%.“

A LA A s g o N Mg

UOISN|DUE 21} JOJ UOHRIOOSSY 519 Gore tasoscot
; o oy jquey 9y Aq spow

JO JoqUIU oSe] oY) PaiopISU0d A[njeses sey ._nﬂ_u.ﬂumuzm wﬂmmw%owmﬂ_w_ﬁ

08pugt uoldiq jo iseo-iIou [ .
Ampunoq JaINSICL wugy
Weyxak 94l 1 9] "ON YIBd
u1of 01 HONLANP Al401SoM B Ul
ASNOK] O|0H 1V I2LISICE ULQI[) &
weyxa oY) "l i "ON Yied ouEnd
wodp yed v oo uoisnou Ky, Bolm_ou_.h_wmmw
H

‘IIHE viddiqmeN e pro
WH 01 ynos uay :o_mvo._w__u
A}191580 UR Ul WINg 2y JoyuLq
qinos oy Juoje wing uordiq
ISIAL OU1 SSOUDW SPITALINOS
SNOH O] I8 19151 ULqIN) d
Mﬁ_,a: ayl ul 7 'oN yied “farrond

olj yjed © Jo uoisnisu] ayj, ac.m_u,w..mwmmf
ISINYOZEH JO Yliou peod
spuui oyl ul 03 3510y

11 'd'd

‘1o11en)
MO WeYxaH

puE 1sR2 ue W pPRs que
woup yud v Jo uojsnpdul oy

" . ‘PIPNYS
quie Jo yuou pioj oy je
peos oFenio) s jsuurr-adpug

-muepd a3 ydnoayy uoiioos
UI2)SOM-INOS B Ul ourn‘_:__w
98po1 opisAuung  Jo  1som
-yiou spauk 071 noqe prod
{2deyD Aopym-wexay oy ..Ww._w_w._.m
MO Wweyxap]
“juug SERM IE L] O
yied urof 01 qoon Svei) ﬂ
H9M 51400 21 Tuimopo]

pEOI ofpug pRYsANg syl

~ woy ysud e jo uosnpur sy, L . i
! . B[S
"uolEpUILL e o
nep 033 uoneuasaidoy "ON Yied

L

LS6] “UHUWIOI( HIQ|—SAYOY ANV saoamg T¢I




Sl i b

B T ]

“ogpiigl
saysy JO 1sed jou peol 29plLig SAYSy-21e8pea]
ay) ol 0] spugwWeysy pue IS uoun) ‘9sNoH
ayen) Aq uonoanp A[Ioynos e ut 9SNOF] 21en) Jesu

7 "ON Yyied pue £ "ON Wied 30 uonoun( ay) wold | LT d'd VNIV 1M

"gg "ON yied utol
01 s3e1D) Y3Nno[Aa|uaaLD JO 150M UV 1SN pue
2[EpUR|[y 0} UOWILIO] SPUTT JO Aiepunoq 2yl 0}
uinglofjAe], Aq peol uul] sjua(-opisfoute ayl
SS0J0E UONJALP AIDISE-YINOS ¥ Ul U3V 1ISOM
IoATY 19AO 93PLIqI00) 2yl 1B
‘9SNOF] J9YJaN Ledu § ON Witd utof 01 pPYs
samnpddy A uonAMIp A1018Ea-Yy1I0U puR A[IISLI
ur u[ Uy ISOA\ pue sjepuajy 0} uowwiopn
spue] jo Aiepunoq 9yl uo 7g ‘ON

11 "ON Uitd Woid |9T "d'd VALY 1M

yred wold | 67 'd'd YAV ISM

‘IT 'ONL WiBd P

ue ud||y ISOA PUB 9JEpud|ly Ol

“ysted yey) jo ¢z *oN Yieg Sumurof A1
.:%_._m._ ucu:< ISIM 9T 01 J0O Aofjey .w% n.,mm
; Qzﬁem SSOIDE UO110211p A[403SEa-1LI0U B Ul A1e
punog Ajuno) puepiequing ay) uo S[1IS on|g Worg

L edd
U[1y 159
Pue ajepua|y
03 uowwoy) spuey
. I£'dd
U]y 1S90
pue a[epuaj|y
0} uowwoy) spuwy

i ‘Klepunog Kjuno uR[Ioquu
i n
o_% uo 21§ onig 01 uopoonp b._uﬁnmuo%.:h:om e Fw
4sno|D £Aqqeas 1eau prol £junoo aY3 JO pus a3 WOy
SSOID Mepyor|s 1B A1E
%Mg_wwu.a ﬂ\ﬂ Omﬂ,.uo pue [jIH siartue) ,_.Wm: I€ .ohﬂm_mm
2 e a3 Aq uopoalip Apsyino
._.h_w%w.:s_u::oa YSLIR pRyNIYM pue mw_:q_. dmﬁﬂw w:_“
PEOL $5010 Juo-03pLg ansmog Yy} worg

PN O §

UII[V 1594

Pue sjepualy
0} uownuo) spuey

oy 'd’d

uiof 03 uonoalp Ay

IIIH Ap21en Jo jsea-yinos 7 oN yreg

6C 'd'd

uoIWo)) Spuk Jo Alepunoq ay) o} Feaqq Fuo a)

pue sire) adoyopuls ‘urng uoydig 4q

Alaejsea  pue AL
ue up °8pLg uo}

uonap
oLj1i0u ‘Kl19)5B2-14110U ‘A1121889

Al 1S9M

puw oRpually
0} uowwio)) spue]

dig jo ypou £ "ON yied twold

‘O "ON
yied utof 01 uondup A3osed-ypnos B Ul
A1epunoq ysueg A[EPU||Y 21 1B 76 "ON Yied wolg

‘ysied 1By} Ul 06 "ON Yitd pur Aiepunoq
ysieg 9JEpud|[y oy} 01 uonsalip Kj191s9m-1 110U
pue A1ojsea-yiou ‘ApayLou v ul uat) pug ppod
01 saiuenb plo 9yl £q uondUIp Aja1sam-yriou
B Ul “youIn) ssorD oyeduloys Jo Isam-yliou
juiod & 3e ‘SpEaYuR|[Y JO 1583 prot Aunod oy} Wotg

ysued eyl
1o ¢g "ON yied guiuiofl uonejue|d PEaypPoOM ]0
1oU109 1SEA-Y1I0U, oY) JB A1epunoq ystivd (payor)
-a(]) dlepu9jly 9yl 03 uoldallp A{19)5u9-1IN08
v u 98pug adoylafg Je prol AUnod 9y} Wolq

¢] ‘ON Yied utof 01 ZZ 'ON E,«.L SSOJIDE UOIIDAIP
Ap2som-nos e ul oepudlly 95 ON Yitd wio..g
10d pig

j& prot Ajunod 9y} utol o) uing pudlsIM $50101
uonoanp ApLises ue ut ‘[ "ON Yitd uo yuou
Jeying Jutod € wouay uay) 11 "ON Witd o1 uonodUp
AlioisEa ue Ul ysued Jeyl ul z8 'ON Y pue
doJ, ppod 1e Aiepunoq ysiied 9Epwally ) wolg

UV 159M 8 "ON YiBd utol 0} JI1H £end
pue S813y 9IPPIA ‘SSON suosyor[ Aq u0ndAUP
Apaojsam-1piou e ul [|IH 2T IE 91 ‘ON Yied Wwolg

sgerD) yIna|ohajudaln Jo Jsom
peoa £junod ayj 0} uondAIIp A1191582-4IN0S ¥ Ul LI¢
-punoq ysued uajy 152 943 U0 5T ‘ON led woig

6t ‘d'd

UV 1S9M

pue afepud||V
0} uowwo) spue]

ge 'd'd

‘U[|V 1SM

pue ajepud||y
01 uowwo) spue]

Le d'd

‘U Y I1SIM

put ajEpud[|y
0} uowwo) spue|

9¢ ‘d’d

‘UdY IS9M

—JC—w U—ﬂ—.vr—u:(
01 uowwo)) spueg

st 'd'd
U1V IS9M
pue ajepud|y
0} uowo)) spuey
pE 'd'd
‘usjly ISAM
pue ajepually
0] UOWLLO)) SPUL]
€€ 'd'd

‘ud||V ISAM
pure a|epud|ly
0} uowwo) spue]

-uonduosag

1 X4

'ON Yied

‘[G61 “MAEWADA( HIQ[—SAVOY ANV sIoandg

. { MOS v ur usyy} |1 [0g@
) ‘ 3880 T "ON yieg ssoud> 03 uonoenp \m“mmmr%;ﬂa%

e ul ._o“:m:O‘umuB NYSWEYXOH ¢ "ON Yieg wWouyq
- Alepunoq ysueg weysuiaQ ay) avau
b “5 d ulol oy jjope Yiouq4ppg 4Aq uonoanp
Ho1sea-yanos © up Je)y sy je | "ON Yied woug |-
] ‘Alepunoq ysi
, mﬂmmw uﬁ:ﬂm mevﬂ...._:i urof 0} :o:w@.:_uga_.momwm
! 2-YIN0s ~ ‘Aproyinos ‘4
‘A[H235aM-IN0S © ur oF el e
. 2 Ul 98pLIqIo) ¢ "oN yeg w i
" :o_::un_ pPoomspjouur jo jses .oZ.u_.:_M_ Ew.“nm
119211p £gay1i0u B Ug A91eIS 7 'ON yeg E.o.m_...— =
DLSI ey Ul € CoON Y
Mw.uﬂummﬁwoa PUISIg EE..D; E_.E__WIM..__.H:M% w_%m
-o011 159M pue AL13ISEa-4IN0S ‘A1191S0M-UIN0
B Ul yieg {Inog uolsfiy. jo ynos g .a_uZuEsmﬁE:M.wm e
Gy duwes oyy 0 Uon221p Aj19)1589-4)10U
‘ I t._.:“_sE YOLIGAET JO JSEI 6 "ON Ujeg wou |-+
RoT 49 ‘uoroanp Aposngiine T Sy PANS
~ uonoan am-yuou v our g
H._—W._-wm_x_w:_.%._u:.:_mu 1S3M pue a|ppiy F_w:.m_ Eﬂﬂ
H 0} uowwo) spuey jo Krepunogq ayp E.Em
MM% ﬁnu_uwuo,_w JO Jsam-1Inos ¢ oN yreg %_M;ﬁow“
YInos £[121sea-yInos pue Ajroy)
I Uy poog nyq ugpn ysnoa . g oo
1 Aemjre
g w..hmww_“%:__ummrﬂ_wﬁmé_._ Y7 I2A0 =o:&..:%aﬂﬂw“ﬂ
) ! ul Aiepunog ysueg ySnoiqman 2
PEOL uleld meysusainy-pporyg Eomuoxzwm_w hrwwmm
e
mwm_u:o:< O} uowwoy spuey jo E.E___UM:MM\MV WMm
; ﬂwﬁ%,xtuzm?fso,‘, LT o Forquig hozﬁuh
yinos ._w_.w._ﬂ.ﬂm%m_eo_ﬂwnu:w_ﬂ__m_:um-_u:ocurim 241 woury
7 2 ~yrou ¢ ‘o e
3 Mwﬂoﬂww._.o_._m,%‘_mm:m_“qﬁﬂu m:m 9 "ON cummeMM_ Moa__um%%hﬂ
; 2 ALOYMOU B ur [jog Somo
JO I1sea-yinos peou ojed MOT-[19 mma_o_qn_o:mw Mmmm

‘Ud|| Y 1S9M
pue depud||y
0} uowwoy)y spuey

9 d’d ‘apmym

6 "d’d ‘uoisu
8 “d"d oISy

L 'd’A ‘uoyspig

81 ‘d’d ‘usprep
L Ldd
payaelag

pue iayrend)

IS9M dnysuwreyxagy

94
payorjaq
pue 1end)
ISAM TISWRYXOH
. Ssdd
payoeiag
pue Joy1end)
IS9M 2arysureyxapy
pdd
Payoelaq
pue aanend)
ISoM axyswreyxopy

“uonduosagg -
ON Yieq

LS61 NMMNIOAQ HIGI—SAVOY anv saparug (4472

Page 135




Draft Map (Modified)

A ALLENDALE OOMMON (Det. M
Lamds commeon do the Paruahes
ALLENDALE and WEST ALLI

b ALLENDALE COMMON (Dei. No.d
Lands common t6 the
ALLENDALE ei WEST ALL

Page 136



Provisional Map

Hailey F Moar

Page 137



Original Definitive Map

=B

<
i
i

" S \, Ao T\
'“-W N2 il } f }%@i\ s
O e e ARVLT L8 \ RSN SCEAP. 2
Sl NS

Ya

e 7

Page 138



Order Decision . m”m " N
Inquiry opened on 6 April 2004 | 2TheSamse. - i

- byAlan Beckeft BA,MSc, MIPROW

mmrwmbyﬁemdsuﬁefor
-- Environment, Food and Rural Affairs :

Order Ref. FPS/R2900/7/30

" "o This Order is made under Section 53(2) (b) of the Wildlife and Countrys:de Act 1981 and is

known as the Northumberland County Coungil (Publlc Rights of Way) Modification Order

(No 10) 2003.
* Northumberland County Oouncﬂmbm:ttedthe Qrderfor confirmation to the Secreta:yof
o The Order-is—dated-12- May-2003;-and-there" were -seven- objecuons—omstandmg—at tbe~ ------
: commencement of the inquiry. "
- TheOrderproposeswmodlfytheDeﬁnmveMapmdSmtenmforthembyupgadmg .
FootpathNozﬁ PmshofWestAllen,toBywayOpmtoAlITmﬁc o SRN

Summary of Derjsmn. ’I‘he Order is not conﬁrmed.

Procedural Mam

1 Theeﬂ‘ectoftheorda :t‘conﬁxmedwnhoutmodzﬁcauon,wouldhetomodlﬁrtho- -
Definitive Map and Statement for the area by upgrading to Byway Open to All Traffic
(“BGAT”)PubthootpﬁNo 26 West Allen which nans ﬁ'omBlakelawCross(pmn:Am’,
the Order plan) in a generally northerly direction to the 18039 road at Kmsleywell Bank .
(pomtB),anovaﬂldlstanceofapprommatelyZG%mm

2. Ihavebeenappomtedto detmnetheOrdermaocordancethhPamgmph 10(1) of
Schedzﬂe 15 to the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (“the 1981 Act”).

3. Iheldapubhclocalmqmrymtothe&deronﬁxesdayﬁApn!andWednesday?Apm I
,camedoutanunaccompamedmspectxonofthengbtofwayonMondaySApm The .
pMestotheOrderddnotrequuemetocanyMaﬁuﬂhcrmompamedmspecﬂm

4, At&emquuytheownmofthehndaﬁ‘eﬂedbythemﬂerwemrepresanedbym
Five of the seven objections mmmm withdrawn when the inquiry opened.

5. Northumberiand County Council had made the Order following a direction from the
Secretary of State under paragraph 4(2) of Schedule 14 to the 1981 Act. . The County
Council, as order making authority, remained neutral at the inquiry and the case for the
Order was made by the applicant, Mr A D Kind.

6. At the inquiry, rtwasconﬁrmedonbehalfoftheCoumyCouncﬂthataﬂstamtory _
procedures had been complied with.

The main issues

7. The requirements of Section 53 (3) (c) (i) namely, the discovery of evidence which when
taken with all other relevant evidence available shows that a highway shown in the map-and

Page 139



*

ORDER DECISION: FPS/R2900/7/30

statement as a highway of a particular descnpnon (namely Footpath No. 26 West Allen)
ocught to be there shown asa hxghway of a different desmptmn (namely as a BOAT).

Slla m]u._ P e e e : _—

- 8.

Mthd SubmzttedﬂlattheOrdermWewas partofamedtaevalhlgh-leveiroadbetwm ,
Corbridge, Alston and Penrith, which passed a settlement called Corby Gates Farm located

. approximately 2.8Km south-west of the Order route. Corby Gates Farm was recorded in -
- 1314 as a farmstead by the name of Corbriggate. Mr Kind called this route the Corbrigg

Gate, and located his mediaeval road in this area by suggesting that the fourteenth century
farm name was taken fiom its proximity to the road to Corbridge. In Mr Kind’s
submission, the most direct route from Corby Gates Farm to the north-cast in the direction
of Corbridge was over Mohope Moor along the Order route via Blakelaw Cross. It was Mt
Kmdscasethatsucharomehadfaliemntod:msewzththeadve:nofotherromesonm-
smtablegmdlentsandtemmsachastheroadvaaLonng

_ ____‘M_O

Insupportofh:scaseMKmddrewonanumberofauthonnm, namelyCanmdmmﬁ'
.. New Towns v Gallagher [2002) EWHC 2668; Eyre v New Forest Highways Board 56 JP
- 517; Trafford v St. Faiths RDC (1910) IP 297 and Vyner v W‘zrra!RDC{lQOQ]JPZOZ -
.Whaeappmpmte,lhavemaderefamewtheeem

L“dmmmsmdpmmswasamgmﬁcamiocalmdusuymtheNonhumbwlmd—- -
Cumberland border areas for many centuries. ‘The transportation of ore from mine to smelt

. mills required the organisation of not only labour and capital but a network of suitable roads
. and trackways on which the raw material and refined product could be transported. I heard

1L

that the development of the lead trade in the eighteenth century was one of the principal
dnwngfowesbehmdthedevelopmentofﬂwlocalmadnetworkmmdmhope Ihaveno

reason to question that view.
The County maps of Nonhumberland by Kitchin (1750-1785) Horsley {1753) and

'Axmstrong(l769)donotshowthe0rderroute,bmdoshowtheLong Cross - Ninebanks

road which is now the U8039, to which the Order route connects at Knights Clengh Head
{point B). Similarly, the Hodgkinson and Donald (17’?0-‘7 1) map of Cumbesland shows the -
roadv:aLongCrossbutnottheOrdqm _

. 'An estate map drawn in 1757 to showﬂwboundaneaoftheWhttﬁeldestatemedbyﬂle

Greenwich Hospital annotates the Long Cross route as the “road from Alston to Hexham™.
This plan was drawn to show the boundaries and features within the Whitfield estate. As
the Order route ran over the neighbouring Hexham estate, the cartographer would not

- necessarily have been concerned with roads or tracks outside the Whitfield boundary.

- However, the Alston - Hexham road vis Long Cross is shown as crossing the estate

boundaryathghtsCleuthead At this point there is no indication of a route running to .

. the south over Mohope. From the County maps and from estate plans of the Greeawich.

Hosprtalltxsclearthattheon!yacknowledgedroadthatledbetweenAlstonandHexham
untﬂtheconﬂmctnonofﬁe&ston'l‘mnpnkem 1778wastheroutemLongCrossand

* Knight's Cleugh Head.

13.

The Alston Turnpike Act of 1778 provided forthecons&ucuonofanewsewonofmad
between Alston and Hexham bypassing the Long Cross route. The Turnpike was promoted
by the local lead mining and carrying interests as a means of improving the transportation of
the lead ore from mine to smelt mill. The enabling Act provided for the old road to cease to

2
Page 140



ORDER DECISION: FPS/R2900/7/30

14,

 be maintained at the expense of the parish, althoughtheActdzdnotenablétofhemutetobé

extinguished. The Long Cross route therefore remained as a public road. - The objectors

submitted that the bulk of the important lead trade traffic would have transferred to the now

turnpike, leading to a reduction in traffic on the old Alston road vis Long Cross. If the
traffic along the oid road fell, it is therefore probable that any traffic using the claimed route.

over Mohope as a through route, if the alleged route existed, would sumiarly have

.dmndled.

TheHexhamshueandAllendaleInclomAstofl?QZ gavethe commlssmnmwhodrew
up the award in 1799 extensive powers to award and set out roads and other highways and
to stop up existing roads and highways over the moors and waste affected by the award.
Under the Act, those parcels of land whick were deemed to be suitable for improvement
were to be enclosed, with the remainder of the moors and waste ground being stinted

amongst the commoners, Par:oftheoldAlstonroadbypassedbytbel??Stmnpikemf

awardedasapubhcroadﬁ*om?owmleGatetonghtsClouthead ‘

15.

- 16.

17.

'I'heOrderrom:snctshownonthemclomawardplan,nons:tmentmnedmthzaward.

Under the terms of the enabling Act, all former roads and ways not set out and appointed .
through the lands which were to be divided and allotted were to become part of those lands,

and that use of such former ways was to be unlawfiul. A number of roads through other

stinted pastures in the area covered by the Awerd were awarded and in the objector’s view

as the Order route was not awarded ary such route that would have existed was stopped up - 3

under the terms of the enabling Act. Mr Kind was of the view that as the land crossed by

theOrdamMewasnotdmdedmdalloﬁeitbeActsndtheAwardhadm:mpwtupon. 

anypr&mmngmynmmngmtheshntedpasm
The enclosure of individual parts of the moormdtheawardofmoseaﬂotmem.stommed

individuals cleasly involves the division of the land, and its physical separation from other |

parts of the moor by fences. I consider that these are the parts of the moor which are
referred to in the enabling Act as the land to be “divided and allotted”.  This is supported to
some extent by the terms of section 66 of the Act which grants to the owners of the
allotments the right to dig for peat, slate and other materials on the stinted, unenclosed (and
therefore unaliotted) land. To my mind, the allocation to the commoners of the right to stint
angennumba'ofammalsontheunenclosedpanofﬂwmoordoesnotmvolvemysuch
physical division. There would therefore have been no impact upon any pre-existing way
over the stinted pasture, with only pre-existing ways through the divided and atlotted lands
being extinguished. Consequently, IﬁndMKmd’sargumentonthemtapretanonofthe
Aatobethemorep«suaswe.

HOWBVH there:smmd:cahonofaﬂ:roughmuteoverMohopeMoorsbnmontheAwaxﬂ
plan,andtheAlstouRoadmswarded“tothesﬁntedpasmm and. not “into the stinted

~—pastre”™ s othier rouds were: ~Unlike the Coalcleugh Road which extended over the stinted

18.

pastures and was privately maintained by the lead mining companies, the Commissioners
did not extend the Alston Road into the stinted pasture to cross Mohope; in all probability
because there was no recognised route over the stinted pasture at the time. From the
available documentary evidence which pre-dates the 1799 award the only acknowledged
meoverthemoorsmsthatmlmg&ou

Fryer's map of Northumberland of 1820 shows the extent of the land around Mohope that
had been brought into cultivation foilomng the Inclosure Award of 1799, 1t also ahom the

3
Page 141



oo ORDER DECISION: FPS/R2900/7/30

- line of the 1778 turnpike and the continued existence and importance of the route over the
" moors by Long Cross. Blakelaw Cross is shown on the county boundary but there is no
__.__ indication of a route running over Mohope Moor to it from the Long Cross road, _

19 The Alston Moor Inclosure award of 1820 set out a public carriage road from the Weardale

- Turnpike at Nenthead to the County boundary near Blakelaw Cross. - It was Mr Kind’s case -
that the Commissioners would not have awarded a public road, with the burden of

" maintenance and repair falling to the Alston parishioners, if there was no onward access -
- beyond the County boundary. The objector saggested that the road was likely to have beea
laid cut as a means of accessing the local quarries. Neither party to the inguiry provided a
full copy of the award, orthemabhngActandIamthereforeunabletommmemM draw
any_cpnclus:on upon the ability of the commissioners to award this road, the purpose fcr
. which it was awarded or the réasoning behind the Comuiiissioner’s award. — -

20 Greenwood’s map of Northumberiand of 1827 shows a route crossing the ooumyboundary

T T ——gtapoint marked Blakelaw Cross.—Mr Kind: considered this to be evidence of the existence..___
o - of the dmmedmute,ahhoughtheobjectorswewwasthat&'eenwoodsmapwas

. . melmblemthnohceab!eandobmonsmmmmﬂedthhmm :

21. Greenwood depicts the 1823 route of the Alston tumpike where it had been diverted from -
o _the 1778 alignment between Whitfield and Alston The road network depicted in the
o wmnﬂy-omeghtsCImghandKelrsleyweﬂBmklsmmtemdequateswnhthe'
- depiction on modern Ordnance Survey mapping and is comparable with Fryer’s 1820 map.
'IheroadleadmgtoMohopeHead(MobHeadonGreenwoodsmap Upper Mohope on
Fryer’s map) is alse an accurate representation. However, Greenwood places Blakelaw

: &osstothemnh—watofMohopeHeaﬂwhenumqunesleaﬂytothewﬂ-Mmd
Greenwood fails to mark Long Cross as a feature. A road shown leading out of the route to
‘Blakelaw Cross and crossing the county boundary further to the north which Mr Kind
clmmedtobethel.ongCmssmmelsnotshmonanymapprodwedbeforcora&er

‘Greenwood’s.

22, Whentherou&shombyGreenwoodasmngﬂwcountybmmdaryattbepoﬁmuked -
Blakelaw Cross is compared to other roads and features in the immediate area on Fryer's
mapandonmodmOr@anceSurveymappmg,theromeshown:sc!earlytheLongCross.
route depicted by previous cartographers. The inaccurate positioning of Blakelaw Cross

. . and the marking of an unidentifiable route to the north appear to be clear errors on
. Greenwood’s part. In the light of these errors from an otherwise reputable cartographer, I
donmauachmuchweightonﬂmnmpasewdenceofthemstmceoftheclmmedroadovet

 the moor.

23. Aspmoftheiniﬁaloonmhaﬁonontheappﬁcation,theagentfortheomersofthem
- submitted a copy of the plan attached to the Allendale Tithe Award of 1847, No'
. apportionment detail was provided. The plan shows the extent of the enclosures awarded in
.. —.1799 with the stinted pasture marked. There is nomd:cahonofah‘nckontheahgnmentof
Ordammenmngthroughthesnntedpasuneonﬂxemhemap

24. However, running along the Allendale side of the parish boundary is a double peck line
track that crosses the County boundary near Hard Rigg. This track is annotated “Som
Alston”. Mr Kind suggested that this was the Long Cross route. I disagree. The tithe map
is of land within Allendale, and from Knights Cleugh Head the Alston road via Long Cross

4
Page 142



13

ORDER DECISION: FPS/R2900/7/30

quns in the neighbouring parish. The route shown mthe Tithe map whateverrt purports to
__be, is not the Alston road.-

%

'} An estate. plan of the Whitfield Manor, of 1856_shows the line of the Long Cross road '
' annotated “Old road from Alston to Allendale”. No route leading overMohope;sshownat_
Knight’s Cleugh Head, aithough the 1799 Inclosure Award road at Kmsleywell Bank is -

shown annotated “From Mohope”.

26 Ordnance Sm'veymappmg from the m:d-mneteentheennnyshowsﬂtemrouw as a
double peck line feature annotated “Carriers Way”, which in the Book of Reference is
described by Ordnance Survey as a “cart road”. A feature has clearly been observed by the
surveyor, and whilst the maps are evidence of the physical existence of the route at the time
of the survey the instructions to surveyors make quite clear that rights of way are not within
Ordeance Survey’s remit and that surveyors are not required to enquire into them. No

- evidence was presented to assist with the determination as to why Ordnance Survey’

- considered-this-feature to -be-a cart- road;-or-from whom suthority. for th&desmpuonhad
been sought.

27. The evidence from the Whitfield estate papers suggeststbatthetranspoﬂaﬁonofgoods :

through the West Allen valley, particularly the transportation of lead ore was by packhorse

as opposed to horse and cart due to the founderous nature of the ground and the poor state:
- -— of repair of those roads and tracks in existence...The available evidence suggests that cart -
traffic in the area, particularly for the lead ore trade, would only have utilised formalised

roads following the turnpiking of the Alston Road in 1779 or further improvements made

by Macadam in 1823. On the evidence before me it does not seem probable that the feature

running over Mohope recorded as & cart road by Ordnance Survey was used as such. -

28. The Finance Act 1910 information is of little assistance as the land through which the Order.
route passed was part of a parcel some 18,000 acres in extent. A reduction of duty of £450
was claimed due to the existence of public rights of way over the land, but over such a large
area no conclusion can be drawn as to whether the Order route was one for which a

reduction was claimed. I'was not provided with & copy of the Finance Act working plan.

29. Mrﬁndmbmﬂedthuthe&dermmemayhavehadahmﬂsurfacewhmhm,

progressively sunken into the ground over time. Mr Kind claimed that photographic images

. captured by satellite showed a physical feature that couid not have been created solely by

pedesnimuse.‘WhﬂaIaweptmatadeﬁnablemembeseenmthesephomgmpﬁ,m
evidence from on-site investigations was submitted to substantiate the assertion regarding a
sunken surface. Consequently,ldonotattachmgmﬁcantwe:ghtwthephotogmphw
evidence.

’Concbmomontﬁeewdma

30. Mr Kind contended that the claxmed route over Mohope forms part of a long d:stance
- - mediseval trade route linking Corbridge-and Penrith via Alston and Corby.-Gates Farm.
Whilst I acknowledge that reference is made to a property called Corbriggate in the county

histories submitted, and whilst it is more likely than not that this property equates with the .

modern Corby Gates Farm, such references do not indicate either the existence of & trade
route or the direction any such route may have taken, Whilst the concept of such a trade
route is plausible, there is no evidence to suggest that the Order route formed part of it.
Indeed, there is very little evidence of the existence of any route over Mohope Moor which

5
Page 143



ORDER DECISION: FPS/R2900/7/30

o wouldequatew:ththeOrderroutepnortothatrecordedmthe(}rdnanoeSuwey 1* edition
oot OmAp

-31: 51 acoeptthe submzsslonthatthe Allendale and Hexhamshire Enclosure Act would have had
) noeﬁ'ectuponarwtenummgovm'thestmtedpastur&sofMohopeMoor However, there
. is no evidence of the existence of a route over Mohope in 1799 that would have been

~ affected by the Act and the award, That section of the Alston road awarded did not lead
into the stinted pasture on Mohope and there is no evidence within the award or plan that -
suggests the existence of a continuation route over the open moor at that date. It is clear
thattbe awarded road did not form a cul-de-sac at Knight’s Cleugh Head as the Alston road

- contimred westward to Long Cross. The award of the Alston Road was for the retention of
an already existing public right, which performed the dual function of aflowing stint holders
access to the stinted pasture as well as retaining the long-established public through route to

Alston. The available evidence alwests that there Wwas 1o pubhc route over Mohope forthe ~ -

Commms:omtostopup

.32 MerdwbmxttedtbattheroadsetombytheAlstonInclomAwardweuldhmwved’
- no purpose without an onward contiruation at the same status over Mchope, and cited Eyre

v New Forest Highways Board in support. The presumption ageinst a cul-de-sac such agis -

found at the southern end of the Order route is a presumption that can be added into the

- balance when weighing all the available evidence. In my view, the evidence in favour of
memsmofman-purposemghwaymMohopenssomeagrethﬂﬁlepremmpuon'-
doesnotweughheavﬂymthebalanee

33. ththemepuonofommnoevaeymappmg,ﬁlethroughmmeudedforbyMr
Kind ‘is not shown on any of the submitted maps, whether produced by commercial
carwgmphes,mmlmonmmatemamgemeMWtheleadmmngmdushy,orthmugh
statutory process. I do not consider that the “cartographic convention” of not marking

~ unmade roads over heaths and commons advanced in Gallagher is applicable in this case, as
theremnowppomngewdemeﬁomanyothawMempommusmceforﬂmemmnoeof
an all-purpose highway over the moor,

34. Mr Kind's theory as to the existence of a long-distance trade route as described in his paper

' “Tracing the Corbrigg Gate: The mediaeval road from Corbridge to Penritl” is plavsible

" but the documentary evidence submitted in this case does not support the contention that the

. Order route was an all-purpose highway, or that it formed part of the alleged mediaeval

35. Under Section 53 (3) (c) (ii) of the 1981 Act the evidence offered in support mmst

. demonstrate, on the balance of probablhhes, the existence of the higher rights claimed. I
‘conclude the evidence before fo me is insufficient to show the exlstenee of pubhc

camagemyngmomthe Ordermm e A

36 A number of the objectmns outstandmg at the conunencement of the mqmry related to the
potential impact a Byway Open to All Traffic would have upoa the environment of the
moot, which forms part of the Allendaie Moor Site of Special Scientific Interest (“SSSI”)
and Whitfield Moor, Pienmeller and Asholmes Common SSSI. At the inquiry, 70 letters
supporting the objection to the order on environmental grounds were submitted. As

6
Page 144



-

ORDER DECISION: FPS/R2900/7/30

-

- environmental concerns are not within my remit I have not taken these representanons mto
account when reaching my dec:su:m. : . :

L Ovem!ltondlmon S

37. Havmgregardtotbeseandaﬂothermattersmsedatthemqmyandmthewmen
- representations Iooncludethatthe()rder should notbeconﬁrmed. o

Formal Decuiou
38. Tlawe‘Order is not confirmed.

7
Page 145



. ORDER DECISION: FPS/R2900/7/30

| APPEARANCES
' _' For Northnmberland Connty Conncﬂ
- Mrs B'ﬁmley_ — Assistant Solicitor, Norumberland County Couscil, County Hiall,
- L ~ Morpeth, NE61 2BF |
- Im Snl;por't of the Order: : :
 MrADKind 45 The Fairway, Gosforth, Newcastle upor Tyne, NE3 SAQ
Mrs S Rogers, ?Xﬁnsh Horse Society, West Tumpike, Ganton, Alawick, NEG6 |
For the Objectou R T e e
MrD Warmer, " of Counsel, instructed by Oglethorpe, Snmnaemibmnd,,'
~Solicitors; 16 CasﬂePa.rk, Lancastm‘ LAY IYG
.  who called '
Mrs E Sobe]l. 'I‘urfl-louse, Steel, Hexhamshire NE47 OHP
o Party e e
MrJ Lindsey, Redheugh Cotiage, Mohope, NE47 8DH
@
8

Page 146



« = ORDER DECISION: FPS/R2900/7/30

INQUIRY DOCUMENTS

1. Attendance list 6 April 2004,

i

L N AT

Attendance list 7 April 2004,

Letter from Mr K Lord.

Certificate of completxon of procedural reqmrements
Satellite photographs of Mohope Moor.

Letter from Ms Atkins & Ms Moris.

Letter from Ms Elfiott and Mr Wenham.

Standard letter completed by 68 individuals.

Appendices 1o the statement of evidence of Mrs Sobell
10. Copy extract from Hodginson & Donald’s map of Cumberland 1770,
ll Copy extract from A History ofNorth.tmberland vohune4

12. Bundle of evidence submitted by Mr Kind.

9
Page 147



v,
e
s, W

&
-n'l’""
* Wi,

L

o

G

il ot

9T, it

T, BN FYL

¥
aiTte %

et I
LI
AT,

ot 1 VFe, 0T,

= ¥, T b
4Ty
7y
My, oTuy

pral L A
STy, aefTey T,
MM ‘l“"-

~‘7‘ . O T i Py ' (CLE ¢ T,

-

(U . _ S ¥,
- o

e, Y, TR ¥

¥,

T
o, T,
¥, e
as¥Tey

e . Y " 3
e s R S}
e coi¥s, : -ty wfTy,

LU
extls, P

s

4
o, e
Ty

NorthumserlaNd | Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981
COUNTY COUNCIL Public Rights of Way

Depa : '
Sounty Hal Morpeth Norhumberisnd —¥ V.. Claimed upgrading to Byway Open to AN Traffic

Parish{es)

Copyright.

prodvcon ininges Crown Copyeghtand may Tyneddle West Alen

nlanbeds 1 e orar, | NYAETSE. | Mech 1999
S e vkt T Tl i A1 | e O 8 v

1:15,000

N
RNE ey ST

-

Page 148



AN

T

I @9@% The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

by Rory Cridland LLB (Hons), Solicitor
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Decision date: 19 December 2018 '

Appeal Ref: FPS/P2935/14A/5

This appeal is made by Mr Alan Kind (“the Appellant”) under section 53(5) and’
Paragraph 4 (1) of Schedule 14 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (“the Act”)
against the decision of Northumberland County Council (“the Council”) not to make an
Order under section 53(2) of the Act.

The application is dated 22 November 2016 and was refused by the Council by letter
dated 16 November 2017.

The Appellant claims that the definitive map and statement of public rights of way
should be modified by upgrading to a restricted byway Footpath No 26, West Allen from
the Cumbria County boundary at Blacklaw Cross to where it joins Byway Open to all
Traffic No 37 at Kiersieywell Bank,

Summary of decision: The appeal is dismissed.

Preliminary Matters

1.
2.

This appeal has been determined on the basis of the papers submitted.

A Definitive Map Modification Order dated 12 May 2003 and known as the
Northumberiand County Council (Public Rights of Way) Modification Order
(No.10) 2003 was made by the Council to upgrade this part of Footpath No 26
to a Byway Open to All Traffic (BOAT). Following a number of objections to that
order, a public inquiry was held (“the 2004 Inquiry”) after which a decision was
|ssued not to confirm the order. I have been provided with a copy of the Order
Decision® and have had regard to it in my determination of this appeal.

My attention has been drawn to the fact that the Appellant may not have
served notice of the application on all of the occupiers of the land affected as
required by Schedule 14(2) of the Act. However, Schedule 14(2) does not
require strict compliance and I consider the publicity requirements in respect of
any order subsequently made would be sufficient to remedy any deficiency in
this respect. 1 do not therefore consider any party would be materially
prejudiced.

Main Issues

4,

With regard to section 53(3)(c)(ii) of the Act, the main issue is whether the
evidence discovered, when considered with all other relevant evidence
available, shows that Footpath No 26 ought to be shown as a restricted byway.

! Order Ref: FPS/R2900/7/30.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 149



Appeal Decision FPS/P2935/14A/5

Reasons

5. The appeal route is currently shown recorded in the Definitive Map and
Statement as forming part of Footpath No 26, West Allen and runs from
Blacklaw Cross in a generally northerly direction to the U8039 at Kiersleywell
Bank. The application seeks to upgrade this section of Footpath No 26 to a
restricted byway.

6. Most of the evidence upon which application is based was considered in detail
as part of the 2004 Inquiry. While I note the Appellant has challenged some of
the conclusions reached by the Inspector in that case, these were arrived at
following detailed consideration of the evidence and with the Inspector having
had the benefit of hearing oral arguments. I have seen nothing which would
lead me to reach a different conclusion on that evidence. However, the
Appellant has identified two additional pieces of evidence - the Alstone Moor
Inclosure Act 1803 and a copy of the Ordnance Survey (0S) Boundary Sketch
Map of 1858 - which, when taken with the 2004 evidence, he claims shows that
Footpath 26 ought to be recorded as a restricted byway.

7. The relevant trigger for section 53(3)(c)(ii) is the ‘discovery of evidence’ and
while I note that the 2004 Inquiry considered the OS evidence available at the
time, additional information has been discovered which, for whatever reason,
was not available in 2004. Similarly, while I note that the Alstone Moor
Inclosure Award was considered as part of the 2004 Inquiry, the 1803 Alstone
Moor Inclosure Act itself, now provided by the Appellant, was not. I accept the
Appellant’s argument that the discovery of evidence in this context should be
given its ordinary or literal meaning. As such, I am satisfied that the additional
evidence provided is sufficient to constitute the ‘discovery of evidence’ for the
purposes of section 53(3)(c)(ii).

8. Nevertheless, the 2004 Inquiry established that the evidence available at that
time was insufficient to show that Footpath No 26 was incorrectly recorded.
Indeed, the Inspector commented? that the evidence in favour of an all-
purpose highway at this location was ‘meagre’. I agree with that assessment
and as such, consider the central guestion to be whether the additional or
‘newly discovered® evidence , when taken with all the other relevant evidence
available, is sufficient to show that Footpath 26 ought to be recorded as a
restricted byway. I consider this new evidence further below.

The OS evidence

9. 0S mapping from the nineteenth century shows the claimed route as a double
pecked line feature annotated as Carrier's Way. It is described in the OS Book
of Reference as a ‘cart road’ and this evidence was available at the 2004
Inquiry. At that time, the Inspector considered that, while it provided evidence
of the physical existence of a route at the time of the survey, no evidence was
presented to assist in the determination of why this feature was considered to
be a cart road or from whom authority for such a description was sought.

10. As part of the present application, the Appellant has produced additional .
evidence in the form of the OS Boundary Sketch Book dated 1858 which shows
- the claimed route as a continuation of Blacklaws Road and annotates it as
Carrier's Way. I agree with the Appellant that it supports the proposition that

2 At paragraph 32.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 150 2



I

Appeal Decision FPS/P2935/14A/5

there was a continuation of some sort of route over the county boundary.
However, it provides no detail as to its status or use.

11. Furthermore, while I note that the Appellant has produced some useful articles
including one which indicates field recording was not a chance or casual
process but rather one which was carried out by an independent specialist
whose main task was to verify the accuracy of the detail of the survey, the
accuracy of the work depended very much on the skill of the examiners and
their classification of land use was not subject to close scrutiny. While I accept
it adds some further weight to this evidence and the suggestion that a highway
of some sort has been in long-standing existence on the ground, it does not
shed any additional light on its status and provides very little support for
upgrading the route to a restricted byway.

The Alstone Moor Inclosure Act 1803.

12. The Appellant has also submitted a copy of the Alstone Moor Inclosure Act
1803 and extracts from the 1820 award which establishes Blacklaws Road as a
highway which runs to the county boundary. Although the 1803 Act itself was -
not available at the 2004 Inquiry, it is clear from the decision letter that the
argument put forward by the Appellant is essentially the same, i.e. that the
Commissioners would not have awarded a public road in this location, with the
maintenance and repair falling to the Alstone Parishioners, if there was no
onward access beyond the county boundary. He refers to the ‘through route
presumption® which can be summarised as being that where two highways are
linked by a short section of uncertain status, it can be presumed that its status
is that of the two highways linked by it.

13. However, this argument was considered by the Inspector at the 2004 Inquiry
and the decision letter makes clear® that, while the presumption is something
that can be added into the balance, it does not weigh heavily in favour. I have
seen no evidence as part of this appeal that would lead me to reach a different
conclusion. As such, I do not consider this additional evidence provides any
meaningful support for the Appellant’s case or alters the assessment carried
out in 2004. As with the OS evidence above, it provides little information as to
the status of the route and does not provide any additional support in favour of
upgrading it to a restricted byway.

Summary

14. I have found above that the additional, or ‘newly discovered’, evidence
submitted by the Appellant provides some support for the claim that a route of
some sort has been in long-standing existence on the ground. However, I have
also found that it sheds little light on its status and provides very little support
for upgrading the route to a restricted byway. Furthermore, while 1 accept that
it links two other vehicular ways and as such, benefits from the ‘through route
presumption’, I agree with the conclusions of the Inspector in 2004 that the
evidence in support is so meagre that this presumption does not weigh heavily
in favour, .

15. Accordingly, I do not consider that it has been demonstrated on the balance of
probabilities that Footpath 26 ought to be shown as a restricted byway. As
such, the appeal must fail,

3 See Eyre v. New Forest Highway Board [1892] 56 JP 517,
* at paragraph 32 of the decision.

https://wuw.gov.uk/plannina-inspectorate  Pgge 151



Appeal Decision FPS/P2935/14A/5

Conclusion

16. Having regard to these, and to all other relevant matters raised in the written
representations, I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed.

Formal Decision

17. The appeal is disr;nissed.
Rory Cridland

INSPECTOR

https://W\&w.qov.uk/pianninq'-inspectorate Pagle 152 4



Fé
- [-o3) b e o] i s
. - ‘Ci?" \‘ ‘ ‘ e = TB AJE..' ? He\'hs;;ﬂ A
’ St ey ™ N, o ]
&t w2 ) A% E
N 520/024 . & \\% iS” HI | 2 5243954
—— )] %4 ) N E
520/051 o \B © 41010 ¢ fa LB\
-l o\ w00 _gd'® V' WA
c,‘LQ e B BN\ 5o 5?,_,3‘./'9"&‘0 "
¢ | o Sl \ IWR
A f ’% .?3"'--____ [} L(N)'{ ] \
) Pt > o oY
S I S pl )| S/
8§ \S g 5241015 > T ol S
" \%y e e Y & S &)
. [ts}
‘:‘ ! ‘& \.Ov;"_-; A ’90\:;-\/?0\9
g 1 S \ - o
' }% f\c?/ y J oo
1o oy 526/016 526/018 VT fs o
oA g~y | s & | &
s/ ) e sl g} L ; )
rb’ ‘a il g o %)) \ ! N
& 2 / e / \g \ &
- 1 \e, ’ Y 525100, 525, 13 52600t
\ ) ’LO bi')/, o 6:-.._._ 83 2 O = ;a & f
5202104 7 e T, sosioperls  SH
121030 | Qq'/ \\ 05 " g - o
{\‘ﬁ i ! A g -~ L..!!, n § v.-\ Té@bﬁ _.34
B, | mttof% } 4 I
M OS-NBLA, / e gh TR s,
WL R A / 622 53 g L3, e
~ ""Q.\ 6@% /. 525/056 =~ g((@ll ~, b 'r\'m \]9 el
» - /‘ 7
—E B\ Dy R o F L
' -ioAs S
l. W . '\\ = /Z Yo

=
-

543/039

County Council

7 / 607'\0’, NE A5 : ‘
= f‘.‘.{’ ) N\ \% Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2021. QS
” N \ \\’7, 100030994 , Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database
P N \' 1 \d’ right 2022. OS 100030994., Ordnange Survey data © Crown copyright
B V. \ and database right 2021
Northumberland Location Map

Contact: Alex Bell
Telephone: 01670 624133
Email: Alex.Bell@northumberland.gov.uk

Crown Copyright. Unauthorised

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office

reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. License no. 100049048 (2010).

Page 153



Fryer's County Map
| 1820

T B ot

agh

= Degaibre r
1w

S e oare,

Page 154



Greenwood’s County Map
1828

wkast
Grioudridge

Coeror; .
..E'eaw)i(»‘_‘-":ﬁ;rbofl e

-

S
ST
YW it

i

& J

Page 155 -



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	PRESENT
	MEMBERS

	5 REVIEW OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY, ALLEGED RESTRICTED BYWAY NO. 62, PARISH OF BARDON MILL
	6 REVIEW OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY, ALLEGED RESTRICTED BYWAY NO. 26, PARISH OF WEST ALLEN

